
A publication of Truthseekers Research International 

Volume 1, Issue 11- Octooer/Novemoer 91 - Tne TRUTH is out tnere £1.1~ 

IN THIS ISSUI: 



TRUTH SEEKERS 
REVIEW 

October 97 I November 97 

EDITOR 
Matthew Williams 

ASSISTANT EDITORS 
Paul Damon 
Chris Fowler 

PUBLISHER 
PC with MICROSOFT PUBLISHER 
New Epson Stylus Colour 600 printer & 
A photocopier now close at hand ... 

DESIGNERS 
Matthew Williams 
Chris Fowler 

ADMINISTRATION 
Truth Seekers Research 

01374 625281 or 01443 437853 

INSPIRATION 
Time wasters & criminal UFO element. 

CONTRIBUTORY WRITERS 
Chris Fowler 
Barry Chamish 
John Crowe 
Jonathan Hurst 
Paul Bura 
Matthew Williams 
Richard Conway 
Paul Damon 

NORMAL CORRESPONDENCE 
25 Upper Canning Street 
TonPentre, Mid Glamorgan, South Wales. CF41 7HG 
Tel 01443- 437853 

NEW EMAIL: truthseekers@btinternet.com 

In this issue ..... 
I EDITORIAL Page 3 I 
NEWSDESK UPDATE 
Various ... Page 4 

MYSTERY LIGHTS 
Chris Davies Page 7 

STUNNING ISRAELI EVIDENCE EMERGES 
Barry Chamish Page 10 

DIANA- A MANIFESTATION OF THE HIGHER LAW 
PERSPECTIVE 
John Crowe Page 11 

CONTACTEE VIEWPOINT 
Jonathan Hurst Page 13 

BOOK REVIEW 
Chris Fowler Page 16 

THE WOLSTONBURY EXPERIMENT 

Paul Sura Page 17 

HIGH STRANGENESS 
Matthew Williams Page 20 

HACKER 
Matthew Williams Page 23 

TRUTHSEEKERS HARDCORE 
Unknown Author Page 29 

BENTWA TEAS BENT 
Richard Conway Page 30 

GRAN HERMANDAD BLANCA 
Paul Damon Page 32 

MOTTO THIS MONTH ... 

THE TRUTH IS ONLY WHAT 

WE LEARN THROUGH OUR 

OWN INVESTIGATION ... ALL 

ELSE ARE POTENTIAL LIES! 



Welcome to the "latest" edition of 
Truth seekers. I am very sorry for 
this edition being late and must 
humble myself by saying that the 
reasons for it being so late are 
mostly mine. With many 
Christmas commitments and low 
resources I was unable to get the 
printing arranged. I have now got 
myself into gear and the 
Christmas edition will be out soon. 
Never the less all our editions 
contain up to date news so do not 
fear! We thank you for your 
support and apologise to those 
who wrote in with concerns. 

UPDATE 

In last months edition we heard 
about Mexico UFO video footage 
of Winter 1997 which shows a 
saucer flying behind an 
construction building. We can 
now confirm that extra witnesses 
have verified this footage. Initially 
some found reason to doubt the 
footage because of its apparent 
anonymous source. Now not only 
the source is verified but these 
two extra witnesses have come 
forward to say they were in close 
proximity to the same filmed UFO 
and one claims that they suffered 
skin burns from close proximity to 
the object. 

We are also glad to see that Tom 
& Kerry Blower are organising 
another set of conferences this 
year in both Cardiff and Wiltshire. 
Chris Davies takes us on a quick 
exploration of his investigations of 
UFOs over Bristol. Chris has in the 
past put forward the possibility 
that these UFOs were special sky 
tracking light displays, but as we 
hear, in this case he finds no 
evidence of this and so the Bristol 

mystery lights remain 
unexplained. 

Barry Chamish updated us on 
spectacular UFO sightings in the 
holy land in his article Stunning 
Evidence which also briefly 
explores the new phenomena of 
Israel's first reported cattle 
mutilations. 

John Crowe explores Diana 
Conspiracy and mysticism in his 
article "Diana': A Manifestation 
of the Law of Higher 
Perspective". I profess to only 
have knowledge of the 
conspiracy theory whereby 
Diana was to be prevented from 
marrying outside of the Royal 
Blood line because of the "Blue 
Blood" (royal blood line] 

connecting a 
family. 

that 
perhaps 

nr<>rlC>rPI~Jndrijn toteach 
us an important lesson. 

Jonathan Hurst gives us an 
update on his investigation of 
two abductees. Jonathan is also 
proud to be able to announce 
the opening of a Truthseekers 
Yorkshire office. The office 
address is 14 Deaconess 
Court, Queens Road, llkley. 
West Yorks. LS29 9QJ. 

Paul Bura tells us of his 
experiences communicating and 
liasing with the spirit world and 
with their help shows us his 
insights into crop circle 
research in his article "The 
Wolstonbury Experiment". 

We also update readers on the 
case of Ray Wardle - a UFO 

witness and UFO video footage 
source, who was drugged and 
hypnotised by a suspect group of 
Ufologists in our High 
Strangeness update we hear 
other tales of wierd events which 
have happened to Ray Wardle. 

In an extensive article on the 
secrets of the computer world, I 
interview "hacker" Matthew 
Bevan, who tells us how he had 
the power of life or death for 
planet earth whilst he gained 
access to the launch systems of 
American nuclear missiles. 
Perhaps as important and 
interesting is how on another 
occasion he also saw secret UFO 
documents whilst hacking 
computer systems. 

This month, Truthseekers 
Hardcore takes a look at an 
anonymous article, which 
explores possible Government/ 
Alien collusion and the 
connections with secret societies 
in THE SERPENT RACE 

Finally Richard Conway explains 
how his investigations into the 
airbase, which were scene to the 
famous 1980 Rendlesham UFO. 
We hear how the base would not 
be sold to any other contractor 
than one, which agreed not to dig 
up the runway. Suspicions now 
ring out as we learn that the MOD 
are preapred to go to great 
lengths to stop legitimate 
contractors getting their hands 
on the site and how perhaps the 
MOD struck up secret deals this 
preferred contractor in order to 
see their wishes are upheld. But is 
there a more sinister reason? 
We explore the possibilities. 
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OIL PLATFORM IN GULF OF 
MEXICO NEAR TEXAS 

Jeremy Clark Packer, a 32 year old 
engineer reports a UFO sighting on a Monday 
morning in late December 1997, from an oil 
drilling platform in the Gulf of Mexico 30 
miles from Corpus Christi, Texas. Jeremy 
reports: " Out of the West we saw what 
looked to be about 25-30 Helicopters on 
manoeuvres ... not an uncommon sight. What 
was uncommon was that the rig commander 
came up and told us he had no alerts to any 
military manoeuvres from the coast guard that 
day. Suddenly, something very large surfaced 
beneath them. It was a huge metal object 
about the size of our platform! It just came 
straight out of the water and straight into the 
air! 

It hovered over the helicopters for about 
two minutes . Enough for us to use the 
telescopes to check it out! It was as large as 
about two football fields, concave underneath 
with four large bulbous domes in the concave 
part of the bottom of it. It turned on its side 
and we saw that it looked like a huge flying 
cigar, which was tapered at both ends. On the 
top of the thing was anoher concave indent 
that had lights circling within it. Every colour 
you could possibly imagine! It was beautiful, 
then it was gone. Photographs were taken of 
the object, our watches showed 30 minutes at 
about the time the sighting took place. The 
day was cold and windy. 

(Thanks to the B.U.F.O.D. Space, Above 
and Beyond Website. 

http :1 lwww. abcfield.force9 .co. uk and 
Ben Field ben@abcfield.force9.co.uk.) 

ARIZONA UFOS CAUSE STIR 

Tom King reports multiple UFO 
sightings over three large cities in Arizona. 
The new flap began Sunday afternoon, 
January 11, 1998, when residents of Phoenix 
(the state capital), reported spotting "three 
shiny silvery objects flying at a high altitude" 
above the city. That night, at 9 p.m., a TV 
station in Tucson (population 405,390), a 
large city 117 Southeast of Phoenix, aired an 
amateur videotape showing "a large bright 
orange glowing UFO" flying near Mount 
Lemmon and Spencer Canyon north of the 
city. The news broadcast described it as "a 
possible campfire." According to Tom King, 
director of Arizona Skywatch, park rangers 
investigated the event "and found nothing." 

On Monday, January 12, 1997, at 12:30 
a.m., witnesses in Mesa, Arizona 
(population 288,091), a city 19 miles east 
of Phoenix, "saw the strange orange object. 
It brightened and dimmed several times," 
King reported. "It split in two and headed in 
formation towards Phoenix" at "three times 
the speed of any normal military aircraft." 
The object's estimated speed was about 
1,800 miles per hour. On Wednesday, 
January 14, 1998, at 10 p.m., Arizona 
Skywatch received calls from several 
residents in the Broadway Road/Southern 
A venue section of Phoenix. They reported 
videotaping "mysterious orange lights" 
over the South Mountains, scene of the big 
UFO flap on March 13, 1997. King said his 
group has "obtained the schedule of military 
flare drops" and will compare these times 
with the UFO reports. On Thursday, 
January 15, 1998, at 10 p.m., witnesses in 
Phoenix and the city of Casa Grande 
(population 19,082) about 40 miles (64 
kilometres) to the south reported seeing 
"three glowing objects with slight pulsating 
motions" over the nearby desert. 

Robert Michael states, "I was driving up 
past CasaGrande on January 18, 1998, and 
observed objects to the west as I pulled off 
onto Route 387, north of CasaGrande. At 
that point, I counted 9 and up to 11 Orange 
Globes strung out all the way from west to 
east, north of my position over Phoenix. 
You could see the normal Phoenix air traffic 
between these lights: I had Bushnell 
Binoculars on these Orbs and at times I 
could make out some sort of Disc structure 
on one or two of them. I was getting a Jot of 
atmospheric diffraction effects from the 
lights. This short wavelength cohesive type 
visible light scatters very well in the 
Phoenix polluted air: Observation times 
were from 7:25 to 7:55 PM MST: Two 
Orbs were still visible as I left observation 
point. I'm sure there is much more to come 
and there should be lots of good video of 
this mass sighting. 

(Thanks to Robert Michael and Tom 
King of Arizona Skywatch International for 
this story.) 

{The above UFO reports are from 'The 
Filer Files' # 3 1998, an electronic journal 
forwarded to UFO researchers on the 
Internet.} 

CONTROVERSY OVER MEXICO 
FOOTAGE RAGES 
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The August 6th 1997 Mexico City UFO 
footage (previously covered in Truthseekers) 
has created a lot of controversy within 
Ufology. Unofficial copies became available 
after it was shown on Mexican TV during 
September 1997, when it was aired on ' 3rd 
Millennium' hosted by the well known 
investigative journalist and Ufologist Jaime 
Maussan. Soon after it was put on the 
Internet and that's where it all started. 

A recent article by Graham Birdsall in 
'UFO Magazine' is very sceptical of the 
footage, implying that the UFO seen on it is 
computer generated. Whilst an article in 
' Alien Encounters ' by journalist Tim 
Coleman claims that the footage is most 
likely real, ruling out any possibility that it is 
a computer generated image. Unlike Graham, 
Tim has been to Mexico and has had the 
opportunity to view a first generation copy of 
the video and interview Jaime Maussan in 
depth about it. In his article it stated that 
Jaime Maussan now knows the person who 
took the video. The reason for his anonymity 
being that he is an illegal immigrant working 
in Mexico! Of the 11 eyewitnesses so far 
located (at the time of the article), one of them 
was a 14 year old girl who witnessed the UFO 
from the street below where she was selling 
Tacos . Some of the witnesses have also 
reported irritation caused by being in close 
vicinity to the object. 

We at Truthseekers have been very 
impressed with the footage, even in it's 
quality from the Internet site that digitised it 
off the TV clip shown in Mexico. Our 
impression of it is that it looks genuine, time 
will only tell. We will give a full report on 
this footage as Chris Fowler will be attending 
a special lecture on this video given by Jaime 
Maussan at the annual Gulf Breeze UFO 
conference in March. 

ECHELON REPORT TO BE 
TABLED IN EUROPEAN 

PARLIAMENT 

A GLOBAL electronic spy network that 
can eavesdrop on every telephone, email and 
telex communication around the world will be 
officially acknowledged for the first time in a 
European Commission report to be delivered 
this week. The report - Assessing the 
Technologies of Political Control - was 
commissioned last year by the Civil Liberties 
Committee of the European Parliament. It 



contains details of a network of American­
controlled intelligence stations on British soil 
and around the world, that "routinely and 
indiscriminately" monitor countless phone, 
fax and email messages. It states: "Within 
Europe all email telephone and fax 
communications are routinely intercepted by 
the United States National Security Agency 
transferring all target information from the 
European mainland via the strategic hub of 
London then by satellite to Fort Meade in 
Maryland via the crucial hub at Menwith Hill 
in the North York moors in the UK." 

The report confirms for the first time the 
existence of the secretive ECHELON system. 
Untl now, evidence of such astounding 
technology has been patchy and anecdotal. 
But the report - to be discussed on Thursday 
by the committee of the office of Science and 
Technology Assessment in Luxembourg -
confirms that the citizens of Britain and other 
European states are subject to an intensity of 
surveillance far in excess of that imagined by 
most parliaments. Its fmdings are certain to 
excite the concern ofMEPs. "The ECHELON 
system forms part of the UKUSA system (see 
'Cooking up a charter for snooping') but 
unlike many of the electronic spy systems 
developed during the Cold War, ECHELON 
is designed primarily for non-military targets: 
governments, organisations and businesses in 
virtually every country. 

"The ECHELON system works by 
indiscriminately intercepting very large 
quantities of communications and then 
siphoning out what is valuable using artificial 
intelligence aids like MEMEX to find key 
words". According to the report, ECHELON 
uses a number of national dictionaries 
containing key words of inteest to each 
country. For more than a decade, former 
agents of US, British, Canadian and New 
Zealand national security agencies have 
claimed that the monitoring of electronic 
communications has become endemic 
throughout the world. 

Rumours have circulated that new 
technologies have been developed which have 
the capability to search most of the world's 
telex, fax and email networks for "key 
words". Phone calls, they claim, can be 
automatically analysed for key words. Former 
signals intelligence operatives have claimed 
that spy bases controlled by America have the 
ability to search nearly all data 
communications for key words. They claim 
that ECHELON automatically analyses most 
email messaging for "precursor" data which 
assists intelligence agencies to determine 
targets. 

According to former Canadian Security 
Establishment agent Mike Frost, a voice 
recognition system called Oratory has been 

used for some years to intercept diplomatic 
calls. The driving force behind the report is 
Glyn Ford, Labour MEP for Greater 
Manchester East. He believes that the report 
is crucial to the future of civil liberties in 
Europe. "In the civil liberties committee we 
spend a great deal of time debating issues 
such as free movement, immigration and 
drugs. Technology always sits at the centre 
of these discussions. There are times in 
history when technology helps democratise, 
and times when it helps centralise. This is a 
time of centralisation. The justice and home 
affairs pillar of Europe has become more 
powerful without a corresponding 
strengthening of civil liberties." 

The report recommends a variety of 
measures for dealing with the increasing 
power of the technologies of surveillance 
being used at Menwith Hill and other 
centres. It bluntly advises: "The European 
Parliament should reject proposals from the 
United States for making private messages 
via the global communications network 
(Internet) accessible to US intelligence 
agencies." 

The report also urges a fundamental 
review of the involvement of the American 
NSA (National Security Aency) in Europe, 
suggesting that their activities be either 
scaled down, or become more open and 
accountable. Such concerns have been 
privately expressed by governments and 
MEPs since the Cold War, but surveillance 
has continued to expand. US intelligence 
activity in Britain has enjoyed a steady 
growth throughout the past two decades. 
The principal motivation for this rush of 
development is the US interest in 
commercial espionage. 

In the Fifties, during the development of 
the "special relationship" between America 
and Britain, one US institution was singled 
out for special attention. The NSA, the 
world's biggest and most powerful signals 
intelligence organisation, received approval 
to set up a network of spy stations 
throughout Britain. Their role was to 
provide military, diplomatic and economic 
intelligence by intercepting communications 
from throughout the Northern Hemisphere. 
The NSA is one of the shadowiest of the US 
intelligence agencies. Until a few years ago, 
it existence was a secret and its charter nd 
any mention of its duties are still classified. 

However, it does have a Web site 
(www.nsa.gov:8080) in which it describes 
itself as being responsible for the signals 
intelligence and communications security 
activities of the US government. One of its 
bases, Menwith Hill, was to become the 
biggest spy station in the world. Its ears -
known as radomes - are capable of listening 
in to vast chunks of the communications 

spectrum throughout Europe and the old 
Soviet Union. In its first decade the base 
sucked data from cables and microwave links 
running through a nearby Post Office tower, 
but the communications revolutions of the 
Seventies and Eighties gave the base a 
capability that even its architects could 
scarcely have been able to imagine. With the 
creation of Intelsat and digital 
telecommunications, Menwith and other 
stations developed the capability to eavesdrop 
on an extensive scale on fax, telex and voice 
messages. Then, with the development of the 
Internet, electronic mail and electronic 
commerce, the istening posts were able to 
increase their monitoring capability to 
eavesdrop on an unprecedented spectrum of 
personal and business communications. This 
activity has been all but ignored by the UK 
Parliament. When Labour MPs raised 
questions about the activities of the NSA, the 
Govermnent invoked secrecy rules. It has 
been the same for 40 years. Glyn Ford hopes 
that his report may be the first step in a long 
road to more openness. "Some democratically 
elected body should surely have a right to 
know at some level. At the moment that's 
nowhere ... [Daily Telegraph, 16th December 
1997) 

OFFICIAL REVELATION OR 
COCK-UP? 

On an official website for Wright 
Patterson airbase a reference was made to the 
Aurora spyplane by Wright Patterson 
officials. The existence of the advanced secret 
aircraft has long been denied by the USAF 
and other government sources even though 
certain uses of the code name Aurora have 
been found on government records and 
expennditure audit accounts. 

The text reads: 

"This heritage includes legendary 
aircraft like the P-51 Mustang and the B-1 7 
Flying Fortress, as well as the indomitable 
B-52 Stratofortress. More recently, 
versatile aircraft like the F-16 Fighting 
Falcon and the F-11 7 stealth fighter have 
extended this heritage. Now the B-2 stealth 
bomber, the F-22 Advanced Tactical 
Fighter, and the Top Secret Aurora are 
proud additions to Wright Field 's tradition 
of aeronautical innovation. " 

So is it a case of openess or just a case of 
a slip .up. Sometimes mistakes like these are 
made on purpose by staff who want 
information to get out to the public regarding 
new and secret projects. 

EXPORT CONTROLS ON 
ENCRYPTION SOFTWARE 

cont... 
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You may be aware of the problems which 
had arisen in the United States in relation to 
the encryption software PGP which uses 
military grade encryption and is available for 
public use. In a legal case, a Scottish 
businessman was arrested by the FBI for 
selling computers to Libya following an 
undercover operation. 

Even if you are buying a computer in the 
UK for use in the US, you may be caught by 
US export rules which apply not only to 
goods exported from the US but also their 
subsequent re-export from the UK. 

In an encryption case, a man was told that 
he would require an export licence to take a 
BT phone disk from the UK to Jersey (which 
is not part of the UK for these purposes). The 
CD contains encrypted software and therefore 
is treated as the supply of "military 
encryption devices" by the export control 
rules. With the move towards encryption of 
data on the Internet and the V chip, the use of 
encryption technologies is set to increase -
although its development may be stymied if 
governments continue their insistence that 
they be given the necessary codes to read the 
encrypted materials. 
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The following report deals 
predominantly with sightings of an 
enormous double circle of lights observed 
over Bristol and the surrounding areas in the 
July period of 1996. The most witnessed 
sighting ofthese lights was in the early hours 
of July 6th. 

The report also deals with aspects of the 
investigation, which may not have a direct 
bearing on actual sightings, but may have 
relevance to investigative Ufologists in 
general. 

Witness drawings have been re-sketched 
using computer graphics for the purpose of 
providing more clarity to the reader. I have 
endeavoured to keep them as accurate to the 
originals as possible. 

~ 
began receiving a trickle of reports 

about UFO activity over Bristol in early July 
96, one of my first lines of enquiry was to 
contact Bristol Airport to see if they had any 
radar contacts with unknown air traffic 
within the time frame of reports. Shortly 
afterwards I received a letter from them 
along with 2 UFO reports, it was through 
one of these reports that I first became aware 
of the large light circles that were also being 
seen. As well as this I also obtained details 
of another report via the "British Flying 
Saucer Bureau" (which is the oldest UFO 
group in the World), with this second report 
I now had a confirmed sighting witch to 
investigate. 

~ 
I have a good contact who does a little 

work with B.B.C. Radio Bristol, , I relayed 

Above: Circular lights as seen over Ashton 
on July 61

h at 3.20 am. There was a repeti­
tive triangular path. 

By: Christopher Davies B.Sc. 
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Above: the lights as seen over Whitehall on 
July 6th at 2.30am. 

the details to him and within days I was 
asked to do a live broadcast via a phone 
link. I was pleased with the way that the 
interview went as I was allowed to talk 
almost without interruption for some 20 
minutes. From this interview carne more 
reports, the Bristol Evening Post put a 
small write-up in their paper which in turn 
produced even more response. To my 
supprise I was asked to give a second 
updated radio broadcast on Radio Bristol. 
Through all this publicity I obtained a 
substantial number of corroborative 
reports. 

The lights were described as being 
approximately 20 in an the outer circle and 
6 in an inner circle, although this number 
does vary between witnesses. I attribute 
this to the fact that as the circles were 
rotating in opposite directions it could 
make them appear more numerous than 
may have actually been the case. 

My first and most obvious thought was 
that this was a projected or laser light 
display. A thought reinforced by the fact 
that the annual St.Pauls Carnival had taken 
place the day after the lights were seen. 
With this in mind I contacted the carnival 
organisers who informed me that no lights 
which could produce the observed effect 
were used prior to or at the time of their 
event. Still following this line of 
investigation I contacted local nightclubs, 
again I drew a blank. I then decided to 
contact the City council and asked if using 
such a light display system would require 
any kind of licence, the answer to this was 
no, but permission would be required from 
the 

Councils Health and Safety 
department. They in turn informed me that 
no lasers or powerful lights had been used 
within their area since the "Festival of the 

Sea" which was held in May. 

It then occurred to me that this was close 
to the date of the release of the 
"Independence Day" film and that this could 
have been a publicity stunt. Investigating 
this aspect I again drew a blank. As a 
separate angle I contacted a member of the 
Bristol Astronomical Society who told me 
that nothing astronomical could be related to 
such a sighting. 

Bristol Airport has an official 
unidentified flying object report form, on the 
bottom of which I noticed an action 
instruction for the person taking the report. 
The instruction was to immediately 
telephone a military section (AIS) at 
LATCC, which I believe is London Air 
Traffic Control Centre and pass on the 
details of the report. Following this they 
should send a written report to The Ministry 
Of Defence, Secretariat (Air Staff) 2a, this 
was then followed by a hand written 
telephone number. Being rather inquisitive, 
I decided to call this number. When I got 
through I posed the question "Do you take 
UFO reports?" I was told to hold the line 
and was put through straight away to the 
military AIS department. Again I repeated 
the question, and was given an expectant 
yes! I then informed the person that I was 
talking to that I was a UFO investigator and 
would like to know what their was exact 
involvement with UFO information and 
reports sent to them. The person that I spoke 
to seemed slightly taken aback by this and 
told me that AIS was an Aeronautical 
Information Section, and they distributed 
information received to other departments. 
Naturally I asked what departments? The 
gentleman that I was speaking to became 

Above: Sighting of circular lights over 
Clifton on 6th July, duration 1.1/2 hours. 
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MY HOUSE 

Above: Sighting by lady from Whitehall on 
6th July. 00.45hrs, She said, "it was above 
our house then moved over the field and ro­
tated back again, it repeated this for about 3 
hours then stopped still and disappeared" . 

quite coy and told me that if I 
anymore information I should 
Secretariat (Air Staff) 2a, this I 

required 
contact 

did and 

• What action do they take when 
receiving UFO reports, and can these 
reports be obtained by members of the 
public? 

• Was there any low flying military 
aircraft or military exercises over 
Bristol or surrounding areas on the 
dates in question? 

Miss Gaynor South of the MOD 
answered some of my questions 
confirming that they had received a report 
from Bristol for July 6th. What was 
interesting in her letter was her statement 
that, "The reports are examined, with the 
assistance of the Department's air defence 
experts as required." This then clearly 
shows that the UFO subject is taken 
somewhat more seriously than the MOD 
has previously led us to believe, also that 
the investigation and consultation aspect is 
more widespread and goes beyond Air 

FLATS 

Above: Lights as seen by a family from 
Bedminster on the 5th July, OO.lOam. 
(Courtesy Andy Maddem ofYUFORIA) 

Still determined to obtain a positive 
solution, I continued with my investigations, 

Report of Unidentified Flying Object · ·"' .. 

from: Miss G F South, Sectetariat(Air Staff}2a1a, Room 8245, 

MINISTRY OF DEFENCE. 
Main Building, WhitehaM, london. SW1A 2HB 

Mr C Davie& 
152, Victoria Avenue, 
Redfield, 
Bristol. 
ass 9NW 

t...,._(Oir.ct ... , 0171l11lcnB 
!Sw<lctmo.r• 0171 Z11 toOO 
!I'"U) 0171 11. :MIO 

~S~7(As)/64/3 
i'\- August 1996 

1. Thank you for your letter det.ed 1 Auquet 19?6 addreaaed to 
Hi•• Philpott regarding •unexplained• aerial u.ghtlnqe over the 
Bristol area in July. I have ~en aeked to reply. 

2 First perhape it vould be ueeful if I vere to explain the 
r~le that the Mini1try of Defence. has wh.b respect to. thi~ 
subject The Hiniatry of Defence exam.t.nea any report• of UFO 
aiqhtio9s 3t- _ rAceivea aol~lv to establish_ whether what we~ seen 

might heve some defence aignifico.nce; namely u ehere any eYH:Iehce 
that the Ul( Air Defence Reqion might have been compromised b¥ o. 
foreign hostile military aircraft? The reJ;>Orts are exaDlined, w1th 
the assistance of the Oept'rtment' s cur defence. expe~ts as 

uired unless there is evidence of a potent1.al mt.litary 
~~eat, 'and to date no "uro· sight1.ng baa revealed such evidence, 
we do not attempt to identity the precise nature of each sighting 
reported to us. we believe that do~n · tc;'-earth explanati<:m• are 
available for most of theee reported s.1ght.1.nga, such as aJ..rcraft 
seen from unusual anglee or natural phenomena • 

3 you have asked what. procedure is followed when the MOD 
r~ceives -unex:plained- aerial sighting repo~s and the role of 
AIS(Hil) . Reports from members of the pub~~c are usually made to 
Police stations, RAF stations and air trafflC cont:rol cener~e ~no 
are then forwarded to this office. AIS(Hil) act ~s a co- ordJ.netl.on 

int as they often receive reporta from other ~ baees and 
rorward them to us. AIS(Mil) have no other role ~n respect of 
-uPO" reports. Member• of the public. sometimes telephone th1.e 
office directly to report a aight~ng . The report&, ~hlch are 
usually very br.ief and va9ue, are considered ~ c::ons':lltat1.on vnh 
air defence adviaere withln the MOD, and a dec~s~on 1.8 . taken aa to 
vhether- what was seen represent• a threat to ~he . secur1.ty of th.e 
Ull. Sighting& reports are kept on file w~th..1.n tbu office for 
future reference. 

4 , With regard to your request, I hav~ looke<:f ba?k thro\l<jlh our 
files and have found that no •unexplal.ned• s1.ght-:ng reports were 
made to the MOD for 14 or 15 July in or around Brl.stol. However, 
there was one sighting report made to the MOD for 6 J':llY in the 
Bristol et.rea. Jl.t the time, this report was examined by a.l.r defence 

asked the following: -

• Could they confirm that they had 
received reports ofUFO's for the periods 
in question? 

• Could they enlighten me as to their 
procedure when they investigate alleged 
UFO sightings? 

• What is AIS's involvement in taking 
UFO reports? 

• Who do they distribute the information 
to? 
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c. Ex~ct Position of Ob.sarv•r 
Geographical location, lndoor$ or outdoor$, stationery or 

O. ~=~~:::.~f:ocular$, ot.~er opt1cal device, s.li!l or movie 

camera. 

E. Direction in which Ob}ec:t wu Firs: Se~n 
A landmark may be more use.ful than • badfy eshmated 

I N. Any Background Jnform•!ion on :helnform•nr U:•: 
may be Volunt••nd 

0 . Otlnr Wimu.su 

P. Date and Time of Rec:eipt of R•porr 
6/7/crr. 1046 

which led me on a hot and cold trail from 
Swansea to Slough. In spite of this I thought 
that I could see some light at the end of the 
tunnel. 

I discovered that on the night in question 
the Welsh National Orchestra performed at 
an open-air concert in Singleton Park in 
Swansea, this show was later shown on BBC 
2. What was of concern to my investigation 
in respect of this concert was the use of a 
Skytracker light system, although unlikely 



some models have the capability to display 
something vaguely similar to what was seen 
over Bristol. 

Still with the opinion that these lights 
were of a man made origin I began chasing 
the suppliers of light display systems. I 
started with a company called "Fine Line 
Lasers" based in Failand This in turn led me 
to a company called "Theatre Projects" who 
I understand may have supplied the lighting 
for the Swansea concert. They were very 
helpful in supplying information about the 
Skytracker systems although they were 
doubtful that these were responsible for what 
was seen over Bristol. Ttheatre Project in 
turn put me on to a company called "Anark 
Lights" in Slough, the gentleman that I 
spoke to was extremely helpful and was 
quite bemused that lights of the type seen 
could be mistaken for UFO's. He was quite 
sure that was was seen was a system known 
as a Space Flower or a Strobe Flower which 
was capable of making the lights pulse. 

What also lends weight to the light 
system theory was that some witnesses 
mentioned a repetitive triangular path taken 
by the lights, this could indicate a chain 
driven system. 

I was informed that when these light 
systems are going to be used it is the 
supposed practice that the Civil Aviation 
and local Authority be notified, this does not 
appear to have been the case with the lights 
seen over Bristol if indeed any of these 
systems were used. 

There is still several points of contention 
that I feel I will never find an answer for. 

I. The overhead whirring noise heard by 
several witnesses. 

2. The observation of the lights going 
behind the cloud layer. 

3. If the light source did emanate from a 
central point in Bristol, the failure of all 
but one witness to observe the beams 
which should have been clearly visible 
from a 2 mile radius. 

4. The lack of an event or function, that 

would warrant the use of such lights. 
5. Failure to notify the authorities. 
6. Also the fact that these lights if 

projected would have had at least a 25 
mile visibility range, why then were 
there no witnesses from much further 
afield? 

~ 
In early 1997 I was contacted by a 

witness who while returning from 
Holyhead with his family and heading 
towards their hometown of Neath, in 
Wales observed a large illuminous cone 
shaped object near the Shrewsbury area at 
around 8pm. They described the object as 
having circular lights rotating on the 
bottom. The object appeared to follow 
them for several miles and at one point 
they thought that it might actually land 
close by. I was told that while they were 
driving the family group was apparently 
dumbstruck! They eventually stopped in a 
Diner or cafe a little afraid. This 
experience prompted the driver to seek out 
a local UFO investigator, and that how I 
became involved. I immediately put out 
feelers with the local press and radio to try 
to find more witnesses or a definitive 
answer. I spoke on the local radio and had 
an article put in the press all the while I 
continued to contact local clubs and track 
down events. Another witness came 
forward with an identical story but this one 
was travelling in the opposite direction. 
Then Bingo! A local night-club confessed 
they were responsible for what was being 
seen. Also I started to get letters from 
local people confirming that it was a 
regular display by the night-club. What is 

PC Text 
5000 te~ flies and J00 images availaole 
Send £3 for 3.5 inch catalogue fi le. 

Orion Trading 
linden Trees 

70 High Street 
WINGHAM 

Kent. G3 1 BJ 

most interesting is that the observers were 
some 8 miles from the point of origin yet 
still they claimed absolute clarity in what 
they saw and were sincere in their belief that 
this may have extra terrestrial origins. I am 
now wholly convinced that all lights of this 
type described as UFO's, are nothing more 
that man made light displays. Many times 
they are seen around the country and no 
source can be found but I do not waver in my 
opinion. This does not appear to be the case 
with many Ufologists who without being 
able to find a definitive source are all to 
quick to rubber stamp a sighting as genuine. 
23/01 /98 
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One might think 1997 was a poor 
year of UFO activity in Israel judging 
by the paucity of media reports. In 
fact, the media clamped down hard in 
January '97 after they were burned on 
the Achiod alien/lizard story and the 
false prediction of mass landings on 
Jan.5. However, due to the superb 
research of David Ronen, Doron 
Rotem and two young newcomers, 
Gil Bar and Eddie Shpitz, it turns out 
that 1997 was a vintage year for 
Israeli Ufology. Some of the most 
dramatic physical evidence of the 
country's intense ten years of activity 
emerged last year. Following is a 
summary of 1997. 

FILMS 

Over three nights in September 1996, 
Elad Niger filmed a remarkable UFO over 
the coastal plain city of Kochav Yair from 
his vantagepoint in the nearby city of Kfar 
Saba. He released the films to David Ronen 
in March of 1997. They reveal the prettiest 
UFO ever filmed in Israel. It looks like a 
colourful apple wearing a three-pronged 
crown. - 1997 saw three UFOs filmed in 
Rishon Letzion, 20 miles south ofTel Aviv 
and a centre of UFO activity since 1993 
when giant aliens visited the apartment of 
Batya Shimon. Of the three clips, none is so 
memorable as Gil Bar's November filming of 
an ellipsoid disk captured in 4 PM sunlight 
being chased by an Israeli Air Force F -1 5. 
The UFO's high-speed manoeuvres to escape 
the jet are most acrobatic. This is the first 
known instance of a military plane chasing a 
UFO captured on film in Israel. 

Then on November 26, Nahum 
Shornroni videotaped an afternoon invasion 
of low flying UFOs over Tel Aviv. The light 
conditions were perfect and the craft were 
flying at only an esimated 700 meters 

altitude. The result is a breathtaking view 
of three sponge-shaped, dark UFOs of a 
type possibly never seen before. 

PHYSICAL EVIDENCE 

1997 saw two 
disturbing animal 
mutilation incidents 

tracks or pods from a craft. And finally, 
the famed hotspot of Kadima returned 
gloriously to Israel's UFO history. From 
1993-95, approximately 20 landing spots 
were discovered after nights of UFO activity 
in the skies. Within were shards of material 

associated with UFO 
sightings. They 
continued a pattern that 
began in the Negev 
village of Klachim in 
Dec. '96. Sylvia and 
Yitzhak Kadosh 
witnessed "an image as 
big as a house sparkling 
like a welding torch" 
land near their donkey 
compound. The light 
vanished before their 
eyes and they hoped it 
would be the last time 
their farm suffered such 

Mutilated animals now found in Israel. This example 
here from the USA taken from the book "An Alien Har-

an intrusion. But their vest" by Linda Moulton Howe. 
hope was not realised. 
Two nights later, 2 
donkeys were mutilated. The older one had 
its eyes and tongue removed and its rib 
cage was exposed by a surgical removal of 
skin and tissue. The younger animal only 
had the latter operation performed on it. 

In July '97, the Glam family of Sde 
Uziah, thirty miles west ofKlachim, had a 
UFO experience which culminated in Mrs. 
Glam being chased by a projector light 
from an unknown source. Again, two 
nights later, their sheep pen was invaded 
and five sheep were drained bloodless 
from precise holes drilled in their cheeks. 
Doron Rotem researched both inidents and 
to this day, keeps an example from Sde 
Uziah frozen in his freezer. He admits his 
wife is not happy about this mutilated 
carcass sharing space with the family 
groceries. 

The final incident made national news, 
the only UFO story to do so all year. On 
Nov. 2, a silver ellipsoid disk hovered over 
the Gaza Strip settlement ofPaat Hasadeh. 
On Nov. 8, Yaacov Mazal-Terem awoke to 
discover a row of twelve pairs of holes, 5 
em. deep along the fence which enclosed 
his horse. The horse itself had two 1 em. 
holes surgically drilled into its front 
hooves. The national media photographed 
the row of holes and their origin remains a 
mystery. Speculation is they were alien 

later tested worldwide and found to be 
nearly pure silicon. This year, the same 
shards wee found twelve miles to the west 
on the beaches of Gaash and Shfayim after 
UFO activity was reported. On October 
10, a UFO was seen over the Kadima suburb 
of Tel Yitzhak. ldan Levy discovered its 
landing circle and found within, not shiny 
silicon but an unknown material that looks 
like grey-branched coral. 

SOMETHING TO LOOK 
FORWARD TO 

I will be bringing the videos of the low 
flying invasion ofTel Aviv, the F-15 chasing 
a most distinct disk over Rishon Letzion and 
the colourful apple-shaped craft with a 
crown over Kochav Yair to the Laughlin, 
Nevada conference. I think conferees will 
agree this is a most dynamic and important 
trio of films. I will also be bringing photos 
of the three mutilation cases as well as 
samples of the Kadima "coral" to be offered 
for serious laboratory testing. Israel's 
unique and powerful wave did not diminish 
in 1997, it simply went unreported. That will 
end in Laughlin. 

Sent by Barry Chamish - Israeli 
journalist. Phone/Fax : (972)-2-9914936 
E-Mail : chamish@netmedia.net.il 
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DIANA: A MANIFESTATION OF THE tAW OF HIGHER PERSPECTIVE ~ 

The Divine Plan is very complex, but, 
even so, it is important that we should strive 
to observe World Events that are being 
orchestrated from the Higher Spheres in 
order to support the activities of Light that 
are taking place on the planet. Such events -
despite their glamorous and sensation­
provoking coverage by the media - are 
designed with the utmost precision in order 
to draw the focus of humankind's attention to 
specific areas of the globe in order that 
Chalices of Light be formed for the purpose 
of opening portals of communication 
between Earth and the Higher Realms. 

For example, it was no coincidence that 
during the week prior to the Vernal Equinox, 
Hillary Clinton and her daughter Chelsea 
visited South Africa in order that the world 
might focus on the feminine presence' s of 
the First Lady of one of the most prominent 
countries in the world, and her daughter, in 
order that, through such feminine energy, the 
abuse of power, the lack of reverence for 
life, and the failure of existing social systems 
in that part of the world might be healed. 
Then, on the Vernal Equinox, President 
Clinton himself travelled to Helsinki for a 
summit with Boris Yeltzen, two men 
representing the two 'superpowers' who have 
brought the planet to the brink of 
annihilation, in order that the focus of 
humanity on that area of neutral ground 
might create a portal through which new 
paradigms for Divine Government and 
Eternal Peace might flood the Earth. 
Similarly, on March 23, as the Lunar Eclipse 
blazed through the anchorage point of the 
Feminine Polarity of God in South America 
and the comet Hale-Bopp passed closest to 
the Earth, Vice President AI Gore travelled 
to China, an area which, for long has 
effectively blocked and suppressed the 
balance of masculine and feminine power, in 
order that the new portal for Asia might 
allow paradigms for new social systems to 
become established. 

In the light of all this, what are we to 
make of the apparently untimely death of 
Diana, Princess of Wales? Now that the 
tributes have been made and the dust settled, 
what pronouncement can we make on this 
amazing event which, attracting more media 
coverage than any other event on the planet 
since time immemorial sent reverberations 
to the Four Corners of the globe. Of course, 
the media coverage, reflecting the emotional 
response of most people, was about the 
'form' aspect, in the light of which battles 
raged over the cause of the death in the form 
of the chauffeur in one comer and the 

By JO HN CROWE 

paparazzi in the other; the withering attack 
on the monarchy and the establishment in 
general ; and the incredible emotional 
response on the part of almost every man, 
woman, and child on the planet. But how 
are we to view the event in the light of the' 
Law of Higher Perspective?' 

The 'Law of Higher Perspective 
requires that we see good in all things. 
This means that it is not functional to 
dwell on the negative aspects of situations, 
such as asking 'Why did so-and-so deserve 
this?' Instead, what is required is for the 
heart to perceive the positive benefits of all 
things and how they contribute to the 
greater plan of creation. For we must 
recognise that when high-level souls 
become involved in bizarre 'accidents' or 
seemingly unpleasant events, such as 
betook Princess Diana at the point of her 
death, it is USUALLY FOR A HIGHER 
PURPOSE. Many of the souls who are 
involved in such incidents are Ascended 
Masters in disguise and are often 
individuals who have achieved high 
visibility in the eyes of the general public. 
When a high-level soul becomes involved 
in such an incident, it is more than likely 
that an agreement was made with that 
individual's Spiritual Self to undergo the 
experience. In such a case, the individual 
concerned would have chosen to 
experience the incident, as unseeming as it 
might have been, becausethe enactment of 
such an event would serve to arouse a 
specific response on the part of the general 
public. When this is the case, the 'sacrifice' 
serves to accelerate humanity's 
consciousness and what would normally 
take years to achieve in acceptance and 
tolerance, takes only a few moments or 
days because of the love and emotions 
emitted. 

Seen in the light of the 'Law of Higher 
Perspective', what, therefore, are we to 
make of the death of Diana, Princess of 
Wales? Basically, the death of Princess 
Diana was designed to accelerate 
humanity's consciousness in at least three 
ways. Firstly, it was in order that we might 
grasp the difference between the transitory 
and the transcending. For we live on a 
planet, which, for the most part, focused 
on the delusory and illusory 'glamour' 
aspects of life, craves for the material. The 
world's 'National Lottery' craze -which is, 
at depth, anything but an altruistic thing -
is illustrative of this. In other words, it 
craves for anything other than that which 
endures. So, Princess Diana, during the 

last few months leading up to her death, 
permitted herself to be saturated with the 
material. The most-photographed lady on 
this planet sacrificed herself on the altar of 
the world's media in order that the whole 
world might see 'the happiest days of her life' 
which she spent in the company of her friend 
Dod i. She offered herself up in order that we 
might all drool over what we perceived she 
had, for what wouldn't any of us have given 
to be in her shoes? Then 'bang'! At the very 
height of her luxurious enjoyment, which we 
all craved for, she was gone. 

'For 
What did we call you? 'Di' 
We called you 'Di 
Die for us Die 
Sacrifice yourself for us 

Show us 
Through YOUR death 
That 
Despite all our cravings 
For your outward glamour 
And our clamour 
For what seemed 
'(Via media exaggeration 
Which caused your death's 
precipitation) 
Like life eternal 
You showed us that 
Mortis Rigor 
Of a well-known public figure 
Is the best way to teach the people 
Values of the Supernal 
Insofar as that 
The biggest egos 
Which set the world alight 
Can be struck off 
Life's stage 
Overnight 
Like the Great Bard's 
Brief candle 
Snuffed out 
Without a flicker of a fight 
For you 
Di 
Before you came 
Signed a contract 
That 
Through your pre-eminence 
And fame 
You 
Through your premature death 
Would teach the world 
Clamouring for life never ending 
To differentiate 
Between 
The TRANSITORY 
And 
The TRANSCENDING.' 
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But Princess Diana was not just a 
glamorous limelight-hugging figure. For a 
habit would have sat as comfortably upon 
her shoulders as designer clothes. She would 
have made as gracious a nun in the 'Bells of 
StMary' s' as Ingrid Bergman! Little wonder 
that she so easily aligned herself with such a 
self-sacrificial being as Mother Teresa, who, 
surely uncoincidentally, drew her Earthly 
days to a close but a few days after the 
passing of her Earthly friend and spiritual 
colleague. For, as she was, in lives past, to 
be found in many positions of public 
eminence - especially in the royal courts of 
Egypt and Syria - so was she to be observed 
doing homage to the mighty in many 
convent and monastic situations in both the 
Orient and the Occident. She was indeed a 
Queen -the Queen of People's HEARTS, as 
she herself said. It was her open heart, which 
enabled her to comfort, orphaned children; 
to caress those plagued with AIDS, to walk 
in the midst of landmines. And so we come, 
quite naturally, to the second reason for 
Princess Diana's 'untimely' death. Her open 
heart ENABLED US TO OPEN OUR 
HEARTS, IN A COLLECTIVE SENSE, as 
witnessed by the amazing scenes on the day 
of her funeral, and for many days afterwards. 
A humanity, which had been well-and -truly 
polarised, consciousness-wise at the level of 
the solar-plexus energy centre of the body 
(the narcissistic centre of the lower self) had, 
at long last, OPENED ITS 

COLLECTNE HEART. 

And so to the third 'higher-perspective' 
reason for Diana's death. As the years went 
by, so she became stronger in her own spirit, 

so much so that the 'Establishment' didn't 
really know what to do with her. It is even 
purported that the Queen herself called her 
'That IMPOSSIBLE girl.' And, of course, 
she was 'impossible.' All people, who stand 
in the strength of their own spiritual power 
are 'impossible' so far as the Establishment 
is concerned, and our history books are 
littered with such individuals who have 
been strong enough to cock a snook at it. 

We stand at a point in time in 
humankind's history when the 
Establishment is cracking at the seams. 
This statement is not made in any anti­
Establishment sense. It is merely a fact that 
the collective thought-forms and 
archetypes that society's structures have 
been founded on are being re-evaluated at 
such depth that the structures themselves, 
which form our 'Establishment', are past 
their sell-by date. However, it is doubtful 
whether the people recognised this in any 
meaningful way until the day of Diana's 
funeral. Then, on that day, it became 
apparent that the societal structures which 
we had were quite insufficient to contain 
the newly-awakened spiritual power -
symbolised by Diana - which is beginning 
to surge through the people. For the day of 
Diana's funeral, released, in the immortal 
words of the late Sir George Trevelyan, a 
'Rising Tide of Love' which futile attempts 
to reform the monarchy, modernise the 
government, and update the church, will 
NEVER be able to contain. Indeed, such 
attempts would be t miss the point. The 
point is this: on the day of Diana's funeral, 
the Establishment was quite unable to 

gauge the feelings of the 
people. It was not so much 
a day, which marked the 
ending of old, worn-out 
Establishment, forms - it 
was a day which marked 
the RE­
EMPOWERMENT OF 
THE PEOPLE. It was a 
day in which new 
archetypes, on which a 
new civilisation is to be 
founded, flooded into our 
consciousness from the 
Etheric World 

It was interesting - and 
almost amusing - to note 
some of the unctuous 
comments of the religious 
leaders about Diana. The 
Archbishop of Canterbury 
and others of such ilk 
commented that she had 
not been overmuch 
interested in organised 
religion and THEIR 
conception of God. Of 

course she hadn't. There had been little 
reason for her to BELIEVE in ANY god 
'outside' of herself. SHE WAS A LNING 
EXPRESSION OF THE GOD-FORCE 
WITHIN HERSELF. And if, as some 
commentators have pointed out, that her life 
was less than perfect, we should exclaim 
Thank God for that!' The time of plaster 
saints is over. The Spiritual Masters are 
again beginning to walk the Earth. But such 
are not dressed in ecclesiastical vestments, 
habits, or white robes. They are dressed in 
anything from tiaras, tracksuits, and trainers. 
It was the perceived IMPERFECTION of 
Diana with which we, the people, identified: 
an imperfection matched with unbridled 
spiritual power. Little wonder that the day of 
her funeral was, according to the Mayan 
Calendar, te Day of the 'White Galactic 
World-Bridger.' For Diana had truly, 
'bridged the gap' between the terrestrial and 
spiritual worlds: something that no 
organised religion could ever do. She gave 
US - the people 

- The impetus to say 'I, despite all of my 
imperfections, could express MY spiritual 
power like that.' For she was, in truth, a 
living symbol of an imperfect personality 
aligned to its perfect spiritual self One 
national newspaper suggested that Diana had 
created a new religion in which the first 
commandment is 'Adhere to your inner self 
Has any other TRUE religion ever existed? 
In our re-recognition of such, she gave -and 
gives- us eternal hope. 

There is a tendency, after the most 
remarkable and Earth-shattering incidents 
have passed, for life to settle down in its old 
familiar ruts again. But not so this time. 
Diana, despite the world-wide popularity of 
the song, was no 'Candle in the Wind.' She 
was a brilliant, blazing, burning light, which 
shone like a comet in the darkness of our 
world- and in the words ofSt John's Gospel, 
the darkness will never be able to overcome 
it. It is a light that will NEVER be 
extinguished. For that light will continue to 
glow in the hearts of us all, as people re­
empowered, till such time as we build a new, 
spiritually orientated, civilisation upon the 
Earth. 

For such will be the ultimate outcome 
seen from the 'Law of Higher Perspective.' 

{Unfortunately I do not know who John 
Crowe is, and I am perplexed by this 
article. I do not understand much of what 
is said but in true Truthseekers style, as 
long as it is well written then we will 
publish it .... This is our non-judgemental 
approach. Hope this reaches whoever it 
was intended for, also sorry if it causes 
offence to anyone -ED} 



By Jonathan Hurst 

Close Encounters ,., Remote Viewing ,., Alien Communication ,., Readers' Questions 
A Column by Jonathan Hurst and Janice Jackman (Truthseekers Yorkshire) 

VAUNDA HOSCIK · PART II 

Last July, Jan and I met with our friend 
Chris Martin at Hyde Park, London. As 
mentioned in our previous article, Chris 
used to be the boyfriend of contactee 
Vaunda Hoscik, until their separation in 
October 1996. A chapter is devoted to them 
in Nick Pope's second book, The Uninvited. 

One purpose of this meeting was for Jan 
to channel for the third time, the hybrid alien 
called Minnie (see previous article). This 
entity is apparently the offspring of Vaunda 
Hoscik, and took Chris to be her adoptive 
father since his time with Vaunda. 

Minnie settled into Jan's body, very 
excited and tearful to see Chris again after 
some ten months of separation. They hugged 
and caressed one another throughout the 
meeting, conversing on matters completely 
unknown to Jan and myself. At one point 
Chris pulled out a packet of menthol 
cigarettes - immediately Minnie's (or Jan's) 
eyes lit up as she asked for one. Upon being 
reminded that she was 'borrowing' someone 
else's body, Minnie reluctantly changed her 
mind. Chris then revealed that menthol 
cigarettes were her favourite. 

After 35 minutes, Minnie's time came to 
an end. She left after giving Chris a big hug, 
and Jan returned seconds later. We could see 
Chris was clearly moved by the 
extraordinary experience, exclaiming that he 
was totally convinced of its genuineness. 

Here we obtained further repeatable 
proof that the body is but a mere channel for 
any non-physical personality who wishes to 
inhabit it. 

THE DAY AFTER ROSWELL 

The Day After Roswell by Colonel Philip 
J. Corso (Ret.), is an astonishing story of 
how the US military allegedly won a secret, 
50-year war against hostile Greys by turning 
their technology against them; consequently 

saving the entire planet. From 1961 to 
1963, as part of Army R&D's Foreign 
Technology Division at the Pentagon, 
Corso claims to have spearheaded a plan to 
adapt and use viable technical components 
of the Roswell craft, for military and 
commercial purposes. According to Corso, 
much of the technology we now take for 
granted was derived from the Roswell craft 
(and others retrieved since). Such as night 
VISIOn, lasers, fibreoptics, integrated 
circuitry, supertenacity fibres, and 
biofeedback headbands. 

The book begins with a composite 
account of the alleged UFO crash, claimed 
to be based on military and official 
sources. The book contains a chapter on 
EBE physiology, according to official 
autopsy reports (which corroborated data 
already received by Jan). Corso also 
confirms the nearby San Augustin crash, 
Majestic-12, animal mutilations, human 
abductions, Area 51, alien moon bases, 
anti-UFO technology, reasons for UFO 
cover-up, and a reluctant treaty with the 
EBEs. "These creatures weren't 
benevolent alien beings who had come to 
enlighten human beings. They were 
genetically altered humanoid automatons, 
cloned biological entities, actually, who 
were harvesting biological specimens on 
Earth for their own experimentation. As 
long as we were incapable of defending 
ourselves, we had to allow them to intrude 
as they wished. And that was part of what 
the working group [MJ-12] had to deal 
with. We had negotiated a kind of 
surrender with them as long as we couldn't 
fight them. They dictated the terms 
because they knew what we most feared 
was disclosure. Hide the truth and the truth 
becomes your enemy. Disclose the truth 
and it becomes your weapon. We hid the 
truth and the EBEs used it against us until 
197 4 when we had our first real shootdown 
of an alien craft over Ramstein Air Force 
Base in Germany." 

Toward the end of the book, Corso 
attempts to make the reader feel as though 

the world is safe from hostile aliens thanks 
to the almighty US Government. He claims 
the Strategic Defence Initiative is up and 
running, busy disabling incoming UFOs. 
Apparently this has forced the aliens into a 
stalemate, yet he fails to mention how the 
military could successfully combat a UFO 
armada nor huge motherships (miles in 
diameter), Jet alone other races with even 
superior technology. Throughout the book, 
Corso naively implies that all UFO craft are 
piloted by hostile EBEs (alias Greys), and 
does not even consider that there may be 
benign visitors; even of that same species. 

During his career as an intel officer, 
Corso admits to having worked for 
counterintelligence; so should be an adept at 
bending the opinion of others through 
cleverly constructed disinformation. 

JOINT ENCOUNTER? 

On the morning of Saturday, 11th 
October 1997, both Jan and I awoke with a 
severe headache. Upon getting out of bed, 
we noticed that the covers had neatly rotated 
90 degrees, with the sides now top and 
bottom. They were certainly not like this the 
night before. 

We suspected a visitation may have 
taken place, so I persuaded Jan to investigate 
with remote viewing. Here is what she saw ... 

While both asleep in bed at around 4am, 
a luminescent figure entered the room 
through the closed French doors. It glided 
toward the foot of the bed and looked at us. 
In turn, it came round each side and stared at 
our heads - Jan felt that the entity was 
accessing information stored in our head 
implants, concerning our physical health. 

The entity, whom Jan recognised as 
Anraa (see Contactee Viewpoint #1), then 
disappeared. 

Jan and I then got out of bed, pushing 
the covers to the floor, and walked to the 
centre of the room. As we left the bed, a 
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vertical shaft of pale yellow light appeared 
in the room's centre, from floor to ceiling 
(and strangely, did not illuminate the 
surrounding darkness). In what seemed to be 
an altered state of consciousness, we entered 
the shaft (some 3 feet wide), embraced, and 
began to ascend in a rotational manner 
through the ceiling. While remote-viewing 
this, Jan felt we were being shifted into 
dimension 3.5. She saw us rise through the 
roof and proceed upwards until entering the 
underside of a stationary disk-shaped craft, 
about 30 feet in diameter. 

Still in an altered state, we found 
ourselves in what appeared to be the control 
room of the ship. Already present in the 
room were four Greys, around 3 Y2 feet tall. 
One of them then led us to a doorway, at 
which point we both heard a voice in our 
heads that said we were going to a warm, 
sunny beach; and all we' ll want to do is 
make love. 

Unescorted, we entered the room, which 
was dark. As it became light we found 
ourselves on a beach as described. Both 
naked, we proceeded to make love until 
some 20 minutes later when the sky became 
stormy and dark. The scene faded away, and 
a Grey then entered and led us back to the 
control room. Present were three other Greys 
and Anraa, our acquaintance. 

Next we descended the light shaft, still 
in an altered state, back into the bedroom. 
After putting the covers back onto the bed 
(wrong way round), we got in and went to 
sleep. 

If true, this account further corroborates 
other independent abduction stories that 
feature what appears to be an advanced 
'Virtual Reality' technology. It is possible to 
alter a person' s perceived surroundings 
under hypnosis, but not with two persons 
experiencing an identical illusion. Maybe 
the Greys' VR technology involves hypnosis 
and a telepathic computer-brain interface to 
regulate the shared experience? 

ALLEGED INTERFERENCE BY US 
GOVERNMENT REMOTE 

VIEWER 

On 20th October 1997, I invited any 
non-hostile ETs who were in contact with 
the US Governrnent to talk with us. Janice 
began to receive mental pictures of several 
beings, then fell into an unexpected trance. 
Regaining consciousness a minute or so 
later, Jan claimed that while looking at these 
beings, she suddenly became caught inside a 
'net' and felt as though being scanned. She 
felt whatever it was that 'caught' her took a 
look through her physical eyes (still open) 
before releasing her from the trance state. 

Upon my request for identification, Jan 
began to hear an American female voice 
inside her head. The 'woman' stated that 
she worked for the US Governrnent. I 
questioned as to what she was doing. She 
replied that her job was to intercept any 
telepathic communications directed at ET 
races working with the US Governrnent. 
During the conversation, the lady sounded 
very patriotic and seemed to perceive non­
Americans as an inferior species. I asked if 
she had a family, to which her reply was 
no. She belonged to a team of remote 
viewers and lived on the base (Janice felt 
was in Michigan). Her team worked two 
4-hour shifts with a 2-hour lunch break. I 
asked what she would do now that she was 
aware of us, and she replied, "Make a 
report." After asking a couple more 
questions she abruptly ended the contact. 
Janice felt that we were being watched by 
four remote viewers, the other three 
remaining silent. Unfortunately, my 
suggestion to talk via telephone was 
declined. 

Next, I asked our non-physical helpers 
to prevent this from happening again, then 
repeated the invitation. Janice now 
received a mental image of a group of 
seven Greys. Before opening contact, I 
asked her to scan them and discern their 
level of consciousness. She felt they were 
neutral, of the 'Grey-Two' category (see 
Contactee Viewpoint #3). 

They seemed to be okay, so we 
exchanged a few words. Apparently, the 
US Governrnent has agreed to give them a 
piece of barren land in exchange for 
technology; in particular, weapons. I asked 
why they were giving the US Governrnent 
weapons, when (according to Colonel 
Corso, etc.) they have been turned against 
them. They admitted that members of other 
factions have been killed by the 
Americans, but not them. They agreed that 
interactions with the 'rogue' Greys were a 
big mistake - "The US Governrnent have 
dug themselves a big hole." Apparently, 
our governrnents do not pose a threat to 
them, as their technological gifts are 
merely 'placebos' . Within 2Y, years, they 
said, the US Governrnent plans to 
announce their existence. 

When talking about the acquired land, 
Janice received images of Arizona. At the 
moment, this Grey faction claims to be 
extensively examining the environment, in 
preparation to constructing a subsurface 
base there. 

ONICOLONA 

On 29th October 1997, Jan 

TRUTH SEEKER§ RH1EW -Issue 17 Page 14 

telepathically received the following poem 
from Oni Colona (see previous articles): 

Learn to live, learn to die, 
Open your heart and learn to fly 

Amongst the flowers and the trees, 
Be like the leaves in the warm, gentle sun 

In an Autumn breeze. 
Feel the life all around, 

For a leaf doesn't die when it falls to the 
ground, 

Life and death are a circle, 
They go round and around. 

It's easy to say, 'Look away, look away, ' 
But life won't stop turning 

And the Earth keeps on learning. 

Oni Colona often communicates through 
song and poetry. At the time of receiving the 
above, Jan was upset because a close friend 
had been acting out of character and 
avoiding contact. This friend finally 
admitted that she had a great fear of aliens, 
especially the thought of them freely 
entering her bedroom. That same day, 
another ET friend called Anraa (mentioned 
earlier) offered the following condolence: 

"Now you see why we must take care 
and act in the manner we have chosen to 
observe. Even those around you, whom you 
have deemed open and ready to receive 
information, have disappointed you with 
their responses. This is why we must 
continue for the present time in your linear 
world, to try and remove the trauma of 
memories most of you cannot understand. 

"Some of you are ready, and it is the 
hardest task of all to relay your perspective 
on these matters to those who are living in 
fear of themselves. Let this not discourage 
you, for you are the golden ones and will 
continue with your quest. Try not to bear ill 
will towards those who will not listen, for 
they are the ones who need you most. Give 
them more time and their questions will 
come. It is our love for you that brings us 
here and now. Our love is the strength that 
will give the power for your survival. 
Continue." 

'If we are being visited by aliens, why 
don 't they just land on the White House 
lawn?' is a question often posed by sceptics. 
Obviously, this question is based on very 
shallow thinking. Many of us realise that the 
matter is far more complex. Repeatedly, 
contactees have been told by the aliens that 
the world must be deemed ready for ' open 
contact' before such a scenario can take 
place; that humanity' s 'collective invitation' 
has to reach a critical mass. Many ET groups 
hope this will be fulfilled by the New 
Millennium. Assisting this process, many 
claim, are UFO sightings, telepathic 
communications, close encounters, and crop 



formations. Also the media? 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

The following questions were 
telepathically answered by a 400-year-old, 
benign Grey called Teo (meaning, 'Anew'). 
From the year 2356, he claims to be the 
evolved version of an entity called 
'Antholas'; once known to contactee 
Vaunda Hoscik. According to Teo, 50 years 
earlier, while in contact with Vaunda, he 
experienced a 'crisis of identity' that led to a 
psychological rebirth. Teo says he is a 
scientist, specialising in human culture and 
education. 

Are you slaves to Reptilian Overlords, 
as some researchers believe? 

"I am aware of no such creatures 
aforementioned. However, if in some points 
of our lives it was to our advantage to let 
others believe that we are not responsible for 
our actions, what better way than to falsify 
this image and project ourselves as a 
controlled lifeforce." 

Does your race, as some researchers 
claim, work with a group of Reptoids from 
the Draco constellation? 

"There are many races, and also 
countless variations within one race type, 
that we have contact with. Over millennia, 
types have changed directives and service to 
their own and others' environment. Those 
who have chosen to conflict at one time may 
have settled their views or learned to accept 
their differences. 

"Service-to-self types have found that 
association with other service-to-self beings 
can manifest advantages which would 
otherwise be out of reach. Those who 
practise 'service to others', could look upon 
this as unacceptable - but only in relation to 
their puritanical views. Because a race 
chooses service to self, that does not make it 
evil, just part of the whole. 

"I have evolved because it served more 
purpose for me to do so. In my earlier 
existence, there were those who chose to 
communicate on our level, who were not of 
our kind. These beings were almost opposite 
in appearance to ourselves - large, heavy set, 
small eyed; although technologically 
speaking, equal in achievement and 
therefore intellectually comparable. 

"It was agreed between our two species 
to work alongside, absorbing the benefits 
this liaison could bring." 

What do the Draconians want from 
Earth? 

"It has been the knowledge ofVindaas, 
that the planet of Earth is transforming. An 
evolvement of any kind is always 
beneficial to many species and thus causes 
great interest. Is it necessary to explain 
what the Dracos require from Earth? 
Anything that becomes available, anything 
that is given or can easily be taken. The 
Dracos are not particularly human­
friendly, nor are they consciously 
preparing for combat." 

[Apparently, 'Vindaas' is a Reticulan 
name for the Cosmic Consciousness, 
whom they regard as God.] 

Do you foresee any government 
announcements of ET contact, made in the 
near future? 

"Ask them yourselves. Ask yourself -
utilise the dormant part of human brain and 
do some thinking. Make it happen, wake 
up refreshed from your millennia of 
slumber and realise your potential. 

"It is a case of who will dare to 
traumatise their nations first. All countries 
have prepared announcements, absolving 
them from any blame of secrecy. The 
knowledge will flow from a very small area 
and escalate. The problem with human 
race is the consuming passion for 
materialistic possession, which drives man 
to lie, cheat and deprive those who are 
dependent." 

The Roswell Incident - what do you 
believe happened? 

"Through this mind I can experience 
the beauty and innocence of a world 
overcome with greed and destruction. 
There is hope for some of you - great hope 
for us both. The eagle flies in the thoughts 
of this one, as on the day near Roswell, 
America. 

"To focus on an aim and to execute a 
mission with intent to succeed at whatever 
cost, shows strength within our race. If 
some are misguided, this does not mean 
the intentions are negative, only different 
to your own. 

"Two factions died on that day and 
many more since. All were volunteers and 
knew what had to be done. Neither faction 
were wrong, just had different answers to 
the same question. Canzelat [rest in 
peace]." 

With regard to the Roswell Incident, 
benign Greys have informed both Janice 
and I that the event involved two crashed 
UFOs - one piloted by neutral Greys and 

the other by rogues. Apparently, the rogue 
Greys had devised a plan whereby they 
could establish contact with the US 
Government, free of interference from the 
Galactic Council (see Contactee Viewpoint 
#1). 

According to our information, the rogue 
Greys decided to crash one of their ships in 
the New Mexico desert and wait in hopes of 
receiving an invitation of contact from the 
US Government. Apparently, this invitation 
was received- allowing the rogues to appear 
as passive participants in an exercise of 
human free-will. This stunt has supposedly 
prevented their immediate removal by the 
Galactic Federation, whose 'prime directive' 
is to honour our free-will. 

The other craft, said to have crashed in 
San Augustin, apparently collided with the 
'Roswell ' UFO while attempting to escort it 
away from the planet. 

Obviously, most claims made by these 
entities are difficult to verify - so make of 
them what you will. Our minds remain 
flexible. 

This article concludes the regular 

Contactee Viewpoint series, although the 

story is far from over. Recently, Janice 

ceased to be alone in her ability to trance­

channel our UFO contacts; a local 

investigator friend suddenly found he 

shared this ability and is now channelling 

entities familiar to Janice and myself. In 

addition, he claims to recall meeting with 

these beings in abduction-type scenarios 

across 20 years. Unbeknownst to himself, 

Janice recently claimed that he was 

present in one of our joint abductions. 

~atch this space ... 
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'A Covert Agenda' by Nick Redfern 
(Simon & Schuster) 

Book Review by Chris Fowler 

I first became aware of Nick Redfern and his investigations 
into our MoD and it's interest/ involvement with UFO 
sightings back in 1 992 when I got my first UFO book, The 
UFO Report 1992' by Tim Good. Nick's chapter was well 
written and researched and it was obvious that he was a 
good levelheaded researcher, which is something that is 
really called for in the minefield that is Ufology. As I bought 
more books and magazines on the subject I saw Nick's 
name come up more often. The first I knew of that Nick was 
writing his own book was in late 1995 in a letter from Tim 
Good. Tim informed me that Nick was writing a book about 
our MoD and UFOs, so I looked forward to its release, as 
there has never been such a book written entirely on this 
mater. 

Nick's book, 'A Covert Agenda' was finally released in 
October 1997 and was eagerly awaited by me as I had 
myself become familiar with our MoD and its position with 
regard to UFOs. I found that their stance was very shaky 
indeed! By this time I had visited the Public Records Office 
in Kew and had seen some of the released documents 
relating to UFOs firsthand, many of these contradict what 
the MoD will tell you when you write to them yourself, as I 
had done. For a number of years Nick has been visiting the 
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spending 
time looking 
at such 
documents, 
and also 
purchasing 
copies of 
t h e s e 
released 
documents 
himself. He 
has also 

writer 
(writing to 
m a n y 
department 
s of the MoD 
and also the 
FBI etc.), 
following up 
a lot of the 

leads in such documents. This has lead Nick to a wealth of 
useful and informative information. Nick also spent a 
considerable amount of time interviewing people himself, 
many of which being ex service men and women who have 
related details of many officially reported sightings that have 
occurrd over the years. All of this makes very interesting 
reading indeed. 

I found the book very easy to read and found it hard to put 
down once I had started. The book has the same feeling of 
credibility as Tim Good's classic 'Above Top Secret', leaving 
its contents hard to knock down, unlike some other UFO 
books I had read. The case Nick puts forward for our MoD 
being 'full of it', in so many words, is a very good one indeed. 
After reading 'A Covert Agenda' it's clear that contrary to 
the claims of people such as Nick Pope, it's does seem that 
there are other departments than Air Staff 2 who have 
more than a passing interest in UFO sightings. These 
include the Defence Intelligence Department, Provost & 
Security Services and others! No doubt they will be 
interested to read what Nick has written themselves. 
Anyone who is interested in UFOs should add this book to 
their shelves, read it first though! 

Nick has also written a book on the FBI and UFOs called The 
FBI Files', this looks to be just as good and will be in the 
shops in April of this year, published again by Simon & 
Schuster. 

(I have just finished the book too. I can agree with the above 
and add that there 
is something in this 
book for every UFO 
fanatic and also for 
newcomers. 
Written in a very 
easy to understand 
style and making 
proper emphasis of 
the important 
points I would say 
that this packed 
book (355 pages, 
small print) is very 
good value for 
money -ED} 

PRICED 16.99 AND 

AVAILABLE AT 

ALL OFF PLANET 

BOOKSTORES! 
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WOLSTONBURY 
I find starting this piece difficult. 

Perhaps it's because I'm still reeling from 
the impact of what appears to have been 
achieved atop Wolstonbury Hill, West 
Sussex, on the 28th June 1995. I say 'what 
appears' to have been achieved because 
other, seemingly unrelated at the time, 
pieces of mystical mayhem are still 
making themselves known, perhaps on a 
global level. I think I'd better make a 
start on this tale and take a stab at trying 
to bring it all together. 

For some years now I had felt that some 
Crop Circles were formed where ancient 
Stone Circles, ancient places of power, once 
were, and that those same Stone Circles/ 
Complexes were built on already existing 
patterns of sacred geometry, patterns that 
could only have been found by dowsing or 
clairvoyance. Also that these patterns 
created, by shape alone, a type of energy 
used for the maintenance of the earth and 
man and woman kind, cradling them in a 
cosmic balance so rare and fine that we can 
only guess at the harmony that existed then, 
perhaps hundreds of thousands of years ago, 
not even a blip in cosmic-time. 

As is now well established we 'know' 
that Crop Circles are fed by an earth energy 
line coming from a major earth energy 
source i.e. Cissbury Ring, Wolstonbury Hill, 
the Rollright Stones, Avebury, etc. There is 
usually water running underneath the site in 
much the same way that pre-reformation 
churches are usually built on old power sites 
used by the ancients and where water is still 
dowsable. We also know that 'sound' is very 
important. Think of ANY major religion 
where ceremony is performed and you will 
find that 'sound' always plays a great part in 
raising the energy of ceremony, even some 
of the weirder sects. (OOPS!) 

A group of us from CCCS Sussex had 
been involved in several attempts to interact 
with the circle-making force in previous 
years. So the idea formed that this year we 
would try and trigger one of these earth 
energy patterns into forming a crop circle by 
pouring energy into the grid by ourselves. 

What I needed to do was to find a site 
that had an etheric pattern already there, a 
cornfield that was already fed by an earth 
energy line with water underneath. I map 
dowsed the local area and came up with a 
site at Saddlescombe near Pyecombe just 
west of the A23. I got David Russell to 

... 

check my findings and he confirmed that it 
was a Place of Power. Although on a slope 
it was a fine cornfield. 

Next we had to contact the Guardian of 
Wolstonbury (Guardians are spiritual 
entities scattered throughout the landscape 
who look after the well being of areas 
about three or four miles square) from 
where the earth energy line was fed. 
Wolstonbury Hill is well known as a place 
of great energy, plus the fact that it is very 
beautiful and full of mystery and magic. 
Jason Porthouse and I set off for 
Wolstonbury one day in February. We 
drove to the bottom of the Hill, parked the 
car and sat there. 

DAM US 

As Jason is a novice channeller (and 
getting better all the time) I suggested that 
he open up' too to trying to contact the 
Guardian. It was a struggle. The Guardian 
had a couple of goes at connecting. In the 
end he made it and my face took on a very 
broad smile. Jason felt him too and that 
smile was endemic of the being we came to 
know as Damus. Jason questioned him 
and asked him whether he would help us in 
our quest to bring down a crop circle that 
was fed by an energy line that came from 
Wolstonbury Hill. H said that he would be 
delighted! I could 'feel' the joy in him, as 
if he were a child that had been 'kept in' 
and then was let out again to play with the 
human beings that he had not 'played/ 
worked' with for many hundreds of years, 
perhaps thousands. He would help us all 
he could but could guarantee nothing. 
From that moment on whenever Jason or I 
went near the Wolstonbury Hill area 
Damus would make a friendly 'grab' at us 
and we would feel his gleeful presence and 
a large smile would appear on our faces as 
he grew close. God knows what our 
passengers thought - "What the hell are 
you smiling about?" they would say. "Oh 
nothing, just thinking about someone I 
know." 

Andy Thomas, Barry Reynolds and 
Martin Noakes already knew what was in 
the air and had their full support. Michael 
Green was notified and other trusted 
members of Sussex Centre for Crop Circle 
Studies who were in on the Cissbury Ring 
' Transmission from Sirius' on June 28th 
1994, and a date was set for us to 

/!;~ 
congregate at my place in Lancing to have a 
serious talk with Damus and to hear from 
him what should be our duties concerning 
the stimulating of the earth energy line that 
ran through our chosen site. 

About a month later we all gathered to 
hear what Dam us had to say and we were not 
disappointed. He 'came through' beaming 
and smiling and expressed how happy he 
was to be "working with humans again". He 
gave us a brief history as to how he was 
chosen to be Guardian of the Whistling Hill. 
(Damus's name for Wolstonbury Hill. He 
said that in time past when the wind was in a 
certain direction the hill whistled but now 
with the new roads etc it was a rare event.) 
He was a Druid, he said, but that was not 
what they were really called. He said the 
word was nearer to 'Drood' then Druid and 
anyway was a collective name for the many 
priesthood's in England at that time. He was 
chosen to take over from the Guardian 
BEFORE he died in the earthly sense. It was 
a very great honour and he was delighted to 
except. He had to 'strike the oak' six times to 
complete his promise that he would serve the 
area known as Wolstonbury. Damus was 
asked what we needed to do in order to pour 
as much energy down the line as we could. 
He agreed that crystals should be held that 
would amplifY the energy. 

He also told us that the use of sound was 
very important. Prior to our meeting with 
Damus I had dowsed out a chord of music 
that would, perhaps, resonate with the 
natural sound that each of the eight sections, 
or Courier lines, of a main energy line 
possessed i.e. 1st Courier line is C natural, 
2nd Courier line is d natural, third courier 
line is E natural, and so on. The chord that I 
dowsed out was, A B Flat C Sharp D F and 
G Sharp. This was recorded and played for 
Damus to hear. He approved. A proper 
studio sound was later produced using only 
pure tones. The sound was eerie but very 
mystical. (Later folk were to say that the 
sound was very like the sound that had been 
heard many times before or just after a Com 
Circle had gone down. Something that I 
knew nothing about.) Damus was asked on 
what date we were to proceed. He told us: 
"the last new moon in June, at sunset." 
Sunset and dawn being powerful times when 
the elemental forces, or Divas, were at their 
strongest. So we had the 28th June ... agin. 
By now I was beginning to lose him, or he 
was beginning to lose me. At one stage I 
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lost him altogether, after about a minute he 
returned. But it was a strain to hold on to 
him and he said his goodbyes and told us 
that he was at our disposal. What a nice 
man. Damus is tall with a very large, kindly 
face, a huge beard and long hair. And 'yes' 
he WAS wearing a long white robe! He also 
carried a very long staff in his right hand that 
had the symbol of a half moon at its top. 

Meanwhile, back in the psychic 
workshop, I decided that I would seek out 
the help of one Jan Linch, a healer who uses 
colour and crystals in her work. We both 
knew that each Courier line that made up a 
major earth energy line corresponded in 
colour with the "Chakric"centres1 in the 
human body, as we are, every one of us, 
linked into the earth energy grid whether we 
like it or not. (See later article: EARTH 
COURIER LINES.) Not only were the 
colours the same and the sound vibrations 
the same but there were crystals that also 
resonated for each Courier line and human 
"chakra". It will take too long to go into 
detail as to what represented what but the 
correctly corresponding crystals were found. 

And so it was the long wait. Keeping 
the whole thing a secret was always difficult 
but necessary. Meanwhile Jason and Andy 
went and checked out the site at 
Saddlescombe to see where we could best sit 
facing the field. A route was fmally found 
that would enable us to get somewhere near 
the top of the hill where easy access was 
available for a bloke being wheeled up a 
mountain. Namely me! Sadly we couldn't 
actually see the field in question but was 
assured by Jason, no mean dowser, that the 
line that we were to lend the weight of our 
bottoms too was the one. (I decided that this 
year I would write an Invocation instead of 
uttering one off the top of my head.) 

Then came the part that shifted my 
perceptive. I got a call from Tony Mezen, a 
fellow psychic, who had received 
information for me, at 2 O'clock in the 
morning, the day before the experiment from 
someone calling herselfEile. "Do you know 
who Elle is?" I asked him. "No," he said, "I 
just got the name Elle." I told Tony that Elle 
or Ellen is one of the names of the Earth 
Spirit and that Lady Ellen was once my pet 
name for Gaia. Tony read the message out 
to me over the phone whilst I wrote it down. 
This is what it said: 

"/ am your Wyvern. It is the top, not 
level nor rocky, but earth on top. That is 
where Elle sleeps. But warning: do not 
wake Elle without magic iron. Bring song 
and word. But not when the sun sleeps, only 
in the light. Bring fire and water. Fire 
without soot, water without mud. Pure fire, 
pure water, earth and air are (as they are). 

Move where the path leads. Only three, no 
more. One staff, three stones. Many lie 
there, with marks, without marks. 
Between two ... " Message ended abruptly. 

This message hit me right in the Solar 
Plexus. I knew I had to make sense of it. I 
KNEW it was a reference to the 28th, the 
next day! Tony had no idea of what we 
were intending. No idea that we were 
engaging in any sort of experiment, let 
alone the next day! 

I read the message over the phone to 
Andy. I then asked him whether the 
description of: "It is the top, not level nor 
rocky, but earth on top." whether that fitted 
where we were going on the evening of the 
28th. He said that it wasn't quite the top 
but as high as we could get with a 
wheelchair. It was indeed "not level nor 
rocky." The earth on top' he wasn't sure 
about. I told him that I was taking this 
message seriously and told him that I felt 
that when the message said' Only three, no 
more. One staff.' This referred to Jason, 
Andy and myself. The staff was Damus! I 
told Andy not to worry; I'd sort it out. The 
reference to a 'Wyvern' was significant, a 
Wyvern is a mythical and Heraldic animal 
resembling a dragon. 

INVOCATION 

Dragon energy, or serpent energy is 
very often used to describe earth energy, or 
indeed the Kundalini energy. I charged 
some water to purify it then left it out in 
the sun for all of that day and the next. 
The reference to 'three stones' was to my 
mind perhaps, three stones that we would 
find on the top of the hill and decided to 
wait and see for myself. Meanwhile I got 
together an agate 'Fire Stone' to represent 
the 'Fire without soot' (the fire that does 
not bum), for the 'iron' I used a rare Iron 
Stone, or Bungie Stone that had been given 
to me by Tony many months before. I 
wrote another Invocation for just te three 
of us and 'knew' that this small ceremony 
with the Fire stone and Iron stone and 
purified water must be performed 
BEFORE the main Invocation and main 
activity of the whole group. 

I didn't have long to wait. The 28th 
arrived. We all met up in the Jack and Jill 
pub car park, much to the armoyance of the 
landlord. We promised we'd be back for a 
beer or three later after we had a walk! We 
took two cars to the first gate up the hill of 
Wolstonbury. I was then transferred to the 
wheelchair where we made our way to the 
target, or 'Transmission area'. Those 
involved were Michael Green, David 
Russell, Martin Noakes, Barry Reynolds 
and his wife Linda, Karen Douglas, and 
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her boyfriend Steve Alexander, (who in fact 
was manning the video camera much further 
down the hill covering our chosen field,) 
Andy Thomas, Jason Porthouse and myself. 

Earlier in the day I had received a call 
from Jason, whose job it was to dowse out 
which person should sit on what Courier 
line. He had a problem. For some reason 
which he could not fathom Karen was not 
supposed to sit on any of the eight lines. 
Jason asked me to check this. I got the same 
result. This was insane. Karen was a lovely 
lady and perfect for the job. How could we 
tell this sweet lady that she should not sit? 
Jason phoned Andy who suggested she sit 
on the number 9 Courier line! Now we 
weren't going to use number 9 because it 
was not fully activated, only working on 
25%. However we dowsed this out and got 
a very firm 'yes'. I had to hurriedly come up 
with another crystal for her as Jason had 
found that I too must sit on a line, namely 
number 8, I had thought that I was to sit 
apart in case Damus wished to say 
something. That was not to be. Later on of 
course I found out why we had to use 
number 9 Courier line. 

On reaching the top, just before the last 
gate, we stopped to rest and look around. 
The wind was so strong up there that you 
could hardly hear each other speak, it was 
also very cold, even though down at ground 
level it was, or had been, over 70 degrees. 
We just weren' t dressed for it. Andy lent me 
his sweater. I noticed that we were standing 
between three tumuli, two on one side of the 
'path' and one or more on the other. I 'knew' 
there and then that this was where 'many lie 
there. With marks, without marks. Between 
two .. .. I 'knew' this was the place where we 
must start the proceedings, Jason, Andy and 
I, this was 'where Elle sleeps': the sleeping 
dragon (energy), the life energy of Gaia 
Herself. The Tumuli (man made earth 
mounds) carry the remains of the ancient 
ones. Perhaps these burial mounds were 
once 'marked' with stones, now fallen and 
carried away. 

CROWN CHAKRA 

Time was running in all directions and 
the sun was making a rapid decent before it 
melted in its own crucible to be cast once 
again to ring the changes for the new day. 
We intended to start the main proceedings at 
8-45. Meanwhile David Russell had marked 
out the 9 Courier lines for us all to sit on. 
David also found that each line went in the 
opposite direction. One flowed toward our 
field the next would flow the other way. 
Michael Green checked David's findings and 
found them sound. Each was allocated their 
particular crystal and were told that at the 
given time they were to open their Crown 



Chakra (like a flower opening on the top of 
the head) and bring down the golden light of 
the Christ, take it into their bodies, then let it 
stream out through their solar plexus and 
into their crystal and thus into the ground in 
front of them. This we would do for 30 
minutes from 8-45. 

At about 8-20 Andy, Jason and myself 
made out way back to the burial mounds. To 
Andy I gave the Purified water to sprinkle on 
the mound, or very near it, as we couldn't get 
beyond the fence, at least with a wheelchair! 
To Jason I gave the Ironstone, for my part I 
had the Fire stone plus a small written 
Invocation to Lady Ellen (or Ayesha as Joeb 
calls her). The three of us crowded near the 
edge of the mound. I read the Invocation. I 
felt the strong presence of Damus. At a 
given point Jason buried his Iron stone. 
Then it was my turn to bury the Firestone, 
after which Andy sprinkled the area with the 
holy water. Damus came on strong then. I 
felt him raise his staff and plunge it into the 
earth. After a few minutes we made out way 
back to the others. "I don't know what you 
did over there, Paul," said David Russell, 
"but the lines have shot up in number from 9 
to 18 and then up to 27." Something was 
happening! 

I read the Invocation that I had worked 
on days before. We called on Lord Michael, 
Lord of the Angels of Light and mediator 
between the Human race and the Devic 
forces. We made out request for their co­
operation with our project and that it would 
be granted. I asked that Damus would be 
supported in his work. We asked that we be 
guided and sustained and that all this be 
done in the name of the Light. So be it. 
Damus came through then and had us start 
the proceedings. It was 8-47. The musical 
chord played constantly and seemed perfect 
for the job. 'Bring song and word', we had 
done that. 'Not when the sun sleeps' (at 
night) we had done that. No one pretends 
that meditating in that high wind was easy 
but at 9-1 0 Dam us brought the proceedings 
to a close. I felt a lot of energy and so did 
Michael Green, but we were so cold. David 
Russell did a spot dowse. The lines had now 
risen to 72! We came down the hill full of 
hope but expecting nothing. I was cold and 
tired and went straight home to bed. 

The next day I waited for the phone to 
ring. Nothing happened! I thought to 
myself: another psychic dead-end. That 
night Damus paid me a call: "You have done 
far more than you know. The number 9 
Courier line has now risen form 25 per cent 
up to 40 per cent. I glimpsed Lady Ellen. 
She told me about three circles that had been 
formed . She was smiling warmly. I was 
tired and wanted to sleep. But this was so 
strong. The next morning I woke refreshed 

and immediately dowsed the 9th energy 
line. It had risen from 25 per cent to 
between 40 and 45 percent. I couldn't 
believe it! I tried to phone David to check 
it out. He was out. I left a message on 
Jason's answering machine to dowse it out. 
I phoned another fellow dowser Hilda Bell 
and asked her to check it out also. Then 
the phone call! A crop circle had gone 
down in East Grinstead at Irnberhorne 
Farm near the A22. According to Barry 
Reynolds it connected in a straight line to 
Wolstonbury Hill. I needed this 
confirmed. Then I got my first call bck 
from Hilda. She confirmed it. The energy 
had risen to at least 40 per cent. Jason 
phoned in. He got between 40 and 45 per 
cent! Meanwhile David had got the 
correct map readings from Barry and 
confirmed that the crop circle was 
connected to the energy line that we had 
meditated in but that it had GONE DOWN 
IN THE · OPPOSITE DIRECTION! The 
energy we sent had gone not to 
Saddlescombe, but to East Grinstead! 

Not only that but the farmer was 
extremely friendly and so was his staff, 
plus the fact that I could, for once, drive 
my car to within 50 yards of the formation . 
The farmer told us that he had visited the 
field on Monday and Tuesday and one of 
his men had checked it on the Wednesday 
and there was no formation. But on 
Thursday morning there it was! After 
David had told me his findings I asked him 
to check the number 9 line. David got 40 
per cent! I asked him to check whether this 
was global. I heard him mutter: "You 
bugger!" He told me that the pendulum 
swung back and forwards. Which meant 
neither yes nor no. Jason tried it and got 
the same effect but when asked whether 
the energy was spreading around the grid 
he got a 'yes', and so did I. 

I kept wondering about Lady Ellen and 
the THREE circles. Perhaps the others 
would appear soon or have just not been 
found yet? Barry Reynolds had already 
suggested beforehand that he believed the 
six notes in the chord that I had dowsed 
out might result in six circular elements in 
any resulting formation, worked out from 
the diatonic scale. He phoned to tell me 
that this indeed corresponded with the six 
rings and circles found in the formation, 
each ring being of a different size and 
resonance! I asked Barry to tell me, as I 
hadn't had a chance to visit it yet, what the 
formation looked like. He described 
THREE SEPERATE RINGS riding due 
east west. "Did you say three SEPERA TE 
rings. I mean not superimposed on one 
another?" "That's right." he said, "one ring 
at the top, the second ring underneath 
containing a single ring within it and a 

third circle containing two rings!" "So that's 
what she meant!" I almost shouted. "She 
meant three crop circles IN THE SAME 
FIELD!" I wasn't going balmy after all. 
(Tha's a matter of opinion, I hear you 
scream.) 

But to cap it all, and for my money put 
the lid on it, we had three circles that 
corresponded in size to six circular sound 
elements, the very sound that we had played 
during that wild and windy time atop 
Wolstonbury Hill! 

At the last count the number 9 line has 
risen to 47 per cent. My understanding is 
that it will not be 100 percent until 1999. 
But the way things are going. Who knows. 

COSMIC SCHEDULE 

My information HAD been that the 
number 9 Courier line would not go up in 
strength until the end of July, beginning of 
August 195. Looks like the cosmic schedule 
has been brought forward somewhat. I also 
believe that what we achieved concerning 
the 9th line will become global by this same 
date. "These are the days of miracles and 
wonder, don't cry , baby, don't cry." We're 
heading toward a greater reality. The Truth 
itself never changes, only our conception of 
it. 

After all these years of trying it would 
seem that at last one of the Circle Makers 
has taken us into their confidence, that 
Circle Maker was the Earth Mother herself 
Perhaps it just took patience and trust mixed 
with dedication and love to come up with the 
right formula. Whatever it was we owe it all 
to forces outside of us who seem intent on 
plying us with knowledge .... a tiny piece at a 
time. 

FOOTNOTE: As I understand it 
the 'iron' and the 'fire stone' (agate) 
was an alchemical process. The two 
elements, a cocktail of two 
frequencies, needed a catalyst to 
release the energy they produced. 
The catalyst was the 'charged' water. 

1 Chakra - Energy centres of the 
body, used for healing- ED 

PAUL BURA 'S CHANNELED 
WORKS ARE A VILABLE FOR SALE 
IN BOOK FORM AND THE 
AUTHOR CAN BE CONTACTED 
FOR FURTHER DETAILS 
THROUGH THE MAGAZINE 
ADDRESS-ED 
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Interview between Ray Wardle and 
Matthew Williams conducted Winter 
1997. 

MW: I know that you have had a Jot of 
strange experiences and that your video 
footage and explorations into Area 51 have 
got you into some trouble. Readers have 
already heard about the incident in a hotel 
room during a UFO convention where you 
were drugged and hypnotised by suspect 
"UFO researchers". Can you tell us 
something about your other experiences. 

RW: I had a strange experience whilst 
driving in the desert one time. Out there the 
speed limit is about 55 Mph. I started to pull 
over, when I heard the siren of a police car. 
Now, not only was there no police car but 
there were no other cars at all. I was on my 
own. The very same thing had happened to 
me previously. I thought that I must be tired 
and had imagined it but since it happened a 
second time now I am wondering if I didn 't 
imagine it. 

So after I thought I had been stopped by 
the phantom police car I drove another 10 
miles to my home. I got in and then went to 
wake my wife, who was asleep on the couch, 
and the time was around 20 minutes after 3. 
I never realised back then that I had a period 
of"extra" time there until I looked back after 
the whole five days of that week. 

ELECTRONIC NOISE 

I was with my wife back in 89. By this 
time the weird stuff with the saucers, my 
filming them etc, had started happening but 
not to any great extent. It was an October 
evening and was very warm and was bright 
with moonlight. So my wife and me were on 
Highway 168 which runs between "I93" and 
"Il5" so it was a small and very lightly 
travelled road, except for this night! As we 
drove along and looked around we had seen 
some odd lights in the sky. They were way 
off in the distance and could really say if 
they were this or that. Then we heard this 
noise - an electronic noise. We had a full 
360-degree view and we could hear this 
sound but could not see where it was coming 
from. The noise kept coming closer and 
closer and in the end, when it got to be about 
what sounded like 12 feet away. I was then 
so scared that my knees were knocking. This 
is odd because that is not normally how I 
feel I would react to something like that. I 
remember myself saying, although I don' t 
know why I said this - "It 's the human 

element that is scaring me". 

There was a gap, at the time I wasn't 
aware that there was a gap, but suddenly 
the object/sound is in the distance going 
away from us. Now instead of me being 
frightened I am calm and relaxed. My wife 
and me then decided that we would go 
straight home. If I hadn't have been so 
scared in the beginning I would not have 
noticed the gap, but it was the stark 
contrast between one minute being scared 
and the next feeling fine that shows me the 
possible gap or time-loss. 

When we get home my wife goes to the 
bathroom and I get ready for bed. We are 
both very tired. When I got into the 
bathroom I noticed a scar on my left 
shoulder which I didn't have when I went 
out. There was also a scar on my right 
upper chest. A scar is the only expression 
I have for the marks. I have never had any 
marks there before! 

There were other strange things that 
went on, little things, too many to 
remember and some that I have forgotten 
now that caused me to be in such a state 
that I would come home frightened by 
what I expected I would find in the house. 
In time you would find me coming into my 
house every night with a 357 (gun) in my 
hand. There was one day where I thought I 
would set up surveillance in my house to 
see if I could catch some strange things 
happening whilst I was out. My regular job 
was in setting up surveillance in Casinos 
and so I knew exactly what I was doing. 

Continued report on the 
strange incidents of Ray Warale 

that would be it because I never really drank 
tea, so these tea bags had been there for 
goodness knows how long! Still on the night 
that this had happened I decided that I 
wanted a cup of tea and low and behold 
there were the two batteries. That is odd, and 
nobody could tell me that this was 
coincidence. 

This got me more interested and I 
decided to have another look at the tape. So 
when I ran the tape again, up to the point 
where I come in to the house that night. I do 
not appear to come into the house - I just 
appear out of the blue! Also behind me there 
is a light from the back bedroom of the 
house, which I was sure wasn't switched on 
that particular night. Another strange thing 
is I looked at the tape on freeze frame and it 
doesn't look like me for the first second and 
then it does. It is made more obvious that I 
did not edit the tape because you see me at 
the very last minute picking up the remote 
control and pointing it at the camera and you 
then see the infra red flash as the remote is 
activated. I stiJJ have this tape although I 
don't know what use it would be, as I cannot 
work out what is supposed to have happened 
here. 

WEIRD VIDEO 

I have got a lot of weird video footage of 
this and many other things. I have got too 
much footage! I think the air force and the 
military have got something to do with it for 
sure. 

MW: Can we talk a little about the 
incident in the Hotel. I saw the video of you 

When I would get home I would in the hotel room being interviewed by Miles 
review what had been recorded on tapes Johnson. It appeared you had been drugged 
that I set recording. This particular .--------= 
night I was viewing about the last 
hour of an 8-hour tape and then I 
noticed the sound had died down. I 
thought it was the batteries of the 
active microphone that was being 
used. I later found that the batteries 
had gone from the microphone! The 
funny thing was that these had 
vanished in view of the camera 
because the microphone was in plain 
view of the camera; so there was no 
way that somebody could have taken 
them without being seen! On top of 
this I eventually found the two 
batteries and they were placed inside 
the sleeve to a Liptons tea bag - the 
pouch you get with dip in tea bags! 
Now ifl drunk a cup of tea in a year 

Photo (c) Miles Johnson 
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and hypnotised by susptcwus people at a 
UFO conference. The film shows an unusual 
blanking of the audio, which should not have 
been there. Can you explain about this? 

RW: I don't know what all this is about; 
Miles has got all this nonsense stuff on there 
(the videotape). I mean I am not saying that 
it didn't happen -just that it is nonsense -
(i.e.) it makes no sense to me. I have no idea 
what took place. But then this happening is 
no more nonsense than what happens so to 
me in general. I don't recall the interview at 
all, you see. I didn't even know that Miles 
had taped me and that the thing existed. 
Miles sent my parents a copied tape of the 
hotel room interview and my parents are 
telling me about it and I am saying to them, 
"nah I don't know what this is". It wasn't 
until June or July of the next year that the 
tape got to me via Bill Uhouse. 

Well actually I remember bits about 
what happened. I think I wrote notes about 
the situation but upon reading these notes 
back, they didn't make sense. I can 
remember thinking that the whole situation 
seemed nuts, like a sketch out of Monty 
Python. Vaguely I can remember being on 
this bed and there was a red head (woman) 
on the other bed. I can remember at the time 
thinking that they were a bunch of perverts 
and they wanted me to "give her one" and 
for them to watch <laughs>. I am laughing 
because it helps me with looking back on it. 

DRUGGED 

MW: Were you taken against your will. 

RW: I was taken against my will for 
sure, somebody drugged me, that's for sure! 
It took me a week to get over it. I think that 
somebody forgot to take me out of a trance 
state or something. Was due back in work on 
a Wednesday. I phoned up the insurance 
people and said I needed to find a hypnotist 
straight away, well working for security at a 
top Las Vegas casino and asking the people 
there to get you a hypnotist doesn't sound 
right does it ... Then they wanted to know 
why. I had to tell them that somebody had 
hypnotised me and forgotten to snap me out 
of it. I know it sounds "nuts". My wife was 
looking at me in a strange light and she 
found it hard to believe. 

MW: What about the footage you have 
got which you allege shows you being shot 
at from a helicopter. 

RW: I tried to get it shown on TV. 
London Weekend Television have got the 
tape, CNN have got it the FBI have too. The 
FBI sent me a fax back saying that they see 
no reason to investigate it any further. What, 
are they mad? I go to internal affairs over 

this - there are some people from Internal 
Affairs who get heavy with me. 

I can tell you something else, which I 
can't quite come to terms with either. 
Miles Johnson says he came to see me in 
Vegas, I don't think it was Miles Johnson 
who came to see me in Vegas. I don't think 
he even got to Vegas - he may have a 
memory of being here but I don't think. 
When I met him at the airport that was 
strange because he was shorter than I 
remember him being. Also he wasn't such 
a big build as the Miles I remember. When 
he was waiting for his luggage he let his 
bags go straight past him and didn't spot 
them the first time. They are very 
distinctive aluminium flight cases and he 
lets them just go straight past. 

Miles is a good drinker and he can 
certainly knock back his pints of Guinness. 
Well not this Miles - he drank one and a 
half bottles of beer and he was blotto. I 
though that he must have been tired from 
the trip. 

Thinking back another strange thing 
was whilst I was waiting for him at the 
airport I was instructed that everyone who 
had got off the plane was coming down the 
escalators. I was waiting at the bottom for 
him and all these people who had just 
arrived came down and he wasn't one of 
them . The next thing I see is Miles coming 
out of a door marked private on the ground 
floor. 

{I checked with Miles Johnson. Miles 
does remember the door being marked 
private. Miles did not know the style of the 
airport and doesn't think this was strange. 
He seems to remember all of the events of 
his getting off the plane. -ED} 

There is a shot of Miles in my room 
when the video surveillance camera is on. 
He is there looking in the mirror and this is 
the only shot I have of him on video to 
prove what he was looking like whilst he 
was over. I think I still have this on tape. 

Miles was supposed to have come from 
Ireland to London to get on the plane, 
which would take him to Las Vegas. He 
was getting to Vegas because he was 
fogged in. Then suddenly he changed his 
story to say that he came direct from 
Shannon to Las Vegas and that he was 
fogged in there. I brought this point up and 
said "hang on, you just said you were 
coming from London." Besides that I 
checked to see if there was any fog over in 
the UK and I found that there was none, 
not even anything close to fog. 

{Miles later explained this as bad 

recall from Ray - and his version is that the 
mix up was due to fog and that he had 
landed at Cardiff Airport as a stop before 
going to London. Miles says that Ray 
probably didn't hear him correctly- MW} 

RW: He was booked into one hotel, but 
decided that he didn't want it. Apparently he 
had booked himself in on the wrong dates 
also. I don't quite know how he could make 
that mistake, but he did! 

We were driving through Las Vegas and 
I was chatting to Miles about a few things. I 
knew that he had a Toyota Supra (car) back 
in the UK - I have been in it. When we were 
driving along a Supra passed us and I 
pointed out that it was the same car as he 
has. He said "No , I've got a Celica". I said 
that last time I had been over he had a Supra 
and to this he got really angry and snapped at 
me and said ''No, I've got a Celica! I should 
know what car I have got!" The way he 
reacted was quite strange. Also the guy 
usually had a big appetite ... Not over in the 
us. 

I haven't spoken to Miles since all of 
this happened anyway. He doesn't speak to 
me anymore- I don't know why. 

MW: I know that he attributes the 
strange events at the Hotel where you were 
abducted by humans and drugged and the 
subsequent strange effects on the video 
recording sound. He is now convinced that 
you are carrying around some sort of 
negative spirit force or energy with you and 
that if he bothers with you that this will in 
some way rub off on him. 

RW: Well I wouldn't know exactly -
well perhaps there is? (laughs) 

MW: I heard that there was an event 
whereby somebody had seen you change in 
physical appearance from human to reptilian 
alien in appearance. Do you know anything 
about this? 

RW: I don't know anything about it. 
Ohhh (pauses) I don't know what you would 
call it. Something channelled itself through 
me - I know that. Then I go to channelling 
sessions with people such as Darryl Anka. 
He channels "Bashar". I was doing 
automatic writing stuff at that time and my 
wife read it and tore it up and was very upset 
what I had written. 

(Ray backtracks) The entity that came 
through me seemed to be able to switch 
"me" off and work directly through my body. 
It is as if I wasn't there and didn't know 
what was happening - like as if I was in a 
comer somewhere, except for the one time 
when I was still in control of my body and 
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"it" (the entity) told me to ask my wife a 
question. I was to ask my wife "What was 
your reaction when I told you I saw the 
saucers through the window." Her response 
was "I don' t remember you telling me 
anything like that", which shocked me. The 
entity, or whatever it was, then said to me, 
"Point made". It had made a point actually. 
It made a very strong point. The same 
intonation and tone and sound of that 
statement "Point made" I heard on a 
channelling tape of Bashar recently. {which 
was taped via an internationally known 
channeller} . Reflecting back on the 
incidents which occurred during that period 
I wish I had asked the entity to identify 
himself 

{Ray has since explained that the entity 
was making the point that his wife had 
forgotten an important and memorable event 
- the event was where Ray had seen saucer 
shaped UFOs through the window of his 
house. The entity was trying to show that for 
some reason Ray's wife had forgot the event, 
was made to forget or perhaps, more 
strangely, was somehow not present when 
Ray is left believing that she was. How these 
or other things could be possible were not 
explained by the entity, but the fact that the 
entity was able to show this lapse seemed 
important to Ray. Incidentally Rays wife 
came to see the same saucer two weeks after 
the initial sighting.- ED} 

IMPlANT 

MW: Has anything strange happened to 
you recently? 

I have obtained an implant in the last 
few weeks. I have a scoop mark on my right 
thumb. It actually fooled me because on 
occasion I have arthritis on the left-hand 
thumb. It flares up infrequently and it is 
painful when it does. When it did I thought 
that it was back. It took me two days to 
realise that it was the wrong thumb. When I 
realised and I looked and there was a scoop 
mark there. I actually know about a scar on 
the left thumb and the reason I remember 
this is because of the earlier injury on that 
thumb that I now have arthritis. There was 
no such scar or mark on the right thumb until 
this scoop mark recently. 

MW: Was it true that at some time in the 
past when you were in the services you had 
a UFO encounter. 

RW: I was in the Royal Air Force. I saw 
an object. I was with somebody else who 
saw it at the same time and I can't remember 
who that person was. This bothers me. Also 
I didn't remember that I had seen the object 
for a lapse of25 years which also bothers me 
greatly too. It is in the book Above Top 

Secret and it is not how it happened. It was 
implied that some guys were drunk. I was 
16 years old at the time. Had I been drunk 
then they would have locked us up. 

I've had some flash backs of working 
in an underground base somewhere. I 
know that the base is about 20 Miles up the 
Newmarket road, twenty miles exactly- up 
from Oakington. It was on the left hand 
side and it was named "Eureka". At the 
time it was an abandoned airfield and a 
bombed out control tower and stuff. I had 
a motorcycle and I had to cover it with 
tarpaulin and walk across to a trapdoor and 
get down via that entrance but I can't 
remember any more than that because for 
some reason it hurts when I try to think of 
those things. That memory is blocked by 
pain I know this much. I didn't even 
remember that memory until one day I was 
driving in the desert. Goodness knows 
what went on down there in that 
underground base. 

Still I can't believe that somebody 
aged 15-18 is going to be privy to anything 
of any consequence, that ' s for sure, unless 
by accident. 

MW: The Las Vegas footage you shot 
showing the lights, can you explain what is 
going on there. Well I looked at that 
footage the other day and realised that 
there is more going on there than I ever 
realised before. There is stuff on the 
mountain. I also made a mistake and 
thought that the mountain that I was 
photographing was the one with the 
antennas on it, it is not. It is the other one -
the aerial mountain is on the left of the 
range. I can ' t understand how I made that 
mistake. The new UFO looks like an 
upside down triangle with lights on it. I 
know it shouldn't be there. 

Let me tell you something else. March 
28th last year, I went out with a couple of 
guys to Area 51. We saw some strange 
stuff, it was at night and I didn't bother to 
record it. Early in the morning just after 
dawn there were B2 Stealth aircraft flying 
over Groom Lake and as one was banking 
suddenly I realised there was no ambient 
sound around me and also there was no 
engine sound. Suddenly the aircraft 
dissipates into a cloud and completely 
vanishes. I have it on camera. Nobody has 
seen that yet. 

After the interview I checked some 
details with Miles Johnson 

Miles said it wouldn't have occurred to 
him what Ray was thinking about whilst 
they were together unless Ray had told 
him. Miles claims that Ray did not mention 
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any of this to him. This is why until I 
mentioned these things Miles had not 
wondered about this. However he does 
vaguely remember Ray mentioning 
something about Miles not being quite the 
same. 

Miles does not remember any incidents 
at the Airport with any mix up over baggage. 

Miles thought that Ray's reactions to 
him were a little strange and that Ray was 
disturbed about something but Miles doesn' t 
think that anything else was odd. 

Before his arrival in Las Vegas, Miles 
had his guard up because he had a dream 
telling him that Ray was a reptilian alien. 
This was only a dream and Miles never saw 
anything of the sort whilst awake. The 
dream was quite unexpected but because it 
disturbed Miles he had shut off his psychic 
abilities, so he would not to pick anything up 
- Miles "just wanted a nice holiday". Miles 
says that for this reason when he got the 
airport he was not using his sixth sense and 
some unusual psychical events may have 
gone unnoticed by him. 

Away from the Ray situation Miles did 
observe that the taxi drivers and everybody 
he met seemed to be aware of his arrival. 
Some people he met at the airport were 
acting almost familiar with him and they had 
never met him before. Apart from this Miles 
saw no strangeness between him and Ray up 
until the point of after the Hotel interview 
when it was realised that some odd energy 
had attached itself to Ray - which was 
confirmed by a number of psychics. It was 
at this point that Miles started to keep a 
distance from Ray. 

EDITORS NOTE- We are continuing 
to speak to Ray Wardle and Miles 
Johnson for updates on this case. We will 
bring you updates as we have them. 



By Matthew Williams 

Mathew Bevan is a 23 old computer hacker with an interest in UFOs. Recently he made 
front page world headlines when he was charged with hacking offences which included 
access to the most secret military computers of the United States Military. Mathew was 
able to access computers, which had the ability to launch nuclear missiles or other missiles. 
Described by one pentagon spokesman as being "The biggest threat to world peace since 
Adolf Hitler", Mathew Bevan talks to Matthew Williams about how he did it and the fact that 
whilst in Wright Patterson Air Force Base computers he saw plans to a secret Anti Gravity 
propulsion engine .... 

Matthew Williams: How many 
years have you been into the Internet. 

Mathew Bevan: Since about 16. It 
was a case that over here there were 
very few Internet providers. The only 
one was Demon Internet and the 
closest phone number to dial was in 
Bristol, so it was just easier to do a free 
(hacked) phonecall to the States and 
use a free provider and not worry 
about paying any bills. 

MW: How does one "hack" the 
phones - what is the procedure 
involved. 

MB: You use a little program on the 
old computer ... The Amiga was the first 
computer to be used for "Biueboxing" 
(hacking phones] and the reason was 
that it has four channels of sound 
whereas the PC could only go "BEEP". 
To get the blueboxing to work you had 
to play dual tones into your phone. 
There was a set of frequencies of tone 
not dissimilar to DTMF which is on 
most modern phones (DTMF - the 
tones played when you press a number 
on your phone keypad). When the 
special tones were played it would 
cause the network to do a number of 
special things. 

What you then needed to do is to 
call a 0800 number for a foreign 
countries operator service - such as 
Columbia or Hawaii. You would play a 
few tones down the line and it would 
cut the operator off and BT would 
think that you had hung up the call but 
in fact you were still in the trunking 
system and you play a few more 
tones and you could re-route your call 
anywhere. 

MW: Is it complicated to do these 
things because playing sets of 
musical tones down the phone line 
sounds quite complicated and what if 
you make a mistake. 

MB: Well it is complicated but is a 
case of playing around to see what 
you could do. If you make a mistake 
you just hang up and try again. There 
were some other interesting things 
you could do like dialling a number 
and when you get the engaged signal 
then play a couple of tones and break 
into the call and listen without the two 
parties knowing you were there. 

MW: You are saying that there 
are ways to listen to calls without 
being detected and this can be done 
from any home phone with such 
codes! Are you saying that you could 

listen to another call anywhere in the 
world? 

MB: Yes but most of the time I was 
calling into the States anyway so that's 
where I did it the most. I think that 
secretly listening in is what it was 
designed for. 

MW: So when did you go from 
hacking innocent university computers 
into hacking the military computers? 

MB: It was a case of getting onto a 
system and getting the password file 
and then running the encrypted 
passwords through a code cracking 
program so that you get the 
passwords. Once you have the 
passwords then you can get a higher 
level of access and get into peoples 
files and folders and you can monitor 
the system to see what it is happening. 
You can see that there are people that 
are themselves who are going from 
computer to computer with legitimate 
reasons. Now it would just happen that 
some of these people would be working 
on projects with the military. You could 
find that a professor would be 
contacting a military site (computer). 

One would get fed up with doing 
small computer systems and would 
want to try to hack something bigger. 
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The thing with people is that they tend 
to like the same password for multiple 
systems and so if you have hacked their 
account on a relatively unprotected 
system then the password will probably 
work on another more well protected 
system. The professor probably has 
some silly password like "professor" on 
the university computer and more 
often than not would use the same on 
a military system. 

It is not a case of sitting there 
typing in millions of passwords and 
hoping that you get the right one. There 
are much more intelligent programs to 
do that for you and get you in to a 
system. 

We now use things called 
SNIFFERS, which are covert and do not 
harm the system in any way. These sit 
in the background and watch for 
people's passwords and they send 
them back to you. This is something 
that I was charged with and the offence 
read "modification to a system with 
intent to impair the operation of the 
computer". Well the whole point of a 
sniffer is that it sits there and nobody 
knows it is there - if it did any harm we 
wouldn't use them. 

Well once inside you would use 
various hacker techniques to bump up 
your access level to that of systems 
administrator, so that you would have 
the entire system under your control. 
You could connect to other systems on 
the network with the same authority. 
You could monitor people's emails and 
you could get into their project folders 
and look at their research and 
development work or papers that they 
have written . Occasionally you would 
get into somewhere that was quite 
interesting but it wasn't always that 
way. Most of it was quite boring. Back 
in the old days before Internet 
Browsers that give you nice pictures 
and buttons to click on, it was all text 
based and you had to use the keyboard 
to type commands. There were 
pictures, but you had to manually 
download them and view them "offline". 

MW: So what were the most 
exciting computer systems you 
hacked? 

MW: Firstly there was the FLEX 
system. This stands for Force Level 
Execution, and this is the thing which 
the News of the World newspaper 
picked up on. The reason this system 
was of interest because it had control 
of nuclear missiles. To explain what this 

program does; 
the official line is 
to plan an air war 
and to find out 
what things are 
incoming and 
what air strikes 
are pending. The 
system would 
then advise you of 
where to strike 
next with the best 
killing ratio and 
where to launch 
you missiles etc. 
From looking on 
the computer 
and through the 
"source code" I 
got the 
impression that 
the system had 
direct access to 
real missiles. 
What type of 
missiles I do not 
know and the 
News of the 
World printed 
that these were 
in fact 
Peacekeeper 
Missiles, but that 
didn't come from 
me - I don't know where they got 
those details from ... ? 

The easiest comparison I could 
make is that it was a very similar 
system to the Skynet System in the 
Terminator movies. This means that 
the computer has access to all 
available information and can make 
intelligent decisions about how to 
operate a war and even control the 
weapons. 

Of course the FLEX system is 
secret and something that they do 
not want the public to know about and 
the fact that weapons are controlled 
solely by computer. You would think 
that there would be other failsafe 
system but, as far as I could tell, that 
was not the case. 

There were other systems such 
as Wright Patterson Air Force base 
and White Sands Missile Testing 
Ground, some now I forget- I went to 
a lot. I had been to so many I had to 
tell the police that I could not 
remember all the systems I had been 
in. 

The lawyers couldn't get their 
stories straight even for a trial of this 
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type, which you would have expected. 
They would not present evidence to 
show how I was able to hack into their 
systems. So with the details of the 
computer systems real purpose having 
been removed from the case then I am 
now pretty sure that I did have a good 
idea about the real function of the 
programs - they didn't want this 
information out in any form. This was 
probably the reason that they were so 
pissed off about it because I came 
forward and told everyone. You see 
after I was arrested then I started to 
get some very strange phone calls 
from people claiming to be in the 
military, Koreans and other people. I 
had weird semi-threatening things said 
to me and this is why I moved away to 
get away from these treats and this is 
another reason that I spilled the beans, 
in order to keep myself and my wife 
safe, after all what is the point of 
silencing me after I had talked. 

MW: Where were you living and did 
the police give you any assistance in 
your moving because of these threats. 

MB: Firstly was living in 
Grangetown and then I was moved by 
the benefits agency to another 
location. They were aware of the court 



case and the sens1t1v1ty and people 
from Scotland Yard were helping in this 
respect also. I was given a new name 
under the benefits agency computers 
and was living under name of Mr Smith 
for a while. 

MW: Why do you think they were 
prepared to go to this trouble to help 
you? 

MB: What you have to understand 
is the fact that there was a big Senate 
hearing on the fact that two hackers 
had got into secret computer systems. 
One of these was a 16-year-old who 
they had arrested and the other 
person was supposedly thought to be a 
foreign spy who was paying the 16-
year-old for information. I was made 
out to be the foreign spy and I was 
prepared to believe from the threats I 
was getting that these people were 
serious. So I had to move home. 

To give you an idea of the level of 
the ominous phone calls I was getting, 
at the time I was just about to change 
my phone over to British Telecom. Just 
days before I was arrested I was due to 
sign the BT phone forms and send 
them off, but had not done do at that 
point. Then I had another threatening 
phone call and I told them to * * * * off 
and said that I was now having my 
number changed. The voice on the 
other end of the line said "yeah we 
know that your new number is going to 
be 01222 233blah blah blah" and so 
they knew my new number already! My 
wife asked often who was speaking and 
one name we got was Chung Lee 
Makasuki and he gave some phone 
number in China, I think. 

MW: When you were arrested 
what happened? 

MB: I was working at Admiral 
Insurance at the time in their computer 
department for around a year and a 
half. One of the managers came in and 
asked me to come and have a look at 
one of their computer systems and I 
got up and went with him. I went with 
him to the MDs office and there were 
seven people in the office, your typical 
men in black so to speak but as this 
was the MDs office I didn't at first see 
this as abnormal. When I got inside 
one of then said to me "Mathew Bevan" 
and I replied "yes" and then he put up 
his hand and said "I am placing you 
under arrest for hacking of NASA and 
various Air Force bases." I was 
standing there stunned and I was going 
"Oh, gosh ... ummm." They then told me 

that they were going to search my 
desk, which they did, then they took 
me back to my house and searched 
there too. 

When they got to the house they 
took all my X Files videos and X Files 
posters and the reason was because 
the "KUJI" hacker that they were after 
had a computer user description 
which read ''The Truth Is Out There". 
So they wanted to use the X Files 
material to prove that they had the 
correct "KUJI". They just wanted to 
pin me on anything they could. They 
took all of my computer kit as well as 
my passport. 

During the interview I agreed that 
I used the handle 'Kuji' and afterwards 
the police gave me my property back 
such as the X Files videos, 
posters,monitor and the keyboard 
back but they kept everything else. 

I was taken to the Central Police 
station in Cardiff. The officers were 
from the computer crime unit of the 
Met Police. I believe that the C.C.U. 
also uses the code S.O.S which leads 
me to believe that they are 
intelligence (MIS) related but I don't 
think they would admit that. 

MW: What was the atmosphere 
like in the interviews? 

MB: It was a good cop bad cop 
scenario. The one person was very 
nice and the other guy was quite 
nasty and was giving snide remarks 
and shouting at me. There were bits 
in the interviews that were really 
stupid too where I was asked by the 
nice cop if I had any political leanings 
and I said no - then the other cop 
stepped in and said ''Yeah, but your a 
vegetarian" and he then said "So you 
do have a leaning then.". To this I then 
replied "Well if being vegetarian is a 
political leaning then I plead guilty! ". 
The other copper then steps in and 
make a lighthearted comment and 
then the other one steps in again and 
says "ah so you indicate a leaning 
then" and so on. 

I was under arrest for the best 
part of 36 hours but there was about 
28 hours spent in the cells. I wasn't 
allowed to speak to my wife or anyone 
else. They threatened that they would 
arrest my wife and I pointed out that 
she knew nothing about computers 
and they said tough because they 
would arrest her anyway. This was 
part of their oppression tactics. I said 

what do I have to do to stop you 
arresting her and they said that if I 
co-operated then they would not arrest 
her. So the only telephone calls I was 
allowed were to my solicitor because 
they didn't want me to tell anyone I had 
been arrested. 

One thing I didn't realise but found 
out was the fact that in Cardiff police 
station they bug the cells with listening 
devices and recently a few people have 
had tape recorded evidence used 
against them when they have admitted 
to things whilst in custody. This is 
immoral but they seem to be able to do 
it. 

MW: What sort of specific 
questions were you asked by the police 
in the interview. 

MB: They asked me about the 
Rome Labs computer and if I had 
placed a sniffer program on the 
computers. I would not admit to this. 
They also asked me about Goddard 
Space Flight Centre and Wright 
Patterson, I admitted to these but was 
never charged with them! They don't 
charge me with the right things. They 
then charge me with conspiracy with 
the other hacker, but by the time they 
realise that they don't have any 
evidence to prove this it transpires that 
they could not charge me with the 
original intended charges anyway 
because they are out of time by 6 
months; They would have had to charge 
me with a summary offence within six 
months of my arrest. They also found 
out that they were out of time for a 
3-year clause 

The Americans pos1t1on in court 
was that they claimed that they had to 
spend 1f2 a million dollars to repair their 
computer systems. A fundamental 
question that my defence asked was 
could we see a backup of the system to 
show before and after these so called 
repairs to prove what was being 
claimed. The Americans said that we 
could not see the records because they 
were so sensitive and also said that it 
was not in the jurisdiction of the British 
courts to order them to show the files. 
If it were any other trial then you would 
ask how could we accept this evidence 
but because we are asked to take the 
Americans word, this is supposed to be 
good enough. 

The next thing that happened was 
that my barrister had meetings with 
the prosecution and he then turns 
around to me and says that he feels 
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that they will find me guilty on some 
charges so I should give in and change 
my plea to guilty. So I 'relieved' him of 
his professional duties and got a new 
barrister who was then completely on 
my side and who felt that I did indeed 
have a worthwhile and quite solid 
defence. 

MW: What was the final stage of 
the case and how did you get 
acquitted? 

MB: The judge surprised everyone 
by saying to the prosecution that 
because my charges were lesser than 
those of the other hacker and that the 
other hacker had received a small fine 
of £1200 then my sentence at best 
would be non-custodial so to proceed 
with such a case would not produce a 
large penalty whilst the costs for 
running such a case would run into 
millions. It was estimated that if I would 
be found guilty I would get a £450 fine 
and considering that the court's daily 
costs would be £1 0,000 it would not 
be worth it. 

However the prosecution was 
determined still and said that they 
would still proceed and then at the last 
stage they pulled out and said that they 
wished to offer no evidence and that it 
wasn't in the public interest to run the 
case. Verdicts of not guilty were 
entered, this being the equivalent of a 
full acquittal and so ensuring that the 
police would waive the right to re­
arrest me in conjunction with these 
charges. 

This being the case I was then free 
to admit to the press and everyone 
else that I had in fact done some of 
those things and that I did hack those 
systems. This pissed Scotland Yard off 
immensely and they are now being very 
awkward about returning the seized 
goods that are in evidence storage 
even though the case has been 
dropped. 

MW: How were you tracked down? 

MB: I cannot be sure because this 
was never disclosed - I have my 
suspicions that I was grassed on by a 
hacker. They said they found my 
number on somebody's computer 
system and traced me back like that 
but I think somebody told them who I 
was. The point was if it took them 2 
years to find my number on the other 
hackers hard-drive as they claim then 
that is incompetence, as a search of a 
250meg drive takes less than five 

minutes. 

MW: Where does the story take a 
turn to where you started hacking 
military sites for UFO information? 

MB: In a hacker magazine called 
PHRACK, it gave a list of sites that 
people who said they were interested 
in UFOs would like to see hacked and 
that hackers should check these out. 
Allegedly there were forty people who 
were trying to penetrate these sites 
and they got into some of them but 
they all went missing? 

MW: A group of forty people went 
missing? 

MB: Apparently so. They said in 
the magazine that if you were going to 
do it then do it carefully and printed a 
list of the sites. I used that list and 
used it and I also used some of the 
folklore of UFOs like "Roswell 
wreckage taken to Wright field", 
"Lockheed space missile company 
have connection to Area 51 " etc. It is 
then just a case then of picking up the 
addresses and names of these 
computers. They are quite easy to 
find as the military provide you with as 
much information on their computers 
as you could ever want. 

It was a case of "go for it", "lets 
have a look". As far as I was 
concerned I was not traceable and 
not causing any harm to anybody. If I 
couldn't get in then no big deal, if I 
could then I was not going to screw 
the system up. 

MW: You did gain access to some 
interesting UFO type files - what were 
these? 

MB: The information was obtained 
through the Wright Patterson Air 
Base computer system. I was looking 
for information on the Roswell crash. 
On one of the computers at Wright 
Patterson the systems administrator 
was very un-secured. Captain Beth 
Long was the system administrator 
she is supposedly working in a 
pumping station in Alaska now 
instead of working at Wright 
Patterson - the reason being, 
because she had no password so this 
meant that anyone logging in as her 
meant they had the highest level of 
access on the system with no 
password needed! 

Wright Pattersons' computers 
were strange because unlike all other 
computers I had hacked which had 
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clear warnings to hackers and people 
using the system regarding the 
classified information, their system had 
a banner which read in flashing red 
letters that no classified information is 
to be stored on the computer system. 
This throws you a bit. I was unsure if it 
was a real banner or if it was to put off 
people who had got that far. 

In getting into that there was one 
machine on the network where I read 
current files and future project 
proposals. I read documents which 
gave me the impression that they had 
an anti-gravity engine which was 
capable of at least Mach 12 to Mach 
15. I don't know how exactly how fast 
that is but I think that is faster than 
most aircraft we know of today. 
Supposedly the aircraft which employs 
this engine uses a reactor to which 
there were a lot of detailed numbers 
and figures for, but I have no idea what 
all this meant. I can remember that the 
documents referred to a super heavy 
element, whatever that means. The 
element is the main fuel for the 
reactor. The engine worked by making 
a disturbance of molecules at the front 
of the craft so that it was able to stop 
the inertia or G-force inside the craft. I 
got the impression that this 
information was the type of material I 
was looking for because it was far in 
advance of our current technology and 
could be something to do with the 
Roswell UFO. Finding this threw me 
ecause I didn't know if this information 
was a disinformation exercise and that 
people were meant to get in and find 
this stuff or if it was real. I can't be sure 
and this is the one annoying thing. 

In the interviews that were carried 
out with the police Wright Patterson 
was mentioned. Officer 0 S Janes 
asked me, had I been in there and I said 
that I had. He then asked me if I had got 
any information from this computer 
and I said that I had found details of an 
anti-gravity propulsion system. He 
asked if I downloaded any files from this 
project and I said no and I had only read 
the files online. As I said earlier I 
admitted to this but no charges were 
brought against me on this matter 
which is a bit odd. Then the interviewing 
officer asked me if I knew what Hanger 
18 meant. I said "well if you are thinking 
of a building where they store 
extraterrestrial aircraft then this is 
what you might mean but perhaps you 
mean it is a computer or a bulletin 
board -is this what you mean?". He 
replied that this could be the place that 
he was thinking of. This was the only 



time that Hanger 18 was mentioned in 
the interview. 

In one of the hearings at 
magistrates' court there was a specia l 
agent who came over called Jim 
Hanson. When asked what did he feel I 
was trying to achieve by my hacking he 

reporting of your case? 

MB: The press were there and 
they heard many interesting things 
which the failed to print but yes there 
was a ban on reporting the case, they 
said because they did not want the 
press opinion to influence the case in 

Fuertaventura in the Canaries and 
there were unusual lights in the sky 
above us which we watched for many 
hours. They changed colour and went 
on and off. They seemed so far away 
that they couldn't be sure if they were 
satellites or not. I am not saying that 
this could not have been explainable 

phenomena. said that he 
believed I was not 
trying to do any 
harm but was just 

~~~--------------------------------------------~ 

looking for 
information on 
Hanger 18. The 
prosecution then 
asked Jim Hanson 
in a light-hearted 
manner if he could 
confirm if Hanger 
18 exists and 
Hanson responded 
"I can't tell you that 
because I am not 
party to that 
information". 

W h a t 
surprised me is the 
fact that I was 
asked about the 
little known 
Hanger 18 story 
instead of 
somewhere well 
known such as 
Area 51 . Some 
members of the 
press alluded that .__ ____ _ 

I had hacked into Area 51 , but I never 
said this and I refused to comment on 
the UFO issue to them. There were 
things I was not prepared to talk about 
to the press because I was not sure if I 
would be able to sell my story or not, so 
I did not want to give the information 
away. 

The point was that I knew where 
Wright Patterson airbase was but I 
didn't know, until I read a UFO 
magazine recently, that Hanger 18 
was located at Wright Patterson. This 
was the first I ever learned about this. 

When you put it all together it 
seems weird - the fact that I hacked 
into Wright Patterson and found 
details of a secret gravity engine and 
then the coppers asking me about 
Hanger 18, even to have a secret 
service agent in an open court saying 
about Hanger 18 and then me later on 
finding out that the two places are the 
same. 

MW: Wasn't there a ban on press 

r. -• 

any way. This is the principal of 
subjudicy. 

The prosecution had originally 
intended to have the case heard in 
secret [In Camera) but we did not 
allow this to happen. 

MW: Have you ever seen any 
UFOs yourself? 

MB: There was a time when I was 
going back to Newport from Cardiff 
and there were two very feint lights 
which were like passenger plane 
lights at first. They looked like they 
were going towards Rhoose airport 
but in-between them there was a 
start which was shooting back and 
forth between these two points. I had 
to force my friends to look at the 
lights because they would not look 
and said was crazy but when 
eventually they did look they agreed 
that they had seen something 
strange. 

My Wife and I went on holiday to 

MW: What 
interest did you have 
in UFOs before the 
trial. 

MB: Just before 
I got into the hacking 
scene I was making 
the free phone calls 
and I found a Bulletin 
Board in Australia 
which had loads of 
UFO files. There 
were about 500 or 
600 text files on 
offer so I 
downloaded them all 
and waded through 
them slowly. I found 
it really interesting 
and I wanted to know 
more. I go into the 
MUFON files and 
Keelynet Bulletin 
Boards and they had 
interesting things on 
them also. 

It seems to me 
that far more people have seen UFOs 
and have evidence of this than there is 
evidence of GOD but people go around 
believing in GOD and are not ridiculed 
for this in any way! 

My opinion is that there is a lot of 
information UFO information out there 
and it is hard to separate the liars from 
the truthful people. The thing is that 
some of the wilder claims may also be 
the truth but sometimes you cannot be 
certain of any claims either way. 

The types of thing I mean are cases 
where people say that they have been 
onboard spacecraft and seen the 
classic alien with big black eyes and 
that they had experiences which are 
consistent with other witnesses. You 
then hear from the same person that 
the aliens took her for a ride and they 
were walking around on the moon 
without a spacesuit and the story 
starts to take a strange turn. It seems 
that people seem to go overboard but 
who knows that person may in fact be 
telling the truth. 
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MW: Do you know much about Bob 
Lazar? Tell me what you about his 
story. 

MB: Well yes, Bob Lazar was able 
to show documents from his previous 
work to show that he worked with 
certain companies, but they deny he 
ever worked for them. 

As I remember he is a really nerdy 
looking guy that claims to have worked 
at Area 51's S3 complex I think? He 
claimed to have been working on 
crashed UFO technology. He said that 
he had seen saucers in hangers and 
had seen one flying one day. Only 
recently I saw the original interview he 
gave on video where he talked about 
his work and was drawing on a 
blackboard. I think he got prosecuted 
for running a brothel, I don't know 
much more than that. 

MW: Do you know anything about 
the propulsion systems he was talking 
about in his work on the saucers? 

MB: No not really - I can remember 
the shape of the craft and I can 
remember that the propulsion system 
was in the bottom of the craft and that 
it is like a segmented thing. I remember 
a little area in the middle where the 
"guys" would sit. I don't really 
remember the details or specifics of 
that. 

MW: I am interested because you 
used the term "heavy element reactor" 
earlier on and I wondered if you have 
heard about something called "element 
115"? 

MB: No I did chemistry at school 
but was very bad at it and got kicked 
out. I don't know anything about 
elements full stop really. 

MW: Bob Lazars story was that he 
worked on propulsion systems, which 
utilised a reactor, fuelled by a super 
heavy element. Everyday scientists do 
not know of the element 115 of which 
he speaks. Does this mean anything to 
you? 

MB: Maybe that is a parallel. The 
only things I know about him really is 
that he worked on UFOs and his 
involvement in the brothel and the fact 
that he looks a bit "geeky". 

MW: Can you remember any 
names of people on the project. Were 
there dates on any of the letters you 

saw regarding the propulsion 
system? 

MB: Nope, as for dates all the 
information was current at 1994. 
Whether this was a totally new 
engine or if it was a new version I 
can't be sure. I do know that it was a 
working prototype. 

MW: Did they say what type of 
aircraft the propulsion system would 
be used in? 

MB: Not that I remember, 
although I believe the engine was in 
use. 

MW: Do you fear going to the 
United States? 

MB: I am, not so much worried 
about being tried in the US for these 
things because they still have the 
same flawed evidence- but I fear that 
over there they would just stick me in 
prison without a trial and leave me to 
rot. This is something I have to look at 
carefully and to study the 
international law on these matters 
because there is a question of where 
was the crime committed on my 
computer in my house in the UK or in 
the US on their systems. This is a 
legal dilemma and is open to 
question. 

A point is that there is a hacker 
out there now called Kevin Minick who 
did some minor hacking and has been 
in prison for 2 years and hasn't been 
charged with anything yet! This can 
happen. 
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MW: Why did you do all this? Are 
you an anarchist or is this political or 
just for pure curiosity? 

MB: I just get a thrill out of exploring 
new computer systems. If you could 
see my CV I now have knowledge of all 
these computers systems I have used. 
If employers wanted to know how I got 
that experience it may get a bit 
awkward to have to tell them that 
these were military systems I was 
playing with - but it still makes for a 
good CV! I can now admit to my 
hacking and not have any fear because 
it may be a plus point in that I know a 
lot about systems security. 

I did it for the pure adrenaline buzz 
of hacking a secret system. This can 
keep you awake on no food for hours 
and this is one of the other reasons -
because of the thrill. 

MW: Thank you very much. 
MB: Thanks. 

In final clarification on some of 
the interview I asked Mathew if he 
saw any images on the computer 
systems at Wright Patterson 
Airbase. He says he saw one but 
remembers that the antigravity 
engine was a working prototype 
and is fitted in some form of 
aircraft and is in use although the 
type of aircraft was not disclosed. 
The information was dated around 
1994, when the system was 
originally breached. It is now up to 
researchers and hackers alike to 
try and find out more. 



FILE NO. 003 
THE CULT OF THE SERPENT 
(author unknown ... ) 

What do the following names all have in 
common: Dennis Brunnell, Stan Deyo, William 
Cooper, Bill Hamilton, Val Valerian, 
'Commander X' and Robert Lazar? They all 
allege that the following scenario is a reality ... 
Ever since the so-called "end" of the NASA 
moon shots the U.S. "secret" government has 
been involved in cover manned space 
exploration of this solar system utilizing super­
advanced technologies which are so 
revolutionary that the secret government has 
chosen to tell the public little or nothing about 
it. Some of these sources even claim that an 
inner core of this "secret government" have in 
the past worked hand-in-claw with a race of 
hominoid-sauroid reptilian beings who have 
given these human "elite" technology and 
power (over their fellow man) in exchange for 
certain powers and influences which this secret 
government or "serpent cult" gave these alien 
beings over the masses of humanity. 

There are allegedly other human groups, 
native to earth and much more ancient, who left 
this planet in ncient times after obtaining 
similar technologies. Some of these ancient and 
modern groups "sold out" to this alien race in 
exchange for technology (as in the case of the 
so-called MIB's or Men In Black), while others 
developed such technologies of their own 
initiative (as in the case of many of the human 
"alien" races who are often referred to as the 
"Nordics"). As for the covert space 
operations that are being carried out by various 
top-secret organizations within the U.S. 
government, they are based on a combination of 
"alien" technology recovered from numerous 
crash-retrievals of aerial disks, while other 
aspects are based on prototype and state-of-the­
art Military-Industrial technologies developed 
by well-known U.S. companies. These 
advanced technologies include anti-gravity 
generators and electromagnetic propulsion 
systems and massive top-secret space efforts 
which have largely been financed through 
deception and through hundreds of billions of 
dollars which have generously (although 
unknowingly)been provided via 'Black' budgets 
by hard-working American taxpayers. 
Dennis Brunnell, a 33rd degree Mason and a 
Grandmaster in the Ordo Templi Orientis 
(O.T.O.) had become "dis- illusioned" by the 
Illuminati's present activities. Originally 
believing that the Illuminati was a mystic lodge 
designed to illuminate one into mystical heights 
of ascended awareness, he eventually learned 
that such metaphysical talk was just so much 
hot air designed to gain the willing assistance of 
lower-ranking "lodge" members, who were 
unknowingly being manipulated into serving 
the hypocritical, self-seeking and self-serving 
imperialistic goals of a relatively small inner 

core of "illumined" members. Some years 
ago a man by the name of John Todd, a 
member of a family who were high-level and 
generational members of a druidic witchcraft 
cult, alleged that through his occult contacts he 
was chosen to be initiated into a deep-level 
Illuminati lodge. He claimed that in doing so 
he had to "unlearn" much of the wiccan 
philsophies which he was taught at a young 
age. These occult teachings were merely a 
means, he soon found out, of this inner core of 
initiates to control the lower ranks of the lodge. 
This inner core, which consisted of 13 
individuals, were (he claims) THE LEADERS 
of all the large wiccan/witchcraft organizations 
AS WELL AS the leaders of World 
Freemasonry. These men controlled BOTH 
movements from their lofty positions, along 
with much of the world's drug trafficking, and 
had powerful influence in world economic and 
political movements. Mr. Todd soon learned 
that this inner core were continually fearful 
that the lower-ranking members of the occult 
societies would tum against "them" if the 
lower members ever found out that this inner 
council were merely using these "lower pawns" 
to increase their own wealth and their god-like 
power and authority over the rest of humanity. 
The Rothschilds of London, he also learned, 
were at the very heart of this conspiracy, along 
with the Jesuits in Rome. The Rothschilds wee 
considered to be "human gods" by many 
occultists and, according to Mr. Todd, were in 
constant communication with "Lucifer", who 
they themselves considered to be god. There 
are also indications, as we will give later in 
these texts, that they were/are also in contact 
with the serpent race as well, which would 
make them an integral part of the "serpent 
cult". Dennis Brunnell, John Todd and in 
fact millions of former Communists, realized 
that there was an incredible contradiction 
between what these world socialists were 
telling their "followers" and what these inner 
elite were actually practicing. The connection 
we make between Illuminism and Communism 
(which is still very strong in mainland China) 
is no coincidence, as both are socialist 
movements. Also, according to well-known 
geo- political analysts such as Dr. John 
Coleman, Karl Marx himself had known ties 
with 33rd degree Masonry and the Jesuit 
Order. As for John Todd, he later "defected" 
from this secret lodge after he "suggested" to 
the other embers that in light of recent events 
the prophecies of the Bible should be studied. 
Their answer to this, he claims, was a 
murderous stare from most if not all of the 
other members of this council of 13. He 
believes he was lucky he got out of there alive. 
These men, apparently, did not even want to 
consider the possibility that the Holy Bible 
could be true, for they knew well enough that it 
was against every imperialistic and deceitful 
practice that they were involved in. John Todd 

later became a Christian and spoke to various 
audiences around the country until, according to 
some sources, he was later assassinated. 
Brunnell alleged that some within the Illuminati 
were so heartless as to believe that their 
socialist "World Order" must be brought about 
even if the orchestrating of wars, etc., had to be 
accomplished in order to create the conditions 
necessary for establishing it... or, in other 
words, that the end justified the meas. These 
lost souls were and are apparently convinced 
that they have he divine right to decide the fate 
of nations, and that the masses of humanity 
exist for no other reason than to serve their 
cause. They consider themselves "gods" and 
the rest of humanity as "mere mortals". So 
much for the end-result of the false promise that 
was given to man by the serpent race as 
revealed in Genesis chapter 3, which was that 
men could be as gods, and that the creature 
could be independent from or equal to the 
Creator. The serpent race knew full well that 
the dis- connection of man from their trust and 
reliance in the Godhead would result in lost 
power and dominion over the earth and the 
beasts, including the serpent race, and as a 
result the reptilians could take control of that 
which mankind forfeited, including man 
himselfl Since that ancient time the saurians 
have been able to fmd those among humanity 
who would be willing to believe their false 
promises in exchange for temporary physical 
gains. 

One of Dennis Brunnell's "Gemstone" 
research papers (which also described the Mafi­
CIA-oil company connection to the John F. 
Kennedy assassination, confirming the original 
"Gemstone" reports of Bruce Roberts) included 
a scenario developed by Kissinger and other 
Illuminists in the early 1980's or before. This 
scenario showed one such proposed plan as to 
how war could be used to bring the United 
States - the last obstacle standing in the way of 
absolute Illuminati rule of the world - into 
subjection to the one-world Socialist state. This 
scenario, possibly one of many developed, was 
in the form of a speech given by a U.S. 
president. George Bush was sited as a very 
possible candidate to this "speech" (This was 
years before Bush became vice president, which 
suggests that Brunnell was in fact tapped-into 
some very sensitive information). It was 
basically written as a possible emergency 
address to the nation which would supposedly 
take place after years of American involvement 
in an - Illuminati orchestrated? - war in the 
Middle East. The scenario continued as "the 
President" informs the ntion that, due to the 
long drawn-out (Korea/Vietnam like no-win) 
war which has depleted our national resources, 
a certain Executive Order was to be issued for 
the "good" of the nation which would result in 
practically ALL PRlV ATE AGENCIES coming 
under the absolute control ofthe Federal 

... CONTINUED ON PAGE 34 
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By Richard Conway 
Why are the MOD refusing to sell a disused American Airbase? Why did they "rob" a busines 
man of 2 million pounds deposit when he offered to buy the base and develop it? What se-

For the past year I have been in touch 
with Chris Parker, managing director of the 
C.P.G. (Chris Parker Group). The C.P.G 
put in a bid for the Bentwaters airbase in 
1995, after the previous sale failed. Chris 
Parker is used to going to bases of all sorts 
and stripping them of all saleable assets, 
turning them into large development 
projects. This time however, things didn 't 
run as smoothly as he was used to. 

Suffolk Coastal and District Council had 
already agreed with the MoD that the base 
just a blot on the landscape as it had not 
been in use since 1992. They had decided 
that the best thing to do was arrive at a quick 
sale and sell the base for the land value as 
opposed to the building value. This seems to 
be the best solution in effect because the 
projects being considered by the C.P.G. 
were development projects and as such 
would have created jobs in the area and 
greater commerce. 

The Americans, since their occupation, 
financed the buildings on the base under the 
NATO agreement; which took place after 
the war. In this capacity the MoD were not 
losing out by selling the base cheaply. 
C.P.G. made an offer to the MoD to buy the 
base, a deal which was accepted and upon 
which a deposit had been paid. Why then did 
this deal with the C.P.G. fall through 
towards the end of 1996, after the deal had 
been on the table, and in agreement, for one 
year? Why did they not give him 14 days 
notice. Did the Mod not know that by not 
giving 14 days notice that they were 
breaking British law? 

The answers to these questions are 

troubling because they rely on 
investigators delving deeper and deeper 
into a possible nuclear incidents in the area 
and possible nuclear storage at this and 
other nearby airbases . To answer the first 
question, the MoD cancelled the deal with 
the C.P.G. because Chris Parker was not 
doing the right form of development. The 
only acceptable form of development for 
that airbase as far as the MoD was 
concerned is maintaining it's use as an 
airport, in this case to be used regularly 
instead of Ipswich airport. I for one, 
knowing the amount of nuclear weapons 
that were stored in the base and according 
to many military witnesses in a secret 
underground facility, would not travel 
from that airport. Is it reasonable for the 
MoD to force a developers hand in this 
manner? 

STRUCTURAU Y UNSOUND 

Mr Chris Parker' s story starts when his 
company starts trying to do some borehole 
testing on the runway. His first observation 
was that this particular runway was one of 
the most structurally unsound runways of 
all the airbases he had visited in the 
country. It was not level and had many dips 
in the concrete. In order to get a better idea 
of the level of inconstancies he needed to 
do testing of the base runways and earth. 
To be able to do the borehole testing in the 
first place he had to request permission 
from the MoD which was subsequently 
denied on more than one occasion. When 
permission was finally granted he was 
directed to certain spot on the base and 
told that he was only able to conduct 
drilling tests at this location. In addition 

these tests also had to be 
conducted whilst under 
supervision. Never in the 
Parker groups history had 
they ever had to go through 
so many formalities in order 
to do a simple drilling test! 

Chris believes that 
topside of the base was built 
to house an underground 
facility. Many military 
personnel have attested to 
this fact area and small 
groups of Ufologists also. 
The structure of the drainage 
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systems is unnatural in that these tunnels are 
apparently unable to hold water. This fact 
also attributes to his belief in the idea that 
there is an underground facility beneath 
Bentwaters. There also seems to be other 
tunnels present, which have nothing to do 
with drainage at all and their real purpose is 
still unclear. 

An interesting twist takes place after the 
deal fell through with the MoD. Chris Parker 
now claims that he has been "robbed" by the 
Ministry to the extent that he has had to 
order a writ against them requiring them to 
cease and desist all operations with respect 
to the base. The base was being sold to him 
for the sum of £10.2 million, over £2 million 
was taken from him, in the form of a deposit 
by the MoD and not returned. The deposits 
included planning permissions fees. Chris 
Parkers and his company now believe that 
because he was going to have to drill away 
16 feet of runway the MoD didn 't want to 
sell the base to him. This is a fair assumption 
based on the fact that all the elements were 
in place for a quick sale to his reputable 
company that had the resources for the 
development; So what else could frighten 
the MoD into not wanting the runway 
removed? 

Well, that wasn't the end of the story by 
far. The next thing to happen is that a group 
known as the "MUARD Corporation" put in 
a bid for the base and contracts exchanged 
hands at a mere price of £7 million! Thus the 
MoD accepted an offer which was less than 
the Parker groups offer, less by the sum of 
several million. Due to the ease of the sale to 
MUARD, it also appears that unnecessary 
delays must have been introduced to C.P.G. 



there is sti II a large 
amount of nuclear 

~-~~~-- weapons being stored 
underground there and 
possibly also a great 
deal of nuclear 
research, which would 
have been typically in­
line with many other 
r e s e a r c h 
establishments in the 
area. 

The final needle in 
the haystack comes 
straight from Chris ' s 

interesting piece of information came up in 
the course of the events, as told by the 
journalist in one of his more sympathetic 
moments. This was that "the US government 
are paying the British government £6 million 
each year for them not to sell the base." 
Whether this is true or not, I don't know. 
The source for this questionable gem of 
information reputed to be a small arms 
dealer that the journalist was in contact with. 

'-------------------------=-----__j secret source in the 

With all this tantalising evidence, one 
thing seems clear - The MoD does not want 
to sell this base. In fact even now there are 
court battles taking place between the MoD, 
the new owners of the base and between the 
investors that are backing the owners. This 
can only give rise to more suspicion that a 
mystery is lurks beneath the feet of many 
Sussex residents, in the area which has had 
more that it's fair share ofUFO sightings. 

which delayed the sale of the base, for no 
apparent reason. 

MUARD 

Companies that buy these bases are now, 
for security reasons supposed to have a ten­
year checkable history of trading in British 
military hardware, doing engineering 
contracts etc. It turns out that upon closer 
inspection the "MUARD Corporation" 
formed one week before they put in a bid for 
the base. This newcomer company were 
apparently never effectively investigated by 
the MoD. One of the investors on the 
original Chris Parker project- Tony Hunter­
pulled out and joined the opposition 
(MUARD), so to speak. It then surfaces that 
John Masters, the solicitor for the MUARD 
Corporation, along with Tony Hunter, were 
both under suspicion of fraud in the Virgin 
Islands. This did not seem to deter the MoD 
from letting them buy the base. Perhaps the 
quick sale the newcomer company had 
something to do with the fact that the 
MUARD corporation had agreed with the 
MoD's firm wish for the base to maintain 
it's status as an airport! 

Some of Chris Parkers ex-military 
sources have told him that before the base 
closed there was a fire in one of the 
underground bunkers below. These same 
sources have suggested to him that the 
reason a lot of the underground region of the 
base was closed is due to the fact there is 
some serious 'hardware' still down there. 
What kind of 'hardware' - nobody knows? 
What we do know is that the nuclear 
weapons were stored underground on the 
base and that there were a great deal of 
bunkers in an area known as the WSA 
(Weapons Storage Area), a place the 
Americans nicknamed ''Nuclear Alley". The 
bunker entrances had lift platforms that 
brought missiles from underground to the 
surface bunker entranceways. There were 
also similar platform lifting devices present 
in the bombproof aircraft hangars in 
Bentwaters. So it is quite conceivable that 

Ministry Of Defence. The deepthroat 
source tells him that the MUARD deal had 
the backing of both John Gummer MP and 
Michael Portillo MP (former UK Minister 
for Defence), who had apparently kept a 
watchful eye on the sale of the base 
ensuring that it went to the MUARD 
corporation. 

Ever since it was told to me several 
months ago at a lecture I gave on the 
Rendlesham Incident, one incident has 
stuck in my head. It was relayed to me that 
seventeen people were witness to luminous 
aerial phenomenon in the forest region 
around Woodbridge airbase. Of these 
witnesses two were policemen and would 
appear therefore to be a credible source. 
The witnesses had seen many things that 
myself and other ufologists could not put 
down to simple 'Project Blue Book' 
explanations. 

The local "rag" newspaper interviewed 
two of the observers. The reporter in this 
case claimed to have an interest in UFOs 
and found their story rather remarkable. 
However when it came to the story being 
printed, the sounds that were 

{Also the base was scene to a set of 
UFO sightings around 1980 where 
Triangle UFOs and "Ball Of Light" 
phenomena were observed near the base. It 
is now part of UFO history that one event 
took place where US security personnel 
were witness to a landing of a UFO and 
met some of the occupants. Strange tales 
still abound in the area of "black hooded 
figures" who take an unhealthy interest in 
the nuclear storage areas - seen floating 
unsupported near the runways and also in 
nearby forests. Psychic mediums are often 
telling us that there is a strange aura of 
alien activity near the base, and indeed all 
the way back to 1950 there have been 
stories of UFOs in the general area. Could 
the reason for the blocking of the sale of 
the base have some other meaning. Is there 
something of a sinister or extraterrestrial 
nature in the area which is in some way 
connected to the base - something that 
might be exposed if the base were 
demolished. -ED} 

heard were attributed by the 
newspaper editor as 'animals 
pulling the "legs off 
barbecues"' and all kinds of 
weird things were put down 
to physical explanations . . It 
appeared that the paper no 
realistic results to any 
possible causes of the things 
seen and heard. As we see so 
often these days, it is a sad 
fact of journalism with 
respect to the UFOs and 

PHOTO: RICHARD CONWAY CHECKS OUT UNDER­
GROUND TUNNELS AT BENTWATERS 

other paranormal 
phenomenon that the 
investigative approach of 
many journalists is non­
existent. 

A way from the final 
editorial cut of the story, one 
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GRAN HERMANDAD BLANCA 
BY PAUL DAMON 

In the following article, I have at­
tempted to explain as thoughtfully and as 
respectfully as possible to those people 
involved, some of whom are my friends, the 
facts and details surrounding a New Age 
UFO-Spiritual group/ cult/ religion centring 
around Raul Yepes, a mild-mannered and 
very likeable fellow from Medellin, Colom­
bia. 

While not subscribing (specifically) to 

"Greetings to you, great beings and 
higher spirits here on Earth, I have come to 
bring you council and love from the galactic 
community that watches you so closely .... " 
So starts the oration of one man, a supposed 
channeller who claims to have unique 
contact with certain spirits, angels, higher 
beings and extraterrestrials . During my 
sojourn in Central America, I have come to 
find that Catholicism doesn't reign quite so 
supreme as I thought. Indeed, it has taken 
rather a backburner as new alternative 
religions have been sprouting up all over 
South and Central America, among these the 
hugely popular Mission Rama, headed by 
Sixto Paz in Peru. 

COLOMBIA 

During the last 15 years, one man; Raul 
Yepes of Medellin, Colombia, has single 

the belief systems of the group, I have 
found the investigation to be very valuable 
and enriching in the areas of personal expe­
rience, and various aspects of the 
"channelling" phenomenon have proved 
themselves to me to be of a very real 
nature, as will come apparent as this arti­
cle progresses. 

It is not the purpose of this article to 
debunk, criticise or slander the group Gran 
Herrnandad Blanca, or any member/per­
son mentioned. During the latter part of 

handedly caused quite a controversial 
storm throughout his land. Yepes, in his 
forties has a very amiable appearance, with 
cut extremely short hair and a paunch any 
beer drinker would be proud o£ It was 
during a casual conversation in the early 
part of 1997 with some Rosicrucians over 
a plate of typical Colombian food in a 
restaurant on the Island of San Andres that 
I first came to hear of this man, Yepes, and 
his growing movement of "Brotherhood" 
followers . It peaked my interest to hear 
these rather sober yet devout Rosicrucians 
talking about the man as if he was some 
sort of demi-God. 

They went on to say how UFOs 
followed Yepes about, and he had been 
able to heal the sick and cause 
unexplainable phenomena such as causing 
people to enter into trance like states to 
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my investigation, certain people became 
aware of my journalistic activities, and vol­
unteered themselves to give personal inter­
views. Some of these people have re­
quested that their identities not be dis­
closed, while others have made it known to 
me that they are more than willing to give 
information with their identity known. 

To those of the group who feel offended 
or upset by some of the content of this 
article, I can only express my regrets, and 
re-assure that it is not the purpose of the 

free them of negative spirits and energies. 

By the end of the 
conversation, I was convinced 
of the fact that I had to assign 
myself to investigating this man 
and his group, the Great White 
Brotherhood. A group that has 
over 500 members throughout 
Colombia. 

RACIAL GROUP 

Sounding more like a group 
from the oppressionist fifties 
America, the Great White 
Brotherhood actually is 
supposed to represent a band of 
people who are trying to achieve 
a state of spiritual purity of 
whiteness, not skin color! In 
reality, the name of the Great 
White Brotherhood is a global 
term, with many groups from 
Sedona in New Mexico, 
Canada, France and Italy all 
being comprised of channellers 
and followers using it as a group 



Earth vibration to that of the fourth 
dimension in the year 2013ad. During this 
time, he would broadcast the messages of 
friendly extraterrestrial entities operating 
within and without the solar system to the 
people, and also teach them by allowing 
himself to act as a channel to be able to 
attain higher spiritual states of being while 
existing in the Earth plane of existence. 

PHOTO: Truthseekers so-founder and South American reporter Paul Damon 

As well as channelling entities from 
other worlds, Raul also claims to be able to 
channel angelic entities, and indeed the son 
of God, Jesus Christ, as well as the virgin 
Mary (Blasphemy total to the Catholic 
religious authorities here). Among these 
entities are; Mer, Moria, Sanat de Kumara, 
Maytrella, Venus, Philip, German, Kutumi, 
Bisirio, Yesel, Rama, Gabriel, Michael, 
Rafael, Ilato, Hilario and a host of others. 

name ofunition. 

My experience investigating the group 
located on the Island of San Andres in the 
Caribbean began in the early part of July, 
1997, after visiting a spacious office area on 
the second floor of an office building. I 
found myself surrounded by pictures of the 
Indian sage Sai Baba on the walls as well as 
mandalas, incense burning and various 
coloured candles. I was pleasantly surprised 
to find that the secretary of the group was a 
former English student of mine, so, she 
greeted me warmly and proceeded to give 
me some background information on the 
group, but told me that I should really wait a 
week to meet the Big man himself, Raul, 
who was coming to give a week of meetings 
to the followers here. 

I decided at this point to play dumb and 
pretend to be genuinely interested for 
reasons of spiritual advancement, instead of 
declaring myself to be nosing around for the 
sake of journalism. She explained to me 
about the various entities that Raul 
channelled. I was a little dismayed to learn 
that he claimed to channel Jesus Christ, but 
then again, I've heard of other channellers 
claiming to channel Jesus as Sananda. She 
went on to say that at all meetings, 
everybody except Raul must wear white 
apparel, for the sake of purity and positive 
energies!! 

MOUNTAINS OF PERU 

asked her if there were to be any 
charges for attending the meetings, to which 
she replied that there were indeed charges, 
but that they were at the discretion of Raul. 
It was at this point that I asked her if she had 
witnessed any curious things that had 
happened while she had been in his 
presence. She recounted to me an episode 
that occurred two months earlier while on an 
expedition with Raul and group members 

from all over Colombia to Macchu Picchu 
in the mountains of Peru. She said that 
during one session, a group of strange 
dancing lights had swept up from deep in 
one of the forested valleys and shot up into 
a clear night sky, breaking formation and 
climbing independently higher out of the 
atmosphere. 

The group is spread out all over 
Colombia; but centred in Medellin, the 
hometown of Raul Yepes. Also there are 
branches in Bogota - the capitol city, 
Cartagena, Cali, Baranquilla and San Andres 
Island (subject of my investigation). 

I asked her if during the sessions, his 
voice would change, and she nodded 
thoughtfully. She explained that his whole 

IN THE NEXT ISSUE, THE FIRST 
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people indirectly, staring 
into the space above a 
person's head. His voice 
would change profoundly, 
reflecting the calmness 
and tranquillity of the 
entity being channelled. 
He would also walk in a 
strange manner, 
sometimes doubled up like 
an old man, and 
sometimes, prancing like a 
prince. 
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actively channelling for 
some 15 years, ever since 
being consciously 
contacted by higher beings 
mentally. He had been 
informed that his mission 
is to develop and help 
assist in a change of 
consciousness that will 
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... cont from page 29 
Government. In short, according to this 

scenario, if such a plan was carried out then the 
entire nation could be brought under absolute 
socialist control in one night. Such a scenario 
may not be too far-fetched when we realize the 
following: 1) George Bush was, during his years 
at Yale University, initiated into the "Skull & 
Bones" society, also known as the "Brotherhood 
of Death" . 

According to prominent political and 
financial analysts such as Antony Sutten, there is 
much documentation to suggest that Skull & 
Bones is nothing less than a Western branch of 
the Bavarian llluminati, designed to recruit 
highly-educated individuals into serving it's 
cause; 2) George Bush served as THE 
DIRECTOR of the CIA for several years, which, 
according to various sources, is actually serving 
the one- world movement; 3) Bush has very close 
ties with one-world organizations such as the 
Council on Foreign Relations or C.F.R., Federal 
Reserve, Trilateral Commission, Bilderbergers, 
Alpine Institute, etc.; 4) Before Ronald Reagan 
"chose" a running mate, according to the late Gary 
Allen, he was approached at a political 
convention by the duo of Walter Cronkite and 
Henry Kissinger, both alleged Illuminists, and 
"strongly encouraged" to choose George Bush as 
his running mate as Bush was well-favored by the 
International Banking Establishment of 
Wallstreet; 5) The Bush family is very rich and 
are heavily involved in high-profit, offshore oil 
drilling companies. 6) Also, when news of the 
Iraqi invasion of Kuwait - where the Bush 
family's oil business had some vested interests -
reached America, George Bush was at the one­
world "Aspen" Institute of Colorado visiting with 
Margaret Thatcher. Bush's decision to rally the 
nations together by sendingour young men and 
women to fight and die for the "New World 
Order", was based on "advice" he received from 
officials at the one-world Aspen Institute. 
Although "Operation Desert Storm" was a well­
planned and well master-minded attack, the fact 
nevertheless remains that we were fighting to 
defend the "New World Order" and the oil 
interests (whereas we only get a very small 
percentage of our oil from Kuwait) and not to 
defend the constitutional United States. This war 
was a two-sided event. Even though the motive 
may have been other than in harmony with 
America's best interests in that (like Korea and 
Vietnam) it was fought FOR the Socialist­
oriented United Nations; some good nevertheless 
came out of it, in essence, that America was able 
to defend ISRAEL from an aggressive enemy, 
something which Almighty God most likely 
honored. However the target, Saddam Hussain, 
escaped free while tens of thousands of his 
subjects, so many pawns in a huge game of chess, 
had to pay the price with their Lives. As the 
Wordof God says, "evil shall slay the wicked" 
(Psalm 34:21). This may in part apply to Iraq, 
the land of ancient Babylon (the ancient city 
where the one-world movement and all occult 
movements had their genesis) which in a strange 
twist of fate was "judged" by the very oppressive 
movement which it created. Notice also Bush's 
constant references to the "New World Order" -a 
concept which is a mockery of the Declaration of 

INDEPENDENCE which our forefathers shed 
their blood to defend. True, we must as a nation 
not ignore the rest of the world, yet at the same 
time we should not surrender ourselves to the 
rest of the world either, but preserve the 
American Republic as a bastion of Freedom to 
which the oppressed of ALL NATIONS can 
take refuge. 

The reason we are so critical of this 
particular presidency is because we believe that 
the secret government - utilizing it's influence in 
mass-media control, MANIPULATED Bush 
into office in a direct perversion of the electorial 
process. In other words, through the fatastic 
media power which they wielded, the one­
worlders snuffed out the competition. We 
realize that it is Biblical to honor the governing 
officials, yet this is only to the EXTENT that the 
governing powers submit to the Almighty 
governing power of the Universe, God Himself. 
Elijah criticized the ancient King Ahab for this 
very reason, because he was leading the nation 
of Israel astray into Baal worship. 
Unfortunately, King Ahab and George Bush 
may have had a lot in common. We would 
rather hope that the opposite were true, but facts 
are facts . However, we must not fall into the 
trap of pointing the finger at any one person, as 
Bush happens to be only one link in a very large 
and very powerful "secret government" chain 
which, as we have seen, has sold out much of 
this planet to "The Beast". Bush, like many 
misled "insiders", was no doubt largely a 
product of his environment, as well as a member 
of a generational "Establishment" family, and 
more-or-less a puppet or voicebox of secret 
government policy. This fact should be taken 
into account, as well as the fact that the major 
"enemy" is the draconian influence as it exists in 
and behind the secret government establishment. 

There were, nevertheless, less-than­
honorable motives on the part of the United 
States in it's decision to fight in the Gulf War 
(see: YOUTH ACTION NEWS - Oct. 1990. , 
Box 312. , Alexandria, VA 22313- this source 
gives much evidence that Bush and Company 
more-or-less "encouraged" the Kuwaiti invasion 
and, when faced with irrefutable proof that such 
an invasion was coming, did absolutely nothing 
to warn the Kuwaitis or the Iraqis against such 
an invasion. Was Bush and Company willing to 
risk the lives of thousands of people just so his 
One World Government could be established 
and a "trial run" of the global U.N. Police Force 
could be initiated?). According to Dr. John 
Coleman (World Intelligence Review. , Box 
426., Metairie, LA 70004), the ancient 
Babylonian Serpent Cult, or what is known 
today as the "Illuminati" (33rd degree 
Fremasonry) is under the direct control of some 
very nefarious forces . Coleman in fact provides 
much evidence that 33rd degree Masonry has 
been used not only to infiltrate and take over 
many political, economic and religious 
institutions, but has also been used to "create" 
such institutions as well , organizations to which 
people will flock and submit their power and 
energies to unknowingly serve an agenda that 
they know nothing about. This was and is 
carried out through the 22 "Palladium" Lodges 
which, according to various sources, can be 
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traced back to the Grand Masonic Lodge in 
England. According to Coleman and many 
others, the Grandmasters of Masonry AND of 
Jesuitism (ie. the Illuminati) are working together 
in this conspiracy. In many cases the individuals 
involved are both Jesuits AND Masonic initiates. 
Such was the case of Guisse i Mazzini, who was 
a Jesuit-Mason, and a satanist-witch to boot, and 
was second-in-command to the Masonic "Pontiff" 
Albert Pike - whose rotting remains now lie 
beneath the"House of the Temple" in Washington 
D.C. (see Dr. Coleman's tapes: CONSPIRACY 
CULTS AND THE ONE WORLD 
GOVERNMENT, and FREEMASONRY AND 
THE ONE WORLD CONSPIRACY). 

Other works that may be very revealing along 
this Line, as we indicated earlier, are the writings 
of former 33rd degree Mason and former Past 
Master of all Scottish-Rite Masonic bodies, the 
Rev. Jim Shaw. This is especially true with his 
book THE DEADLY DECEPTION (P.O. Box 
884. , Silver Springs, FL 32688). In this work 
Mr. Shaw exposes the blatant SERPENT worship 
secretly taking place within the Masonic HOUSE 
OF THE TEMPLE in Washington D.C. Mix this 
with the accounts of "Masonic" street-outlays 
built into Washington D.C. itself and accounts of 
tunnels beneath the city which connect many of 
the important Federal buildings and which 
allegedly extend to extreme depths and distances, 
then you have a recipe for something very strange 
and sinister which is undermining our nations 
capitol. No wonder the Christian- Patriots within 
the American Repulic have had to fight "the 
enemy within" for so long with so little aparent 
results from their efforts. Concerning Bush's 
one-world policies, we will quote here from a few 
letters to the editor which apeared in various 
issues of the UTAH COUNTY JOURNAL, as 
confirmation of some of the statements which we 
have previously made. One letter, apearing in the 
April 30, 1991 issue of the U.C.J., stated: 
"Editor: The April-May '91 issue of COMMON 
CAUSE reports that the fust successful 
exploration for oil in Kuwait was done by the 
Zapata Oil Co., of which current President 
George Bush was a founder and director. The 
President's son, George W. Bush, is now the third 
largest insider stockholder in another off-shore oil 
drilling company located in Baluain, 15 miles 
from Saudi Arabia. This is Harken Energy Corp., 
with its home base in Bedford, Texas. "Does 
this information explain the Rambo-like "hurry 
up" war in Kuwait? Does it explain marked shifts 
in acceptance or castigation of Saddam Hussein? 
Does it offer an explanation for the terrible 
destruction of the Kuwait oil fields and Persian 
Gulf waters? Do these two leaders really have the 
welfare of their respective peoples at heart? I 
would give anything to read one of the history 
books on this war written 25-50 years hence. -
Eugene J. Faux; Provo." And in the Feb. 26, 
1991 issue of the same publication: "Editor: 
In the Feb. 12 issue of the JOURNAL an 
obviously well-intentioned lady suggested that we 
pray for President Bush because he has 'awesome 
responsibilities.' 

"He has, indeed, many awesome 
responsibilities: a responsibility to uphold and 
defend the U.S. Constitution; a responsibility to 
weed out those in our government who, by intent 



or neglect, work to undermine the Republican 
form of govermnent given to us by our founding 
fathers ; a responsibility to tell the American 
people the TRUTH about the incredible, rapidly 
escalating national debt and what the debt will 
mean to our children and our children's children 
'unto the sventh generation' and beyond. He also 
has a responsibility to expose the hypocrisy of 
those who are working diligently to bring about a 
new constitutional convention, supposedly to 
propose one or two new amendments, while they 
already have entire new constitutions written and 
waiting. - Albert V. Burns; Spanish Fork." 
Another letter which appeared in the UTAH 
COUNTY JOURNAL during the Bush-Iraq 
controversy, Mar. 5 1991 issue, stated: 
"Editor: Mrs. (Colleen D.) brought up a very 
good point about my criticism of George Bush 
and his New World Order agenda. Rightfully, as 
a leader of a nation, he might be considered 
exempt from censure for any mistakes that he 
might make through oversight or a lack of proper 
information. Unfortunately, this is far from the 
case with Bush. 

"Sadly, the president is very cognizant of his 
actions and exactly where these actions are 
speedily leading us - to a world govermnent ruled 
by elitist insiders. History can conclude nothing 
less than this result. For a compete analysis of 
Bush, his political history, and his leadership of 
the Council on Foreign Relations and the 
Trilateral Commission, I enthusiastically 
recommend the new book on George Bush - THE 
ESTABLISHMENT MAN, available through 
The John Birch Society. Well documented, this 
book will put to rest any remaining praises for our 
chief executive. "In fact, my critique of the 
executive is founded upon my patriotism, not 
turning against it. President Teddy Roosevelt 
stated: "Patriotism means to stand by the country. 

IT DOES NOT MEAN TO STAND BY 
THE PRESIDENT OR ANY OTHER PUBLIC 
OFFICIAL SAVE EXACTLY TO THE 
DEGREE IN WHICH HE HIMSELF STANDS 
BY THE COUNTRY. It is patriotic to support 
him insofar as he efficiently serves the country. It 
is unpatriotic not to oppose him to the exact 
extent that by inefficiency or otherwise he fails in 
his duty to stand by the country." As Bush has 
repeatedly violated his oath to defend the 
Constitution, I will continue to patriotically 
reproach his intentions. "As forbeing in the 
White House when Bush sent National Security 
Adviser Brant Scowcroft and Deputy Secretary of 
State Lawrence Eagleburger to Beijing 
immediately and secretly after the Tienamen 
Square massacre, no, I was not present when he 
made that call. That's why we have the press. 
The White House announced that such was the 
case on Dec. 18, 1989, to anyone listening. Such 
betrayal of freedom-fighters is par for the course 
when we look at Bush's policy toward other 
people seeking liberty, but receiving only his true 
objective: World despotism in his New World 
Order. - Bruce J. Martin." In relation to the 
above concern of whether we should 
unquestioningly trust our elected (?) heads of 
state, it is interesting that of all the presidents 
which have been in the White House since the 
assassination of John F. Kennedy (which many 
allege was actually an Illuminati-inspired coup), 
EVERY SINGLE ONE OF THEM have been 

supportive of the one-world govermnent 
movement as it is incarnate in the Council of 
Foreign reltions and allied global organizations. 
Coincidence? Finally, we have this letter 
from the September 18, 1990 issue of the same 
publication: "Editor: In his September 
address to the nation, President Bush stated his 
five objectives for the massive deployment of 
U.S. troops. The fifth is the fundamental reason 
for this operation. As Mr. Bush stated himself, 
"The crisis in the Persian Gulf, as grave as it is, 
also offers a rare opportunity to move toward a 
historic period of cooperation. Ont of these 
troubled times, our fifth objective - a new world 
order- can emerge ... We are now in sight of a 
United Nations that performs as envisioned by 
its founders ." "The U.N. 'founders' included 
U.S. communist traitor, Alger Hiss, who was 
the acting secretary general of the conference in 
San Francisco in 1945 . Hiss was accompanied 
by a contingent of U.S. communists and a 
swarm of Council on Foreign Relations 
members. The communists wanted world 
govermnent by revolution and the others wanted 
it by wayof socialism. In either case, these 
individuals did not want national sovereignty of 
the kind fought for by our founding fathers. 

"The fundamental difference between a 
"new world order" under the United Nations and 
an independent United States are nowhere 
clearly indicated than in our DECLARATION 
OF INDEPENDENCE affirmation that "men 
are endowed by their Creator with certain 
unalienable rights." The UN's total exclusion of 
God means that rights do not come from God, 
(but) that they proceed from govermnent, and 
govermnent can and will take them away. 
"Our country has suffered in the past from U.N . 
decisions and action. U.N. advocates gave away 
all the gains our fighting men bled and died for 
in Europe and Asia after World War II. We 
fought Korea and Vietnam under U.N. sanction 
and command with victory denied even though 
over 100,000 men lost their lives and hundreds 
of thousands were wounded (in addition to this, 
several sources allege that communist nationals 
working within the U.N. constantly etrayed U.S. 
positions and strategies to their allies in North 
Korea, and repeated this betrayal during the 
Vietnam conflict as well. It is a fact that the 
MAJORITY of the "United" Nations Secretary 
Generals have also been communist nationals -
Branton). Nixon and Kissinger operating under 
"new world order" dictates gave South Vietnam 
to the communist enemy after our military 
fought so valiantly even with the treasonous 
restrictions imposed on them. 

"Now, George Bush wants the men and 
women of our armed forces to die ... for the new 
world order... George Bush's drive for a "new 
world order" is not worth ONE DROP of 
American blood. But blood we shall have until 
we once again elect constitutionalists to office 
instead of one-worlders. - Mike Thomas; 
Pleasant Grove." The January 26, 1990 issue 
of THE NEW FEDERALIST revealed even 
more about the Bush - one world connection. In 
his article, BUSH'S CHINA POLICY: SKULL 
AND BONES, Joseph Brewda writes: 

"Jan 19 (EIRNS)--An obscure secret society 
know as "Skull and Bones" may have more to 
do with George Bush's obsessive support of 

Beijing's mass murderers than one may think. 
"Skull and Bones is a secret fraternity at Yale 
University which is restricted to a mere fifteen 
student members per year. The society was 
formed in 1832 by General William Russell, 
whose shipping firm later dominated the U.S. side 
of the China opium trade. Yale University was 
founded by Eli Yale, who made his fortune 
working for the opium smuggling British East 
India Company. "Skull and Bones became the 
recruiting grounds and preserve of the most 
important New England-centered families-­
families who also made their money in the opium 
trade. These families, whose sons regularly join 
Skull and Bones, include the little known, but 
powerful, Coffins, Sloanes, Tafts, Bundys, 
Paynes, Whitneys. They are a dominant element 
of the U.S. 'Eastern Establishment' to this day. 
The Bush family is one of a cluster of lower-level 
Establishment families controlled by these 
interests. "What has this to do with Bush policy 
towards China--or for that matter, Bush's "War on 
Drugs"? (Note: the last television news reporter to 
ask Bush a critical question concerning the many 
narcotics agents who are complaining about how 
bad the "drug war" was going, was promptly fired 
from his job shortly after the press conference -
Branton) 

"George Bush, the first U.S. diplomatic 
representative to the People's Republic of China 
back in 1973, was a member of Skull and Bones. 
So were his father, brother, son, uncle, nephew, 
and several cousins. Winston Lord, the Reagan­
Bush administration Ambassador to China was a 
member; so were his father and several other 
relatives. James Lilley, the current Ambassador 
to China, was a member of Skull and Bones, as 
was his brother. Except during the Carter 
administration, every U.S. Ambassador to Beijing 
since Kissinger's deal with Mao Zedong was a 
member of the same tiny Yale cult. A mere 
coincidence? "MAO WAS A Y ALIE - Back in 
1903, Yale Divinity Schol established a number 
of schools and hospitals throughout China that 
were collectively known as 'Yale in China.' It has 
since been shown that 'Yale in China' was an 
intelligence network whose purpose was to 
destroy the republican movement of Sun Yat-sen 
on behalf of the Anglo-American Establishment. 
The Anglo-American "Establishment" hated Sun, 
because he wanted to develop China. On the 
other hand, they loved the Chinese communists 
because they intended to keep China backward, 
and were committed to growing dope. One of 
'Yale in China's' most important students was 
Mao Zedong. "During World War II, 'Yale in 
China' was a primary instrument used by the U.S. 
Establishment and its Office of Strategic Services 
(OSS) to install the Maoists into power. 'Yale in 
China' was run by OSS operative Reuben Holden, 
the husband of Bush's cousin, and also a member 
of Skull and Bones. "The Maoists made China 
into the world's largest opium producer. "'Yale 
in China' was also closely associated with the 
NewYork-based Union Theological Seminary, 
which has been a center for U.S. subversion of 
Asia Oiteral wolves in sheeps clothing- Branton). 

Every prominent radical leader operating in 
Korea today, for example, was trained at Union 
Theological. Union Theological was dominated 
for twenty years by Henry Sloane Coffin, a U.S. 
intelligence executive from the Sloane and Coffin 
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families . He was a Skull and Bones member as 
were a dozen of his relatives. "Nor should it 
be forgotten that Averell Harriman, the former 
Ambassador to Moscow who did so much to 
build up the Soviet Union, was a member of 
Skull and Bones. Harriman was also a business 
partner of Prescott Bush, Sr. , the father of Maoist 
enthusiast George Bush." Note: This Skull 
and Bones - Communist connection is also 
confirmed by geopolitical and economics 
researchers such as Dr. Antony Sutton (Sutton's 
books may be obtained through 

THE PA1RIOT REVIEW. , 33836 SE Kelso 
Rd. 6., P.O. Box 596., Boring, OR 97099; OR 
via THE MIDNIGHT MESSENGER., P.O. Box 
472. , Altadens, CA 91001). 

Not only did the Skull and Bones (Western 
Illuminati) help to build up the Communist 
movement in China, but they gave considerable 
financial aid to the Soviet Union communists as 
well. According to Sutton, this power cult has 
for centuries been playing a "two ends against 
the middle" type of game, attempting to control 
America (the thesis) and Russia (the anti-thesis) 
and other countries or movements, carefully 
pitting them against each other at the lower 
levels in order to keep the populations of the 
world in a state of confusion and despair, to the 
point that they will - hopefully - resign 
themselves into accepting the New World Order 
"synthesis" as the only alternative to solve the 
very "problems" which THEY, the New World 
Order initiators, created in the first place! 

One startling, though documented, claim 
which Mr. Sutton makes is that the Nazi 
Movement was largely financed by the Skull and 
Bone - Illuminati as well. This connection was 
recently described in a mailer describing Val 
Valerian's book MATRIX ill (c/o Leading Edge 
Research., P.O. Box 481-MU58., Yelm, WASH 
98597). Part of this mailer states: 
"Interspaced with the material comes a host of 
data, suplementary material, interviews, and 
revealing information. The 'Final Scenario' is 
discussed relative to the New World Order and 
the plans for total economic control, a one-world 
religion, and the electronic mind control 
objectives, schools of thought, and research. 
MATRIX ill brings out in detail how various 
families in the United States and Europe are also 
involved in a scenario which has as its main tenet 
the suppression and elimination of human beings 
on many levels - a scenario which includes 
worldwide traffic of drugs, vast laundering of 
drug money by national banks of several 
countries, and assassination and murder. These 
are the people who arranged and supported all 
the wars. There is discussion of the Bush family, 
and how Pescott Bush assisted the finance and 
management of the Nazi empire - the so-called 
Hitler project. .. " Much of Valerian's writings 
are very well-documented and can be followed­
up, yet the only criticism of his work which we 
have deals with the fact that, we believe, he has 
placed too much confidence in so-called 
"channeled" revelations as sources of 
information. We believe, based on past 
experience and research, that much of the 
information received through so-called "trance 
channels" should be discarded for several 
reasons: 

• 1) Such information is often self­
contradictory. 
• 2) Channeled revelations often contradict 
"revelations" received through other 
"channels". 
• 3) There are supernatural beings 
inhabiting the aerial realm whose very 
purpose and "assignment" is to counterfeit 
"divine" revelation in order to spread 
propaganda, confusion or mislead the 
seeker from the truth. This is often, we 
have found, accomplished by offering the 
seeker a substantial amount of "truth" in 
order to uphold one strategic ie. 
• 4) Channeled information in most cases 
cannot be followed up by physical 
documentation or evidence. 
• 5) There are many indications that non­
human beings, both supernatural and 
reptilian, are utilizing occult channels in 
order to carry out propaganda warfare 
against those who possess the truth. 

As we will see in later writings there is also 
much evidence that these alien beings have 
utilized witchcraft and occult movements (ie. the 
serpent cults) since the earliest times in order to 
further their reptilian cause. In relation to the 
Bush - Establishment - Serpent Cult - Reptilian 
connection, we will now quote from an article 
which was submitted by one of our researchers. 
This article, written by a Gerard Vander Leun, a 
eared in the Nov. 1990 issue of Penthouse 
Magazine: "IS GEORGE BUSH AT THE 
CENTER OF THE GREATEST AND MOST 
SECRET PLOT EVER LAUNCHED 
AGAINST MANKIND? "Dear Reader: It is 
a well-known fact that: "1) The government 
has approved and entered into a secret treaty 
with an aien nation. "2) The government, 
with this treaty, has traded human lives and 
property (in the form of livestock and land) for 
alien technology. "3) The government has 
murdered, incarcerated, forcibly relocated, 
brainwashed, coerced, drugged, harassed, and 
otherwise interfered unlawfully in the lives of 
patriots, including a president of the United 
States, who have attempted to expose this 
murder and treason. "4) In pursuit of 
bringing all those responsible for these acts to 
justice, the following are hereby charged with 
conspiracy, murder, and treason: the Trilateral 
Commission; the President; the Vice-President; 
the director of Central Intelligence; certain other 
members of the CIA; the director of the National 
Security Agency; members of the Cabinet; the 
Joint Chiefs of Staff; the director of the Senior 
Interagency Group (SIG); the national security 
adviser to the President; and the Navy 
Department which has field operation control of 
all alien- connected projects. It is expected that 
many thers who have taken part in the joint 
government and alien conspiracy will also be 
charged with conspiracy, murder, and treason. 
This list will include all those who served in the 
aforementioned positions from 1953 up to and 
including the present administration. (Note: 
Since many of these individuals are merely 
"following the orders" of the elite insider groups 
who are ultimately controlled by the Jesuit­
Masons; the GRANDMASTERS of Jesuit­
Masonry, the inner Illuminati or Serpent Cult, 
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should be indicted as the major traitors against 
the human race. 
Many of these Jesuit-Mason leaders are members 
of the ancient generational families who have 
controlled the drug trade, manipulated wars and 
revolutions in their favor, and have infiltrated the 
economic institutions of the world. They have no 
fear of divine retribution because they believe in 
no god other than themselves- Branton) "5.) 
We call for the impeachment of the president of 
the United States, George Bush. As president 
and C.E.O. of Zapata Oil,Mr. Bush organized 
and has headed the narcotics-smuggling 
conspiracy since its beginning. The off-shore oil 
platforms of Zapata Oil were used as staging 
areas from which drugs were moved into these 
United States without passing through Customs 
or undergoing inspection of any kind. We firmly 
believe that George Bush now heads this shadow 
government that controls the alien technology, 
the military-industrial complex, and thus the 
nation. The fact that he is now the president of 
these United States of America makes George 
Bush the most powerful and dangerous criminal 
in the history of the world." Note: Where does 
all this ill-gained money go? According to many 
sources, much of this as well as the multi­
billions in "Black Budget" monies provided by 
the taxpayers pours into the insiders' relentless 
and secret efforts to construct underground as 
well as off-planet (Moon, Mars, etc.) places of 
refuge where the secret government members and 
their families will escape to in the event of a 
global manmade or naural catastrophe. How 
thoughtful of us "mere mortals" to give our 
wealth and even our very lives just so that the 
"immortal elite" can survive to usher in a "New 
Age" on planet earth... This reminds us of 
something the 33rd degree Mason/O.T.O. 
Grandmaster Dennis Brunnell said: That the 
creator of the James Bond movie "Moonraker" 
had inside knowledge of the secret government's 
end-time plan, and thought that it would make a 
great movie. But as they say, Truth is even 
stranger than fiction. 
The modem secret societies which are being 
manipulated by the infernal reptilian races are a 
arently extensions of more ancient societies who 
were also manipulated and influenced by these 
subterranean creatures. Several ancient races in 
fact believed in the existence of an "underworld" 
inhabited by serpent-like beings possessed with 
supernatural powers. Many of these mis-guided 
souls even worshipped these creatures, not so 
much out of adoration, but more out of fear or 
terror. Human sacrifices were even offere in an 
attempt to a 
ease the destructive influence of these "demon 
gods", and temples and shrines were often built 
over or near caverns which were regarded by 
these superstitious people to be openings to this 
nether world. One such shrine is located 
several miles southeast of Oaxaco, Mexico 
among some very ancient ruins. Among these 
ruins lies the ancient temple of "Mitla". Various 
accounts allege that in ancient times this temple 
descended deep underground into a basement, a 
sub-basement, and an ultra-sub-basement level. 
Within this third sub-level a large stone door was 
said to have concealed subterranean recesses 
beyond. According to the late subsurface 



researcher Charles A. . Marcoux, as well as the 
anonymous U.S. Intelligence worker 
"Commander X", and others, the native Indians 
of the area centuries ago used to sacrifice humans 
to the underworld "gods" that were believed to 
exist within the dark caverns beyond the stone 
door. These victims were allegedly thrown into 
these dark chambers alive an were never seen 
again. Some centuries ago some priests arrived 
in this area of southeastern Mexico and 
commenced to explore the ruins, including the 
ancient Temple of Mitla. They managed to pry 
open the door in the third basement level and 
entered the underground chambers beyond. 
Torches in hand, they continued deep into what 
seemed to be an endless subterranean concourse 
leading in the direction of a distant mountain 
range. After penetrating a considerable distance 
they became fearful as they noticed serpents 
slithering among the rocks off in the darkness, 
they would see strange shapes and shadows 
among the ancient stone pillars which lined the 
concourse, eerie noises and winds began to blow 
through the large passage, and a they were 
overcome with a general feeling of fear and 
dread. Convinced that they were on the outskirts 
of Hades itself they made a hasty retreat, after 
which the Priests sealed the door and ordered the 
natives to fill-in all three basement levels with 
rock and earth, completely conealing all evidence 
of the subterranean connection. Another such 
account involves the ancient Greek "Temple of 
Apollo", in Hierapolis (now Pamukkale), 
Turkey. This city was once part of the ancient 
Grecian empire, which covered an extensive area 
in and around the Mediterranean sea. One article 
which appeared in the January, 1989 issue of 
OMNI Magazine, referred to strange disa 
earances which had taken place in a cavern 
adjacent to this now broken-down temple. The 
article quoted from the writings of the ancient 
Greek philosopher "Strabe" (who lived between 
63 B.C. and 24 A.D.), to the effect that animals 
would often enter the cave and never return. 
Also MANY PEOPLE throughout history who 
went past the mouth of the cave never returned. 
The article also quoted one Sheldon Aaronson, a 
professor of microbiology at Queens College, 
N.Y. , who told OMNI that several Australian 
students had entered the cave and disa 
eared just a few days before his visit in 1987. 
Sheldon stated: "The Turkish government pu 
iron bars over the opening to prevent other 
people from ever going in. As far as we knew, 
the Australians were never seen again." 
According to the article, the Greeks believed that 
the cavern was an opening into the "land of the 
dead ruled by the gods of the underworld." 
As for the possibility of an underground 
subterranean "world", science tells us that the 
lowest depths of the earth (upper and lower 
mantles) contain temperature and pressure 
extremes so great that physical life could not 
possibly exist there. Some however believe that 
there is evidence for the existence of a vast 
global network of geothermal and hydrothermal 
cavities, somehow connected to the ancient 
deluge wherein the " .. . fountains of the great deep 
were broken up" . This allegedly occurred as 
magma-heated stratas of subterranean water­
filled caverns (brought to enormous pressures by 

an expanding and over-heated mantle) suddenly 
burst through the crust (Gen. 7 :11) like a 
tremendously large exploding pressure boiler. 
Some claim tht the underlying basaltic rock 
layers within these gigantic global aqna-systems 
were dissolved into these global subterranean 
reservoirs as their temperatures and pressures 
increased. Afterwards these vast amounts of 
water exploded to the surface, thus explaining 
why the oceans now contain large percentages of 
"salt". These underlying chambers, many of 
which collapsed yet many of which remained 
intact, are believed to exist throughout the moho 
and crustal regions of the planet, just above the 
upper mantle. If evidence of ancient sunken 
continents ever becomes irrefutable, then such a 
theory would explain why whole island­
continents may have collapsed. Such a 
cataclysm may have resulted from the possible 
fact that huge underground chambers, no longer 
supported by these subterranean waters, 
suddenly caved- in on themselves. Other 
higher-level cavities created through seismic 
activity may also exist, cavities which may 
dwarf the Flint Ridge-Manunoth Caves of 
Kentucky or New Mexico's 

Carlsbad-Lechuguilla cavern system. It is 
suggested that THESE may contain conditions 
sufficient to support physical life (ie. air, water, 
subterranean flora and fauna, and perhaps even 
electromagnetically-induced illumination 
diffused throughout the underground 
"atmosphere" through a phenomena somewhat 
similar to the effect produced by the Aurora 
Borealis or "Northern Lights"). As we've 
said, there are literally hundreds of accounts 
which seem to support each other (we will 
attempt to describe as many of these as we can 
in future documents), suggesting that the above 
scenario or theory of a subterranean realm is a 
correct one. These accounts also suggest that 
antediluvian "Adamic" races, sometime before 
their destruction, possessed the ability to 
construct and excavate vast systems of 
underground tunnels connecting many of these 
natural cavities. 

Scientific discoveries including "ooparts" 
(out-()f-place-artifacts) also prove that the pre or 
ante-diluvians were much more intelligence and 
scientificall-advanced than most think, although 
of course many accounts state that this 
intelligence became corrupted, leading in part to 
their own destruction. Theologically speaking, 
the Bible indicates that the Adamic races 
achieved complex forms of scientific invention 
only a relatively few generations after man was 
established on this planet For instance, 
Genesis 4:22 indicates that by the time of 
Tubal-cain, 7th generation AFTER Adam, 
complex iron and metalwork, including no 
doubt increasingly complex forms of weaponry, 
were being produced. When we take into 
account the long life-span of these ancients, 
which was on the average of 500 years or more 
(Gen. chapt. 5) and the time-span between 
Adam and Noah, and compare this with the fact 
that modern man himself has gone from the 
horse-and-buggy to interplanetary travel in 
LESS THAN 100 years, then such a possibility 
seems even more apparent Also, Adam was no 
doubt formed by the Creator as a perfect 

"prototype" human being. Of course he would 
have to be very inelligence in order to carry out 
the purposes which the Creator charged to him -
ie. to name and identify all of the animals and 
trees, subdue the planet and become it's 
guardian, care for his wife and so on. As 
we've indicated, after mankind's fateful encounter 
with the serpent race and our progenitor's 
unfortunate response to the subversive strategies 
of the Reptilians, man lost much of the original 
supernatural dominion which he possessed over 
the earth and over the (by that time self­
corrupted) serpent race. The war between the 
humans and the saurians had begun, and 
according to many sources (many of which, as 
we've said, we will describe later on) man was 
forced to defend himself from these reptilian 
predators. 

Some sources believe that this was one of the 
major reasons why the Adamic race initially 
began, when the technology was developed to do 
so, to build the ancient subterranean systems. In 
these they would apparently be safe from the 
saurian predators as well as from other human 
races withwhom they might have been in 
conflict. The serpent race won this battle 
however in that they were able, through 
manipulation, to turn these antediluvian human 
races against themselves to the point of almost 
complete destruction. At this point we will quote 
from one of the many sources describing 
encounters with what may very well be a remnant 
of this antediluvian "tunnel" network. The 
following account was given in a letter which 
was submitted to AMAZING STORIES science 
fiction/science fact magazine, Dec. 1946 issue, 
p . 162. The letter was from a George A. Lehew 
of(at the time) 1918 W. Newport Ave. , Chicago, 
ILL. 

Lehew wrote: "Sirs ... I have been a reader 
of AMAZING STORIES for a very long time ... I 
too, know of one of these entrances into the 
world below. It is about fifty miles south of 
Pittsburgh, Pa., in the first range of the 
Allegheny Mountains. My experiment with the 
caves have been only partial explorations, 
consisting of traveling about a mile and a quarter 
down into the cave itself, an returning. The cave 
IS VENTILATED from below, and stays at a 
constant 50 degrees no matter what the outside 
temperature may be. It is a series of rooms or 
galleries with narrow passages from one to 
another. In about the sixth room down, there is a 
large tree trunk which could not have come from 
the surface as the stratosphere (sic) is almost 
completely free from local fault; and it could 
never have come DOWN through the openings 
in the cave itself as they were small at the top, 
and kept getting progressively larger as they got 
deeper. "I traveled down as long as I could 
find comparatively easy travel--about 45 degree 
descent all the way--and finally came to what I 
thought must be the end of the cave, for I could 
see no more openings into rooms, but on closer 
examination found instead a bore, about six feet 
across, straight down into solid rock. I turned 
my flash downward and could see that it must 
have gone straight down for at least a hundred 
feet, the sides were perfectly smooth, and the 
shaft, o bore, in a perfect round--no apparent 
irregularities anywhere--! had no way of 
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descending any further, so I retraced my steps 
back up through the different rooms to the top of 
the mountain where the cave opens into this 
world. I made discreet inquiries of several old 
timers in that region, and found that in 1915, or 
about that year, six surveyors took gear and 
equipment, and spent a month in exploration of 
the cave, going 18 miles from the entrance, and 
down almost five miles below sea level. I have 
never gone back, but I hope to some day in the 
future, with escort, equipment, and supplies. I'd 
certainly love to see the machine that made that 
bore! If you have any information on other caves 
in that area, let me know--they too may tie in 
with this one, though if they do, their connections 
are very deep. Also, if you can, please describe 
the equipment that made that vertical shaft. Oh, 
yes, one more interesting item--the surveyors in 
their exploration of the cave, distinctly heard the 
rumble of MACHINER--but their calculations 
proved they were nowhere near a large city 
(surface), and they were too deep for surface 
noises otherwise. What is the answer?" 

Another account dealing with subsurface 
phenomena and creatures appeared in the June, 
1945 issue of AMAZING STORIES, in a letter 
submitted to that magazine by Jerry LaPriore (at 
the time) of2024 Pleasant St., Fall River, Mass. 
The letter stated: "You asked for stories that 
might relate to ... the caves. My mother was told 
this story by an old man who said it was true as 
truth itself: This man and a friend were hunting, 
agreeing this time to go to a portion of the 
wood's to which they did not normally go. They 
saw a deer and gave chase. It jumped through a 
clump of bushes and they followed--to fmd 
themselves unaccountably in the strangest 
surroundings. They were in a huge cavern that 
had numerous passageways leading from it. 
Before them was a monster-like man they 
thought was the Devil himself. The monster 
stared, and the two men stared ack. One of them 
fainted from fear, and the man who told my 
mother the story dragged the other away in panic, 
and as he did so, found himself just as 
mysteriously in the forest again. The old man's 
friend died a week later as a result of the shock 
he had suffered. The old man tried later to find 
the cave again, but failed. I know this story is 
true because my mother does not tell fairy tales 
and because she believes it." The previous 
letters appeared in the wake of the so-called 
"Shaver Mystery" which occupied the pages of 
AMAZING STORIES Magazine throughout the 
years 1945-1950. The "mystery" was based on 
the writings of a welder by the name of Richard 
S. Shaver, who had written several admittedly 
science fact-fiction stories after his initial 
manuscript A WARNING TO FUTURE MAN 
(which was re- written into "science fiction" 
format by AS. editor Ray Palmer) originally 
aappeared in AMAZING STORIES. These 
stories dealt with an underground world 
inhabited by human-like people called "Tero's" 
and theirmortal enemies - grotesque, inhmnan 
creatures called "Dero's". Both of these "races" 
allegedly had access to ancient "recovered" 
techcologies including a machine which 
supposedly projected encephalographic thought­
waves via rays electronically over long distances. 
Richard Shaver claimed to have visited this 

subterranean realm only once physically -
entering via row-boat through a shore-side cave 
hidden in a bay somewhere east of Washington 
D.C. Incidentally, as we've indicated elsewhere, 
there are accounts which allege that an entire 
system of ancient "Atlantean" tunnels with 
extremely hard, glazed linings have been 
discovered beneath the D.C. area, and that these 
ultimately lead to an ancient "Atlantean" 
subterranean complex which some say was in 
ancient times, and is still now, known as ''NOD" 
- could this be a reference to the descendants of 
Cain? - see: Gen. 4:13-16 and also the book 
"WEIRD AMERICA", by Jim Branden., (E.P. 
Dutton & Co., N.Y. 1978). Shaver claims that 
while visiting his "Tero" friendsin their 
underground city they were suddenly and 
without warning attacked by a group of several 
"Dero" who wielded beam-like weapons, yet 
Shaver himself for reasons unknown was 
spared. After the attackers left, and after he 
realized that all of his "friends" in the 
underground city were dead, Shaver allegedly 
then left the subterranean realm the way he came 
and never physically returned. This was the only 
physical and tangible encounter Shaver claimed 
to have had. After this, he says, the 
"inspiration" for his stories came in the form of 
messages received from these "thought­
projection" machines. His stories, however, 
became much more confused and occultic after 
this, and even anti-Christian in nature. 

Although we certainly do not doubt 
Shaver's former sincerity (he passed away in the 
mid-1970's) nor his intentions, from various 
indications we must make the defmite 
conclusion that the "voices" which he heard 
thereafter did not originate from the "tero's" 
utilizing thought-projection machines but 
actally from sources far more infernal, and 
perhaps reptilian, in nature - which were in fact 
masquerading as "Tero's". In other words- not 
denying Shaver's original encounter - the powers 
of darkness, we believe, began manipulating 
Shaver in order to spread confusion and 
disinformation about this underground realm 
and it's inhabitants, the reality of which (if we 
are to believe certain sources referred to earlier 
in these reports) was beginning to become 
known by certain groups on the surface such as 
secret societies, deep-level goverrunent 
agencies, and people such as George A Lehew, 
Jerry LaPriore, and hundreds of others who were 
having physical encounters or knew of physical 
encounters with the outskirts of this "nether" 
world. Could this have been the reason that 
"they" spared Shaver? Is it possible that they 
cunningly intended to use someone to spread 
false information about the subterranean regions 
when in fact that person acrually believed in the 
"information" he was receiving? We in all 
fairess must state that Shaver accuses 
RAYMOND A. PALMER of taking his 
writings such as the original "A WARNING TO 
FliTURE MAN" (describing an imminent 
invasion of the surface by a malevolent 
subterranean race) and "rewriting" it in the form 
of the novelette "I REMEMBER LEMURIA". 

Shaver alleges that Palmer took his writings 
and expanded them into a science-fiction-occult 
format so that the original essay would be 
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acceptable to his science-fiction audience and 
gain wider exposure. If this was the case then 
Palmer and Shaver's plan may have backfired 
since many mis-led souls, aware of the basic 
truths of the cavern world, began flocking to 
AMAZING STORIES, believing every word of 
Shaver's re-written stories. Even though Shaver 
was apparently convinced that the stories he 
received via mental projection or the so-called 
"thought-machines" were true, they nevertheless 
contained many occultic, confused and 
contradictory ideas even before he sent them on 
the Palmer. However Palmer must also be 
implicated in this if haver is correct in his 
allegations that Palmer "occultized" his writings 
even more, and that Palmer also added the idea 
that the stories were based on "racial memories", 
among several other alterations. Perhaps Palmer 
was the one most responsible for squandering 
what might have potentially been a singular 
opportunity to educate the masses about the 
underground realm and the activities taking place 
there, and the affect some of that activity had 
upon the every-day lives of surface humanity. 

How much of the present travesty taking 
place in the goverrunent-alien scenario might 
have been avoided if the uncorrupted TRUTH 
were known in the 1940's when the "Shaver 
Mystery" was hitting the news-stands and 
moulding the thinking of literally tens of 
thousands of AMAZING STORIES readers? 
The very methods used by Shaver and Palmer to 
"warn" the hmnan race about this subject to some 
extent did just the opposite and brought ridicule 
on the whole field of "paraspeleological" 
research. Many of Palmer's obviously 
fictionlized and implausible "additions" to 
Shaver's writings, originally intended to make 
the subject "palatable" to the mass readership, 
may have in fact had an adverse affect. If then 
Shaver was being used as an unwitting 
"disinformation agent", then why would these 
powers of darkness - the serpent races and their 
demonic allies - wish to hide the truth 
concerning, if not the very existence of, such a 
nether region from surface society? We believe 
that the reasons are obvious. Although not all, 
much of this nether "world" is being used by the 
"infemals" as a base of operations in their ages­
old "Cosmic Conspiracy" or conflict with the 
Creator and the souls- conscience of mankind. 
The less we on the surface know about their 
existence and activities, the better it will be for 
their hellish cause. Shaver and Palmer as we 
said may have been unknowing pawns who were 
being used to not only spread disinformation but 
also to bring others under the supernatural 
influence of these dark powers by encouraging 
the eaders to attempt to establish "thought­
contact" with these underground races by means 
which have in the past been attributed to 
witchcraft and the occult. Many of the 
researchers involved in compiling these files 
personally know of several people who have had 
their lives all but destroyed by taking "their" 
advice and, via occult methods, have attempted 
to contact these underworld beings via psychic or 
telepathic means. And after having done so have 
become oppressed, tormented or even possessed 
by beings who are absolutely malignant in nature 
and insensitive to humanities welfare. Also, 



mental illness, schizophrenia, and even suicide is 
not unheard of among those who have decided 
through occultic or witchcraft-related means to 
open up their spirits to any or all paraphysial 
beings which may be inhabiting the ether around 
them, in hopes oftapping-in to some benevolent 
subterranean beings' thought-beam. 

We will state here that if anyone is seeking 
to make their life easier by joining up with an 
advancd race of technological beings, whether 
subterrestrial or extraterrestrial, they will be 
disapointed, as there is no single place in the 
universe outside of Eternal Paradise itself where 
one will be completely free from the relentless 
attacks of the powers of darkness and their 
insatiable attempts to devour life and vitality 
wherever they may find it. This is something any 
society has to deal with, no matter how 
technologically sophisticated they may be. 
Physical technology cannot solve non-physical or 
spiritual problems. Palmer's deeply occultic 
philosophies are evidenced by the fact that he 
went on to create FATE and SEARCH 
magazine(s) which, although occasionally 
providing some useful information, nevertheless 
propounded the "virtues" of witchcraft, spiritism 
and the occult. Our Creator was not being 
insensitively strict when He warned us to stay 
away from dealings with the occult or the 
supernatural outside of his protection. He gave 
this command for our own good, so that we 
would not end up as thedegenerate spiritual 
slaves to infernal creatures that are ever seeking 
to gain control of our spiritual nature. 

In Deuteronomy chapter 18: vs. 10-11 we 
read: "There shall not be found among you any 
one that maketh his son or his daughter to pass 
through the fire (child or hmnan sacrifice), or that 
useth divination, or an observer of times, or an 
enchanter, or a witch. "Or a charmer, or a 
consulter with familiar spirits, or a wizard, or a 
necromancer." In spite of the Shaver - Palmer 
controversy, there actually have been other 
accounts which have described alleged 
PHYSICAL encounters with the underground 
realm, as well as with beings known as the 
"dero" and the "tero". It is uncertain whether 
Shaver intended to describe the "dero" as a 
runaway race of antediluvian, perhaps infernally 
controlled, self-perpetuating androids; or as non­
hmnan reptilian beings; or as a race of mind­
controlled hmnan sorcerers. All three groups 
have apparently come under the term "dero" in 
Shaver's stories (and te accounts concerning 
them which have been related by others), 
possibly due to the confusion resulting from the 
source from which Shaver received many of his 
alleged "revelations" as well as Palmer's own 
occultic and science-fictionalized installments. 
Perhaps the term "dero" was ment to denote a 
more general de-generate state of being, rather 
than a particular entity!? 

One account, for instance, which appeared in 
an early issue of CAVEAT EMPTOR magazine 
(P.O. Box 4553., Metuchen, NJ 08820- 4533), 
concerned a physical encounter with a HUMAN 
subterranean race. The account was related by 
an individual whose girlfriend 'Laressa' phoned 
him one night. She was quite shaken up and in 
tears, and told him that a friend of hers at school 
had invited her to go for a ride with her out into 

the countryside. This girl friend was somewhat 
strange, and a loner and would often disapear 
and be away from school for days or even weeks 
at a time. As they were driving in the 
countryside, according to 'Laressa', ths girl 
drove the car right towards a hill and before she 
knew what was happening the hill opened up 
into an underground 'road' and they eventually 
found themselves right in the middle of an 
underground city. She went on to say that the 
city was used by the 'D-Forces', a hmnan group 
who used the symbol of a 'wolf (on jewelry, 
etc.), and who were in conflict with another 
hmnan group called the 'T-Forces'. Both, she 
learned, possessed 'UFO' type craft, and the 
T-Forces were less powerful but were growing 
stronger day by day. This might tie-in with 
Shaver's "Dero's" and "Tero's". Several years 
ago a man by the name of Steve Brodie claimed 
to have been abducted into an underground base 
in Arizona and later found himself walking the 
streets ofNew York City six months later with 
little or no memory of where he had been. 
Brodie told his story to researcher John J. 
Robinson, who related it on Long John Nebel's 
W.O.R. radio show in New York City. Before 
Brodie mysteriously disappeared again he had 
told Roinson that he had the feeling he was 
'being watched' . His only recollection of the 
abduction was of being in a dungeon-like cavern 
in a cage-like enclosure with other humans who 
had told him that their captors (who wore dark, 
hooded capes) were known as the 'dero'. This 
name comes up again and again, but whether it 
refers to sorcerers, sauroids or synthetic beings 
is any ones guess. Perhaps as we've suggested 
all three are involved!? There have nevertheless 
been reports of 'possible' reptilian hominoids 
posing as hmnan-like beings, such as the 'alien' 
described on p. 109 of John Keel's book 'THE 
MOTHMAN PROPHECIES': "I am an 
amateur herpetologist and once kept three­
fanged cobras in my New York apartment... 
until my concerned neighbors squealed to the 
Board of Health. SOME OF THE 
DESCRIPTIONS OF THE ENTITIES 
IMPRESSED ME AS RESEMBLING SOME 
KIND OF REPTILE RATHER THAN 
HUMAN MAMMALS. I didn't mention the 
reptile notion to anyone. But on July 24, Lia (an 
alleged alien tied-in with the Men In Black) 
isited Jane (a contactee) and refused to talk 
about anything but eggs. She took some eggs 
from Jane's refrigerator and sucked out the 
contents like a reptile! Jane was perplexed by 
this exhibition and called me soon afterward." 
And on . 176-177 of Signet's 1975 paperback 
edition of 'MOTHMEN', in reference to this 
same 'contactee' Keel states: " ... Meanwhile, 
Jane's phantom friends were visiting her daily 
and helpfully giving her surprising information 
about my own 'secret' investigations. My 
interview with the Christiansens of Cape May, 
and the details of their pill-popping visitor, 
Tiny, was then known only to a few trusted 
people like Ivan Sanderson. But on June 12, 
Mr. Apol and his friends (the being that called 
itself 'Lia', referred to above, apparently being 
from this same group - Branton) visited Jane 
when she was alone in her house and asked for 
water so they could take some pills. Then they 

presented her with three of the same pills, told 
her to take one at that moment, and to take one 
other n two days. The third pill, they said, was 
for her to analyze to assure herself it was 
harmless. They undoubtedly knew she would 
tum it over to me. Two hours after she took the 
first pill she came down with a blinding 
headache, her eyes became bloodshot, and her 
vision in her right eye was affected. When her 
parents came home they expressed concern 
because her eyes were glassy and her right eye 
seemed to have a cast. The sample pill proved to 
be a SULFA DRUG normally prescribed for 
infections of the urinary tract. .. " The possible 
significance of the "Sulfa" drugs will become 
apparent later on in these 'Files'. 

Theodore Illion, in his book 'DARKNESS 
OVER TIBET', the inhabitants of an 
underground city beneath Tibet which the author 
claimed to have stumbled on. This underground 
community was allegedly ruled over by a 
powerful sorcerer who was part of an 
international secret society and who kept the 
inhabitants, many of whom were people who had 
'disappeared' from the world above, under 
complete mindcontrol to the point that they 
lacked any personality, their eyes were vacant 
and empty, and their lives were emotionless and 
drone-like, much like an ant colony. Or in other 
words, much like certain 'MIB'-like beings who 
have been encountered by UFO witnesses. This 
sorcerer was allegedly in contact with an infernal 
(reptilian?) race via a 'bottomless shaft' which 
descended through the city itself. Keep in mind 
the 'drone-like' aspect of certain people tied-in 
with alien activity, as it is a common threat than 
can be found in other caves involving UFO's, 
Conspiracies and Caverns. These two 
accounts (Illion's and especially "Laressa's" 
account as given inCA VEAT EMPTOR) tend to 
confirm that two opposing (?) beliefs somewhat 
similar to the conflict between socialism on the 
left and fascism on the right, have caused a great 
deal of conflict between many HUMAN 
inhabitants of these nether regions. When we 
consider that socialism and fascism are 
apparently being manipulated by the same 
source, ie. the Illminati (which in tum as we've 
seen is ultimately controlled by the serpent race) 
in order to tum hmnanity against itself so they 
can more readily be kept under subjection and 
control; then is it possible that a similar scenario 
is taking place in hmnan civilizations beneath the 
surface of this planet? 

There is evidence that the Illuminati is not 
only aware of the existence of these subsurface 
communities (for instance the subterranean 
connection a pparently existing beneath the 
Masonic U.S. headquarters of the 33rd degree of 
the Scottish Rite located in the "House of the 
Temple" within Washington D.C.) but is 
intricately involved in manipulating it's affairs as 
it has done in surface society. So we see how it 
may be possible that the entire planet, whether 
surface or subsurface societies, may be subject to 
Reptilian - serpent cult - Illuminati manipulation 
via the Jesuit-Rosicrucian-Masonic movements. 
The CAVEAT EMPTOR account, as well as 
many others which have been gathered by 
various writers, seemsto indicate that these two 
"factions" which largely exist among the 
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subterranean civilizations are known as the T­
Forces (fero's) and the D-Forces (Dero's). Each 
of these apparently "worship" either the positive 
or negative aspects of the electromagnetic 
"force", possibly similar to the so-called "light 
side" and the "dark side" of the "force" as 
depicted in the STAR WARS series. We realize 
that this concept may sound rather strange to us 
on the surface, but when we realize that intense 
electromagnetic currents may exist deep beneath 
the earth then it is entirely possible that any 
human civilization which might inhabit those 
regions may attempt to utilize this energy source 
to the point of utter dependence. If this is the 
case, then both of these groups would not be 
worshipping "God" in the Judeo-Christian sense, 
but rather a form of pantheistic nature-worship, 
the worship of CREATED FORCES RATHER 
THAN THE ONE WHO CREATED THOSE 
FORCES. This is not to say that ALL who 
inhabit these regions adhere to this eculiar belief 
system. 

There have been several accounts concerning 
individuals who have encountered human beings 
- some who spoke the native language and others 
who spoke a language entirely foreign - within 
deep underground tunnels and caverns. There 
are many such cases, but we will refer to only one 
of these at this point (and will reserve the others 
for later in the text), an incident which may be 
one the most well-known and most well­
documented accounts of this type: Sometime 
during the 12 century, a monastic chronicler in 
England by the name of "Gervase of Tilbury" 
recorded a strange account of two "children" who 
suddenly appeared near a small town near Bury 
St. Edmunds, England. The account was also 
recorded in the writings of several other 
chroniclers who lived at the time or sometime 
afterwards. These include: William of Newbury 
- HISTORlA RERUM ANGLICARUM, written 
in Yorkshire, England (1136- 1198?); Abbot 
Ralph of Coggeshall CHRONICON 
ANGLICARUM; and also the chroniclers 
Giraldus Cabrensis and Walsingham. The 
account was more recently related in FLYING 
SAUCERS UNCENSORED, by Harold T. 
Wilkins (Citadel Press., New York, N.Y. 1955., 
. 97-98). From their combined accounts we can 
piece together the following bizarre story which 
the chroniclers swore to be true. 

One warm, sunny day in the 12th century 
some farmers and other residents of the small 
town ofWol.tpittes, England- some seven miles 
distant from the larger village of Burry St. 
Edmunds - were startled to see two young 
children wandering around as if disoriented in 
some ancient "pits" or "trenches" known to the 
locals as the "Wolf-Pitts", after which the small 
village had taken it's name. These excavations 
were ancient, but no one seemed to know when 
or by whom they were dug, but the consensus 
was that they were at least partly artificial, and 
very ancient. The most shocking thing about the 
children, which the residents of Wol.tpittes 
encountered, was that they had skin which was 
olive-green in colour, yet the rest ofther features 
were as human as the average Englishman. 
The villagers attempted to communicate with the 
children but were unsuccessful as they soon 
discovered that the young boy and girl spoke a 

language which was completely unfamiliar to 
the villagers. The townspeople had compassion 
on the children and took them to the village and 
offered them various different kinds of food, all 
of which they seemed unfamiliar with and which 
they refused. However, when they were shown 
some beanstalks, they took them greedily, but 
instead of opening the bean-pods, the children 
attempted to open the stalks themselves, as if 
they had been accustomed to opening stalks in 
this way (apparently a practice they had learned 
in the land from which they emerged). Upon 
finding nothing in the stalks, the children began 
to weep. Unfortunately, the shock of entering 
our world was too much for the young boy, and 
even though he became partly acclimated to 
other forms of food, he nevertheless became 
weaker and weaker and finally diedas few years 
afterwards. The young girl, however, adjusted 
quite well to her new surroundings. In fact she 
eventually grew into a mature, beautiful woman, 
and later married a gentleman from the nearby 
town of Kings Lynn. As time passed, her 
husband patiently instructed her in the 
complexities of the English language, and soon 
she was able to communicate fairly well, and the 
story she told of where she had come from and 
how she had arrived in our "world" with her 
brother was even more incredible. She told 
her husband that her people all had skin similar 
to hers, or rather to what her skin had once been 
like, as over a period of years the greenish tinge 
had left her. She described her world as a 
cavernous, subterranean country of enormous 
size, a country which went by the name of "St. 
Martin's Land." The land in which she lived 
was described as "twilight" in nature, yet there 
was a large underground river, on the other side 
of which there was another land more brightly 
lit. One day, she and her broter were herding 
some type of underground animal when they 
heard something like the sound of "bells" 
emerging from one of the cave passages or 
tunnels which lined the perimeter of this 
underground land. Out of extreme curiosity, 
they entered this tunnel and followed the 
passage upwards for what could have been a few 
days, although in their underground land they 
probably did not have any concept of what "day" 
or "night" was. After their long and weary 
journey up the steep incline they suddenly 
emerged into the brilliant sunlight of the British 
countryside. The change from their twilight 
world was dramatic, and the children walked 
around in the pits or trenches starved, half­
blinded and disoriented. They shortly 
afterwards attempted to re-locate the small 
opening through which they had emerged, but 
were unable to do so, because of the blinding 
light. At about this point the farmers found 
them and took them to the village. 

A somewhat similar incident "may" have 
been repeated in the small hamlet of Banjs (or 
Banos) Spain in August of 1887, several 
hundred years after the incident at Wol.tpittes 
and several hundred miles distant. We state that 
it MAY have been repeated to some degree 
simply because there seems to be some 
confusion surrounding the Banjos account, 
apparently due to the possibility that some well­
meaning researcher may have confused the two 

TRUTH SEEKERS REVIEW -Issue 17 Page 40 

incident, in essence attributing some of the 
events that in fact took place near Wol.tpittes 
with the Banjos account. Basically, the Banjos 
incident reportedly had to do with two children 
who emerged from a CAVERN near the town 
(not "pits" or "excavations"), spoke an unknown 
language, and so on, although the details are 
sketchy. Some of the accounts of the Banjos 
incident repeat the Wol.tpittes story almost 
verbatim, as if, as we said, someone somewhere 
mistakenly confused the two incidents, perhaps 
due to a lack of detail in the Banjos, Spain 
account. Whatever the case, it seems that 
SOMETHING of this general nature also 
occurred in this Spanish hamlet, een though the 
exact sources of the story are much more difficult 
to trace than are the sources for the Wol.tpittes 
account. Paris Flammonde refers to this account 
in his book: THE AGE OF FLYING SAUCERS 
(Hawthorn Books, N.Y., p. 197), having learned 
it from an article in the September, 1967 issue of 
ORBIT Magazine, which in turn gave credit to 
an article in the Vol. XII, August 1967 issue of 
Dan Fry's UNDERSTANDING Magazine. Fry 
claimed that he got the story from an article by 
John Macklin which appeared in the December, 
1966 issue of GRIT Magazine. The account also 
appears in John Macklin's book STRANGE 
DESTINIES (Ace Books., N.Y.); Jacques 
Bergier's LES EXTRA-TERRESTRES; and also 
appeared in the British periodical WEEKEND, 
on July 22, 1970. Most accounts tend to 
support the idea that this nether world is 
basically inhabited by both HUMAN beings (of 
many types - ranging from large to small and 
from relatively peaceful or "neutral" to defensive 
and violent, usually the latter being controlled or 
manipuated by the infernal inhabitants of these 
lower regions); and also inhabited by 
REPTILIAN beings (of many types), ALL of 
which are apparently very dangerous and 
indifferent or outright malicious against the 
human race and human life. Many of these as 
we've said are extremely intelligent, although 
these creatures sometimes, according to various 
accounts, appear behind occult-technological or 
biogenetically induced human-like "disguises" in 
order to increase their dominion and control 
through infiltration, subversion, etc. All 
indications seem to point to the fact that these 
creatures, irreparably fallen and corrupted as a 
race since the events of ancient Eden, have no 
soul nor conscience or redeeming virtues but 
simply operate from parasitical-like motives of 
gaining power and control over all creation and 
all life by any and all means according to their 
predatory nature. This infernal nature is no more 
thoroughly portrayed than in an incident which 
took place several years ago near the small town 
of Dixonille, Pennsylvania. 

On July 14th, 1974 an article by Stoney 
Brakefield appeared in the Pennsylvania 
newspaper, NEWS EXTRA, reporting an 
incident which allegedly took place in 1944 near 
this small coal mining town, yet because of it's 
nature it had been covered-up for nearly 40 years 
until the son of the mining inspector who 
investigated the incident revealed it as his father 
(then deceased) had related it to him. 

This mining inspector and a fellow 
investigator had been called in to look into a 



"cave-in" in one of the Dixonville mines. About 
15 men had either been killed or turned up 
missing altogether in the strange disaster. Once 
inside the mine the inspectors eventually carne 
across the first victim. Although lying under a 
broken timber surrounded by some fallen rocks 
and rubble, they concluded that the cave-in 
certainly could not have been large enough to kill 
the man. The inspectors were shocked to find 
that the body of the miner was lacerated with 
claw-like markings from some unknown creatue. 
They continued and found a few other bodies, all 
dead and some of which had similar claw- like 
marks covering them. Several other miners had 
vanished, and were nowhere to be seen in spite of 
subsequent diggings . This tragedy aparently 
took place after the miners had broken into an 
ancient tunnel of unknown origin deep in the 
mine. This tunnel (at the time the inspectors 
didn't fully recognize it as the recently discovered 
passage or drift) was then followed by the 
inspectors at a 

Approximately a 45 degree angle 
downwards for about half a mile until they 
arrived at a "room" which "seemed" to be the end 
of the passage. At this point the passage behind 
them just "happened" to collapse (many accounts 
indicate that these underground creatures can 
create "cave-ins" at will, as was the case in the 
Maltese incident mentioned in earlier texts). 

A follow-up team was sent in to intersect the 
inspectors while this was taking place. This 
other crew followed the tracks of the inspectors 
into the mysterious tunel and eventually found 
the "cave-in" and began digging through in 
hopes of finding the now missing investigators. 
In the meanwhile one inspector (the father of the 
man who released the story to the press) suddenly 
felt something like "hot breath" on the back of 
his neck. He closed his eyes, too terrified to see 
what the "thing" was. As the other workers were 
breaking through, the "creature" left, perhaps 
frightened away. The other inspector who was 
with him however observed the whole thing and 
in wild-eyed horror he exclaimed, "That thing 
was not of this world!" 

The possibility that an ancient reptilian­
saurian race may exist below the surface of this 
planet is not an idea which is relatively new. 
This infernal yet physical race has been refereed 
to in spiritual and historical records which date 
back to the beginning of time. Ancient Hebrew 
history, for instance, records that our human 
ancestors were not the only intelligent, free will 
beings who inhabited the ancient world. Genesis 
chapter 3refers to the "Serpent", which according 
to many ancient Hebrew scholars was identified 
with a hominoid or bi-ped reptilian being. The 
ancient Hebrew word for "Serpent" is "Nachash" 
(which according to STRONG'S 
COMPREHENSIVE and other Biblical 
concordances contained in itself the meanings: 
Reptile, Enchantment, Hissing, Whisper, 
Diligently Observe, Learn by Experience, 
Incantation, Snake, etc. all of which may be 
descriptive of the serpent-sauroid race which we 
have been referring to). The original "Nachash" 
was not actually a "snake" as most people 
believe, but actually an extremely intelligent, 
cunning creature possessed with the ability to 
speak and reason. It also stood upright as we've 

said, as did many of it's descendants, the small 
"saurian" predators which ambled about on two 
legs. Many of these reptilian creatures retained 
their bi-pedal form while others mutated via 
natural selection, adaptation and atrophication 
into the other "saurian" species. 

The Hebrew account stated that the serpent 
ace (at one time uncorrupted) irreparably sold 
itself out to demonic entities in exchange for 
occultic powers and dominion over the human 
race, since the Adarnic race had been given 
dominion over the earth and "the beasts" (ie. all 
non-human creatures) by Jehovah Himself. The 
fact that "the Beast" now for a large part rules 
over man is to some extent mans fault. 

These infernally-empowered beings, who 
once roamed the surface of the planet and preyed 
on humanity, were later forced to go 
underground and make their abode in the 
subterranean networks which honeycomb the 
sub-crust of the earth. From these nether 
regions they have for thousands of years been 
carrying out their ancient and secret warfare 
against God and the souls of men, whom they 
hate intensely. 

Some years ago a lady by the name of Robin 
Collyns wrote an article referring to this serpent 
race and it's influence upon the human race 
throughout history. Collyns was of the opinion 
that (as these creatures alleged) the serpent race 
"created"man and planted him on this planet. 
All indications however strongly point to the 
fact that this is just one of many propagandist 
lies which this infernal race propagates. If these 
alien deceivers can convince man that "they" 
created us and therefore they are our "creator­
gods" so-to-speak, then we will be all the more 
likely to bow down and submit to these vermin 
in worshipful adoration. Such "revelations" and 
propaganda often come through "trance 
mediums" who claim to channel these alien 
beings. On a few occasions these alien creatures 
have spewed forth such propaganda directly to 
"abductees" during "UFO" encounters. 

Since their "race" has long since lost any 
concept of righteousness or moral integrity, 
"they" will not think twice about using 
deception or whatever means at their disposal in 
order to advance their over-all CONTROL of all 
things. Deception is and has been for thousands 
of years second nature to them, and therefore any 
statement made by them should be considered in 
light of this fac. John Lear alleges, based on 
what his sources have told him, that these 
entities, the saurian "greys", etc., even claim to 
have created Jesus. Even Lear regards this 
claim with great suspicion, believing that it is 
one of many attempts by these creatures to 
undermine traditional values in order to gain 
further control. Not to mention Jesus Himself 
condenmed the serpent race of being in league 
with Satan and his demonic hierarchy! Collyns' 
article nevertheless contained some useful 
information concerning the ancient influence of 
these creatures, which we quote: 

" .. .Old Sumerian, Babylonian, Egyptian, 
and Greek legends refer to the "serpent" deities 
who were believed to have once resided in the 
"underworld". The Garden of Eden in this 
context takes on additional interest and 
significance, possibly of paramount importance. 

Pristine legends from AUSTRALIA and the 
PACIFIC ISLANDS offer innumerable 
references to serpent deities/beings who were 
anciently associated with the creation enigma in 
the area (ote: There are in fact several accounts of 
caverns in Australia. 

" ... The spiral serpent symbol is found 
throughout the Pacific and is associated 
universally with the creation enigma... From 
earliest days, the serpent symbol is to be seen in 
many parts of the world, but undoubtedly the 
most fascinating portrayal is a detail on an 
Egyptian "magical" papyrus in the British 
Museum depicting a serpent encompassed by a 
ray-emitting disk. The most unusual form of the 
serpent symbol is a spiral representing a coiled 
snake; it has been discovered as petroglyphs and 
other pictorial representations in Britain, Greece, 
Malta, and Egypt, as pottery designs in New 
Mexico; as ground drawings on the Nazca 
Plateau, Peru, and throughout the Pacific Islands 
(Note: Nearly every site mentioned here has also 
been the site of intense subterranean activity and 
encounters with sauroid beings, as the reader 
may recall and as he or she will see further in the 
text - Branton). 

" ... Aborigine legends," Collyns concludes, 
"indiate that the serpent beings were not above 
waging war, and an identical parallel is also 
mentioned in the Hindu legends of the Nagas, 
serpent beings who carne from one of seven 
worlds.. . Aborigine legends (state that) the 
serpent beings waged many wars around Ayers 
Rock, and the vertical gutters in Ayers Rock 
testifY to these wars." 

The Nagas "seven worlds", by the way are, 
according to Hindu tradition, actually seven 
LEVELS of a subterranean nether world from 
where these Nagas, or serpent beings, originate. 

In "THE WORSHIP OF THE SERPENT," 
the Rev. John Bathurst Deane made the 
following statements and observations: " ... One 
of(the) five builders of Thebes was named after 
the serpent-god of the Phoenicians, OPIDON ... 
The first alter erected to Cecrops at Athens, was 
to "Ops", the serpent-deity ... The symbolical 
worship of the serpent was so common in 
Greece, that Justin Martyr accuses the Greeks of 
introducing it into the mysteries of all their 
gods... The Chinese... are said to be 
'superstitious inchoosing a plot of ground to erect 
a dwelling-house or sepulchre: conferring it with 
the head, tail and feet of diverse dragons which 
live UNDER OUR EARTH."' 

The Rev. Deane also states that hierograms 
or depictions of a circle (representing the sun) 
with wings and serpents emanating from it are 
predominant features "in the Persian, Egyptian, 
and Mexican hieroglyphics. China, Hindustan, 
Greece, Italy, and Asia Minor, as distinctly 
through more rarely, exhibit it; and it has even 
been found in Britain." (THE WORSHIP OF 
THE SERPENT TRACED THROUGHOUT 
THE WORLD, by the Rev. John Bathurst 
Deane., London., J.G. & F. R.ivington., 1833) 

In his book "VENOMOUS REPTILES" 
(Charles Ceaibrer Sons, N.Y. 1969), author 
Shirrnan A. Minton Jr., an expert on reptilian 
and amphibian biology, reveals some peculiar 
scientific facts concerning "reptiles". These facts 
include the following: A) All reptiles have 
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scales, B) All are cold-blooded, C) All lay 
eggs, D) All reptiles with well-developed 
limbs have clawed toes, E) TERE ARE 
'LIZARDS' WITH ELONGATED SNAKE­
LIKE BODIES - A TYPE OF 'MISSING 
LINK' BETWEEN THE LIZARDS AND 
THE SNAKES, F) THE MODERN 
EVIDENCE (SCIENTIFIC) INDICATES 
THAT ALL MODERN SNAKES ONCE (IN 
THE DISTANT ANCESTRAL PAST) 
POSSESSED LIMBS WHICH BECAME 
"ATROPHIED" THROUGH NON-USE, 
perhaps due to the fact they they BECAME 
aquatic or semi-aquatic creatures (Note: 
Snakes incidentally bare both aquatic AND 
land creatures, and can travel through either 
environment, as evidenced by the fact that 
snakes have often been seen swimming across 
rivers and lakes, etc. Not only Holy Scripture, 
but scientific evidence as well, indicates that 
"snakes" at one time in the ancient past had 
limbs but lost them in the process of time, 
while other reptilian species, at least for the 
present, have retained their limbs - Branton), 
G) REPTILES WITH "DEVELOPED 
LIMBS" USUALLY LIVE 
"UNDERGROUND"! 

The book "VENOMOUS REPTILES" 
also states the following: " .. . Cobras (according 
to legends) are descended from the Nagas, 
Serpent gods of Bhrat, or ancient India. Their 
worship has been traced to prehistoric 
Dravidian times before the Aryan invasion of 
the subcontinent in almost 1600 B.C. The 
Naga's power to inflict disproportionate 
physical damage or almost instantaneous death 
is explained in the Hindu Vedas as paralleling 
the energy of creation or fire." The book goes 
on to state that, A) The Naga's are said to have 
appeared at the birth of Guatama Siddharta, 
who later became "Buddha". - Note: The 
"Serpent" also played a large part in the 
legends surrounding another Hindu religious 
figure, ie. "Krishna.", B) The ancient "well" of 
Sheshna in Benares, India, is traditionally 
where the YOGA APHORISMS OF 
PAT ANJALI, a classical guide to students of 
Yoga, was written." This "well" is said to be 
an entrance to one of the Naga's underworld 
lairs. 

Take note that the same pattern of 
deception we see here is aparently similar to 
that which was used against Eve as recorded in 
Genesis chapter 3. Satan, working through the 
present-day "sold-out" aurian race (the seed of 
the Serpent), inspired or inspires these 
misguided Hindu's, Buddhists, Masons, etc. 
(the seed of the Woman) with blasphemous 
doctrines based upon the lie of the original 
Serpent or Nachash as recorded in the Genesis 
account: "Ye shall be as gods", a teaching 
which is at the very heart of occultic Yoga 
philosophy; ie. that by "tapping in" to the 
so-called "universal serpent force" one could 
gain supernatural powers and thereby become 
a "god". Such an occult practice was carried 

out by Adolph Hitler and the theosophist­
rosicrucian-jesuit connected occultists who 
surrounded him, but instead of tapping-in to 
the mythical "universal force" they instead 
opened themselves up to hideous demonic 
powers which had masqueraded behind the 
deceptive facade of such a pantheistic "force". 
How else can one explain the horrible 
atrocities which were carried out by the Nazi's 
during World War IT? 

There are indications that Hitler and his 
occult societies may have subsequently come 
into contactwith this serpent race, believe it or 
not. These include the face that: Hitler had 
himself read "THE COMING RACE," written 
by the Rosicrucian Grandmaster Bulwer 
Lytton, describing an underground race which 
"tapped" a supposed force called "vril", 
identical to the Hindu's "serpent force': Hitler 
had, after his rise to power, sent out numerous 
secret expeditions to nearly every continent 
including Antarctica, in order to explore 
ancient ruins and especially old mines and 
caverns in attempts to find geographical areas 
suitable for establishing underground "bases" 
of operation; A strange cult of Tibetan 
occultist-monks were actually found in some 
of the bombed-out ruins in Berlin near the end 
of the war, who had been killed by the blasts­
there were also rumors that Tibetan monks 
were assisting Hitler in the establishment of a 
"demonic" world order and religion. 

Again, we are not "condemning" any 
particular group of persons who may have 
been born into a society which has 
unfortunately fallen victim to thedeception of 
the draconian. Many of these people grew up 
in a society where "tradition" and "religion" 
are one and the same, or in other words they 
are - whether they like it or not - "members" 
of their religion (whether it be Far Eastern 
occultism or other) from birth. Reptilian­
inspired "religion" is forced upon a person 
against their will, for to deny religion would 
be to deny their tradition. In contrast to this, 
the religion of "The Lamb" does not force 
itself on anyone through fear and intimidation 
nor through traditional dogmatism; but offers 
itself freely to all who will receive it without 
condemnation. The way of "The Serpent" 
uses deception disguised as "secret initiation 
into higher knowledge" in order to manipulate 
a person towards believing the reptilian 
propaganda which they would use to get the 
believer to eventually worship their race. The 
way of "The Lamb" does not use secrecy or 
manipulation, but is open and honest and has 
nothing to hide, and therefore has no need for 
"secret" or "occlt" society. Unlike "The 
Serpent" which must hide in the darkness for 
fear of being discovered for what it really is, 
"The Lamb" has nothing to hide and does not 
fear scrutiny nor challenge, being absolutely 
perfect in every way. Therefore, this is not an 
attempt to "condemn" Hindus, Buddhists, 
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Masons, nor any other such group of persons, 
but an attempt to show them that there is 
another and a better path. 

The book "VENOMOUS REPTILES" 
also states that "Sheshna's well", an alleged 
opening into the underground reptilian realm 
of "Patala", may be seen today in Benares, 
India, and according to Minton, it's author: "It 
has forty steps leading down into a circular 
depression to a stone door covered with 
cobras. This is said to lead to PAT ALA, the 
reptile netherworld." 

Buddhist occultists like Robert E. 
Dickhoff, in his book "AGHARTA" (Health 
Research, Mokelumne Hill, CA), a somewhat 
"occultized" and confused look at the 
subterranean civilizations of Asia, 
nevertheless describes one event which seems 
o tie-in with various accounts which we have 
given earlier and which we will relate further 
on. According to Dickhoff, or rather from 
what he learned from certain Buddhist monks, 
some time in the ancient past an Asian prince 
and his followers had learned that a 
subterranean race of reptilian-like hominoids 
were causing a great deal of harm in the 
surface world through their attempts to 
manipulate the minds of those on the surface 
through "witchcraft" and "sorcery". This 
Asian prince eventually led an army of 
followers into the tunnels and caverns below 
central Asia and encountered the reptilian or 
"lizard" people. After a considerable conflict 
the reptilians-saurians were driven out of these 
ancient caverns and the (antediluvian?) 
subterranean cities which later became known 
as "Agharta". Ever since that time the 
reptilians, according to Dickhoff, have been 
plotting a re- takeover of these caverns and 
have been using occult "channels" to spread 
propaganda which would favor their cause. 

In his book"ON THE SHORES OF 
ENDLESS WORLDS" (Souvenir Press), 
Andrew Tomas gives some additional 
information concerning the "Nagas" or the 
"Serpent People" who are believed to originate 
from a gigantic underworld cavern network 
below central Asia and the Far East. On p. 
160 of his book Tomas states: 

" ... Even in this jet-age every Hindu is 
familiar with and usually believes in the legend 
of the Nagas, the "serpents" which live in 
extensive underground palaces in the rocky 
Himalayas. It is believed that these creatures 
are able to fly in space and that they possess 
amazing magical powers and intelligence. 
They are not too fond of man if he is a 
curiosity seeker, explorer or mountaineer. 
According to the sacred(?) tradition of the 
Hindus, the deep caverns of the Nagas contain 
fabulous treasures, illuminated by flashing 
precious stones. The subterranean abodes are 
known to be in certain parts of both the 



Himalayas and Tibet, particularly around the 
Lake of the Great N a gas Lake 
Manosarowar." 

Take note of te remarkable similarity 
between this description and medieval 
traditions of hideous and malevolent "dragons" 
who lived in dark underground lairs along with 
kidnapped human maidens and "stolen 
treasures." We've all heard of these tales, 
which most have formerly attributed to 
fantasy. However, could such tales actually be 
rooted in subconscious awareness of actual 
realities? 

Andrew Tomas describes his own personal 
encounters with those who claimed to have 
knowledge of these subterranean and space­
travelling creatures. On . 166-168 he states: 

" .. .I decided to go to the Kulu Valley in the 
Western part of the Himalayas to visit Naggar, 
where Nicholas Roerich had lived. Since I had 
known him personally, the trip had sentimental 
overtone. A narrow curving road, a precipice 
on one side with rocks and avalanches on the 
other, were not conductive to an enjoyable 
journey to this remote region near Ladakh and 
Tibet. The village ofNaggar derives its name 
from NAGA, the serpent. High up in the 
mountain lies Roerich's estate. Having been an 
artist of note, his two-sided house contains a 
museum of his paintings. 

"As I began my ascent on the mountain 
path, I saw a tall grey-haired sadhu (hermit), 
sitting by a mountain torrent. In his hand he 
held a cobra-shaped staff, which together with 
the markings on his forehead, signified that he 
was a devotee of Shiva. During the earlier, 
more peaceful times of the British Raj , these 
pilgrims would travel to the Lake of the Great 
Nagas, Lake Manosarowar, or to Mount 
Kailas, the abode of Shiva (a "god" aparently 
tied-in with the Nagas - Branton), in Tibetan 
territory. I climbed the mountain and reached 
the terrace on which Roerich's house is built. I 
spent an hour studying (his) paintings. On the 
way back I admired the narrow valley and the 
looming snow-capped mountain ridges on both 
sides. 

"The sadhu was still there. I thought, 'A 
place called Naggar, a devotee of the Nagas 
with the cobra staff, if he does not know 
something about the Nagas, then who goes?111 

After Andrew Tomas asked this man, 
aparently a misguided member of a serpent 
cult, if he knew anything about the "Nagas" or 
the serpent beings, the pagan devotee 
responded: 

'"I am a poor sadhu, I know nothing, sahib. 
But about twenty years ago my yogi teacher 
went into the mountain kingdom of the Nagas. 
Bright lights everywhere, big halls like Taj 
Mahal... The Nagas have many, many things 
and machines. They are clever, like 
Cambridge men, may be more clever, sahib,' 
the sadhu said with an apologetic smile ... 

'"Your yogi must have been a Rishi. Don't 
the Nagas destroy men with their sting?' I 
asked. 

111Yes, though the Nagas are gods and 
wish nothing but good to man, they do not like 
men who have no business near their palaces,' 
he replied." 

One can see here the poor, miss-guided 
and indeed self- contradicting mentality of 
many of those souls who are caught up in the 
"serpents cults" throughout the world. In 
response to Thomas' accusations that THE 
NAGAS DESTROY MEN WITH THIR 
STING, this "devotee" agrees with him and 
states "Yes" (they do destroy human lives). 
However, he then goes on to make the 
absolutely contradicting statement that THE 
NAGAS ARE GODS AND WISH 
NOTHING BUT GOOD TO MAN. This 
poor soul like so many others, apparently 
desiring to worship a supernatural power 
"greater" than himself, had actually been 
deceived into devoting himself to creatures 
which are in fact a deadly threat to man and 
are aparent "gods" only in the sense that their 
intellectual capacity allows them to develop 
and utilize advanced forms of occult­
technology. This aparent schizophrenic or 
self-contradicting thinking may result from 
the devotee's DESIRE to believe he was 
worshiping benevolent entities while at the 
same time subconsciously acknowledging the 
threat that these creatures pose to human life 
is very real as well. Many of these people 
may have grown up with such false teachings 
and, simply because there was no alternative 
presented to them, ended up worshiping the 
serpent race r "The Beast" (This does not 
mean that they are beyond salvation as those 
who take "the mark" of the Beast of 
Revelation ch. 13 will be, who in essence will 
through a world-wide initiation willfully turn 
over their own WILLPOWER to "the Beast" 
in exchange for supernatural "godlike" 
powers. These will be irredeemable since 
their WILLS will no longer be theirs and 
therefore they will be unable to "choose" to 
return to the God of the Universe). This 
aspect of being taught a particular belief­
system from birth has to do with the so-called 
"law of first report" , a powerful force which 
states in essence that a person who learns one 
set of teachings BEFORE hearing of a 
contradictory viewpoint will often defend the 
teaching which he heard "first" to the death, 
whether that teaching it right or wrong. 

The sad fact is, such serpent-race-inspired 
cults condemn critical, analytical thinking and 
demand absolute and blind allegiance and 
obedience to the "masters". The God of 
Judeo- Christian revelation is not so 
ntimidated by men's efforts to examine His 
Word, but instead encourages man to 
"PROVE" His Word, His Prophecies, and the 
Scientific and Historical reliability of his 
revelations in an HONEST manner. 
Unfortunately, many of the serpent cult 
followers have been so ingrained from 
childhood with these lies that it is very 

difficult to break free from such traditions 
when they are older. Many of these will not 
listen to critical arguments against their 
already-established views simply for prides 
sake, or because of the fear or possibility of 
being proven wrong. This is also true with the 
many modern "lodge- religions" which are 
outwardly "Christian" yet inwardly pagan, and 
which play upon the human ego and the desire 
for "secret knowledge" which will somehow 
suposedly make them SUPERIOR to their 
fellow man if they can "make the grade" by 
being initiated into the "irmer core"; and most 
who reach this "irmer core" must admit if they 
are honest with their own conscience that much 
of what they suposedly "learned"there is 
actually contradictory to what they learned in 
the lower or outer "levels" when they first 
joined-up with such a religious movement. 

We would say that these "hybrid" religions 
which attempt to fuse the contradicting 
teachings of the "Serpent" and the "Lamb" 
together (the first such post-deluvian cult 
being the ancient Babylonian Mystery Religion 
built around the tower of "Babel" or tower of 
"Confusion") are far more dangerous than the 
Serpent Cults themselves, as they are more 
likely to lead souls hungry for truth to their 
destruction when actually the initiate or 
member believes that they are on the path of 
light because SOME of the teachings actually 
AR$E based on a perverted form of truth. 
Jesus said "A little leaven leaveneth the whole 
lump" (I Cor. 5:6), or a little lie can corrupt a 
great deal of truth. A little "serpents venom" 
of self-deification, self-centeredness or selfish 
ego-worship can utterly destroy and corrupt 
any benefit of any TRUTH which the Creator 
would plant in a human eart, truth based on the 
teaching of putting God and others first and in 
so doing bringing about a better society, and 
thus PERSONAL benefit. 

Andrew Tomas continues by describing 
other subterranea- related accounts in his book 
"ON THE SHORES OF ENDLESS 
WORLDS": 

" ... Traditions of vaults, labyrinths, tunnels 
and buried treasures of remote antiquity are 
found in Crete, Egypt, Tibet, Angkor, India, 
Mexico, Ecuador, Bolivia and Peru. The 
legends usually connected with the cult of the 
Serpent come especially in Egypt, Crete, 
Angkor, Tibet, India and Mexico." 

Tomas also describes one account on p. 
165 which stated that an "Arab fraternity" had 
knowledge of and access to a "subterranean 
gallery under the Sphinx" near Giza, Egypt 
which is sealed by an artificial barrier of flame. 
Such subterranean "barriers" have been 
described in other accounts, and are often 
described as a "sheet" of bluish flame. There 
are many accounts other than this one given by 
Andrew Tomas which tell of hidden 
subterranean urmels, labyrinths, chambers and 
caverns - even subterranean people - which 
have allegedly been seen beneath the Cairo, 
Egypt region. Such accounts also spread to 
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South America, as we can see by Tomas 
description (p. 158) of an alleged sub-terran 
system beneath Peru: 

"Legend has it that a vast subterranean 
network exists in the Andes. This would infer 
engineering skill of the highest calibre which 
the early inhabitants of South America did not 
lack. The megalithic stonework of Tiahuanaco 
has to be seen to be believed. Stones are fitted 
together with insets without cement as if they 
were ivory and not 20-ton stone blocks. These 
ruins were ancient even at the time of the 
Conquest, nor could the Indians of the period 
provide an answer as to the identity of the 
Titan-builders. Another puzzle at Tiahuanaco 
is the absence of burial sites in the complex. 
Does the reign of the Tiahuanacan Empire ... go 
back to an unknown chapter of prehistory?" 
On p. 159 Mr. Tomas gives yet another 
account concerning Tiauanaco and the strange 
subterranean tunnels which allegedly 
undermine the area: 

"The Jesuit Agnelio Oliva (1572-1542) 
recorded the words of an old Inca quipu reader 
to the effect that the real Tiahuanaco was a 
subterranean city exceeding the one above 
ground in vastness. It was believed that the 
entrance to the underground apartments could 
be gained through four tunnels. Last century 
one passage was evidently found as treasure 
hunters managed to get in, to look for gold, but 
only one came out. He brought out with him 
two gold bars but left behind his sanity. After 
this incident the Peruvian government decided 
to wall up the cave entrance ... " This tunnel, 
according to other sources, was actually hidden 
among the ruins of Fort Sacsahuaman outside 
of and above Cuzco, Peru. The explorers 
allegedly found their way into ancient treasure 
caves beneath the Temple of the Sun in Cuzco, 
and most of them subsequently became lost in 
the dark labyrinthine maze, except for the man 
who returned with two gold bar. There are 
however "rumors" that the tunnels beneath 
Cuzco eventually connect with others in 
different parts of the Peruvian Andes. 

In this file we have dealt extensively with 
the saurian-type alien entities. However, not 
all of the "aliens" encountered during UFO 
events or subsurface incidents are of the 
infernal, "sauroid-reptilian" type. Probably the 
second most commonly reported occupants or 
alien entities are the "Nordics" or so- called 
"Blondes" (as they have often been referred 
to), described as being human yet usually 
blond-haired and blue-eyed. These claim to 
have continuity with ancient earth societies 
who developed advanced forms of technology, 
and these ''Nordics" or "Blondes" have been 
associated with nearby planetary or star 
systems as well as with subterranean colonies 
possibly descended from ancient Greco-Mayan 
explorers. It is uncertain just what "their" 
stand regarding the "serpent race" is, but some 
sources indicate that conflict between the two 
"alien" groups has existed for hunreds of years 
and perhaps millennia, and is increasing in 

more recent times. The major centers of 
activity for one group of blond semi-alien 
humans, according to several sources, is in a 
network of subterranean caverns which exist a 
few miles beneath the surface of California 
and surrounding regions. One of their major 
"Capitol" centers of this hidden society is 
alleged to be a subterranean city by the name 
of "Telos", which is actually a Greek work 
meaning "uttermost". 

Telos is said in itself to be inhabited by 
over a million persons, many of whom claim 
ancient ancestral ties with the old Mayan 
civilizations. Telos is said to be one of 7 or 
more subterranean cities below the United 
States which may have been in existence since 
antediluvian times and which were aparently 
re-discovered and re-established by various 
early native inhabitants of the Americas . 
Also, some sources claim that these "Blonde" 
aliens have an alliance with Oriental 
Subterranean humans from the "Agharta 
Empire" . There is evidece that the 
subterranean network beneath California may 
have been inhabited continuously for over a 
thousand or more years. 

The Telosians, etc. are allegedly aware of 
conditions on the surface of the earth, which 
they monitor constantly via TV, radio, etc., 
although they are usually reticent of 
establishing any major contact with the 
surface world and carry on their activities in 
privacy. They are aparently aware of the 
geological trends which are leading this planet 
to an eventual crisis point (ie. ozone 
destruction, pollution, seismic disaster, 
potential polar reversal, greenhouse effect, 
etc.) but seem to be just as helpless to do 
anything to stop it as are the surface 
governments of the earth. All this might 
sound like the most daring science fiction, but 
there are several sources who swear it's true. 
More on these two groups (the Telosians and 
Aghartians) will be revealed later on and we 
will leave it to the reader to decide how to deal 
with such allegations. 

There areother groups which rna have 
been confused with the Telosian 'Blondes'. 
One we will refer to as the 'Nordics' who have 
allegedly established bases or communities 
beyond the earth. Another group which may 
fit into the scenario will be referred by us as 
the 'Aryans', an alleged 'pure-bred' race of 
neo-Nazis who are believed to occupy 
underground bases below Antarctica and 
utilize Nazi 'aerial disk' technology. There is 
still another group which we should include 
here. There have been some accounts 
concerning so-called "nordics" or "blondes" or 
"Aryans" (which one's we do not know) who 
have been seen working in connection with the 
sauroids or the serpent race. The serpent 
races have aparently convinced a relatively 
few from one or more of these human 'races' 
just mentioned, to work with them, perhaps 
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entlcmg them with certain promises of 
supernatural or technological advancement. 
For instance if an Earth-person sees a "Nordic 
Blond" human with a group of reptilians, as 
many have (These particular "Blondes" are 
usually describe as exuding a type of mindless 
and superficial "unconditional compassion" 
from their eyes) then the human will be all the 
more likely to cooperate with the sauroids' 
attempts to implant, examine, de- sperm, de­
egg, impregnate, or genetically interfere with 
these victims. Often the Blondes who are 
working WITH the reptilians are described as 
being simplistic, with child-like minds and 
lacking critical thought, as if they have 
abandoned all critical judgement in exchange 
for blind faith in the grandiose promises of the 
serpent race. In contrast to this the Nordic or 
Blond groups (the majority?) who are in direct 
oposition to, or even at war with, the grays or 
sauroids, have been described as being more 
practical, intelligent, and less prone to use 
manipulation and deceit to get their way. 

If such a scenario involving an actual 
conflict between human and saurian beings is 
in fact taking place on, below and above this 
planet, then one must wonder why the majority 
of us humans living on the surface are obivious 
to the fact? There are in fact many Christian­
Patriotic publications which document actual 
attempts by one-world organizations to 
influence and manipulate the information 
media. If many of these one-world 
organizations, through secret fraternities, have 
actually been supressing news references to 
"aliens" as part of a secret- governmental 
cover-up, then the ignorance would be 
explained by the fact that the majority of 
human society would rather "go with the flow" 
and believe everything they're told with blind 
faith. Just because something is big and 
powerful (like the news media, and in fact like 
the devil himself) does not mean that they are 
always benevolent or truthful. Many would 
aparently trust the "controlled" news media 
religiously and frown upon those who would 
dare make waves and go against the 
established flow. However, in recent years the 
news media IS in fact letting the "snake out of 
the bag" and producing programs about alien 
abduction, etc. Let's hope that these and future 
progrms depict the alien problem in a true 
light. 
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